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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG
LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors. Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents
of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents
of this report. This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China Innovationpay Group Limited
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the GEM
Listing Rules for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in
this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no
other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITR|ES

The board of directors (the “Board”) of China Innovationpay
Group Limited (“CIP” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) is pleased to present the annual
report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017

During the year under review, the Group continued operating
third-party payment business. The operating environment
for the year had been complicated with social and economic
uncertainties.

In the past, the Company took the tighten regulation into
its expansion consideration. The Company also explored
domestic and overseas efficient payment businesses and
searched for the optimal business model in the fast-growing
and ever changing payment industry. In 2017 the Company
is pleased to demonstrate that the focus approach to market
our mature services as set out in our 2016 Annual Report was
a success. All we are doing is to create a harmonic cycle of
the Group's progressively mature platforms with increasing
ease of services to customers and merchants. Added to this
is the success stories from our renowned merchants in the
retail industry to whom the Group has deployed its payment
channels and platforms. They have proved to be extremely
useful in helping merchants generating operational efficiency.
The Group successfully connected more buyer and seller, user
and merchant through our advanced and integrated platforms.
The Group makes its licensed payment services to bridge the
gap between its distributors and their customers by a mean of
seamless, efficient payment experiences. The Group connects
more and more industrial distributor cross products and
services. The Company’s ambition is to be a well-recognized
innovative market leader in the e-commerce industry, staying
the payment and beyond. The Group will achieve this by
assisting its distributors and business partners in their own
business development, emphasize on the needs of theirs, as
well as the society the Group serves, so that the Group is
making long-term sustainable return to all of its stakeholders.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ITEHES

The Group is going to be cautious to meet with the challenges
ahead and continue to focus the third party payment industry,
and will also grasp every opportunity against the strong
market competition striving to create more fruitful value to the
shareholders.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my gratitude to all shareholders, investors, customers
and business partners for their strong support to our Group.
| would also like to express our sincere appreciation to the
management team and staff of the Group for their dedicated
efforts and contributions.

Mr. Guan Guisen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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CIP AT A GLANCE
CIPHIEE

CIP is a renowned investment holding company committed to
innovation and technology advancement in payment services.
Our group consists of the Company, Shenzhen Innovationpay
Co., Limited and its subsidiaries, Country Praise Enterprise
Limited ("CPE") and its subsidiaries (collectively the “CPE
Group”). The Group mainly operate payment system based
business across the People’'s Republic of China (the “PRC").

OUR BUSINESS FOUNDATION

On 28 June 2012, Beijing Gaohuitong Commercial Management
Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Gaohuitong”), an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company obtained the Certificate for Approval
for Payment Business from the People’s Bank of China (the
"PBOC"). In June 2017 Beijing Gaohuitong has smoothly
obtained the Certificate for Approval for Payment business
from the PBOC, which allows continuing to conducting it
business. The PBOC Approval allows us to operate issuance
and acceptance of prepaid cards in five geographical areas and
operate internet payment service in the PRC. In November
2014, the payment and settlement division of the operations
of PBOC further permitted us to operate the virtual card in
the PRC countrywide on a pilot basis. In September 2015,
PBOC Guangzhou Branch has approved Beijing Gaohuitong to
commence the Renminbi settlement services for the cross-
border goods and services trading business for enterprises and
individuals.
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CIP AT A GLANCE
CIPHIEE

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

CIP is a renowned investment holding company committed to
innovation and technology advancement in payment services.
Our Group consists of the Company, Shenzhen Innovationpay
Co., Limited and its subsidiaries, Country Praise Enterprise
Limited (“CPE") and its subsidiaries (collectively the “CPE
Group”). We mainly operate payment service based business
across the People’s Republic of China (the “"PRC"). Up to 2017
our operation consists of three operating segments, which
are (i) general trading, (i) third party payment services and (iii)
Onecomm.

Within the third party payment services, there are four core
business sectors which are:

(i) Prepaid Card Service;

(ii) Internet Payment Service;

(i) Integrated Payment Service; and

(iv)  Cross-border Renminbi Payment Service

With the payment licenses and permissions obtained by the
Group and the businesses explored through years, the Group
has established three business systems based on its core
payment system, namely the internet payment system, the
prepaid card operating system and the integrated payment
system. The Group has also developed four business segments
based on three business systems, namely the prepaid card
service, internet payment service, merchant integrated payment
service, and cross-border Renminbi payment service.

In 2017 the Group's financial and investment focus is on
payment business, while other non-key business sectors, i.e.
the general trading services, have been maintained their normal
operation without any key investment.

Up to 2017 the Group's operation consists of four core business
sectors which are shown as follows:
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CIP AT A GLANCE
CIPHIEE

PREPAID CARD SERVICE

Virtual prepaid card service is the main contributor to the
business sector about volume of business. This sector’s service
products are co-operated by CPE and Moderntimes Payment
Limited (the “Moderntimes Payment”). Through the joint
confirmed cooperation with the Group's distributors, the virtual
prepaid card operating platform establishes an online and offline
payment service by a virtual prepaid card product to support
the needs under various payment handling conditions, help the
distributors to develop and operate their own customers.

INTERNET PAYMENT SERVICE

The business sector of internet payment service is a major
profit contributor in 2017 This sector's service provides a
speedy B2C and B2B mobile payment gateway service to our
clients. All Chinese popular payment paths, such as WeChat,
ApplePay, AliPay and China Unionpay, have been built into the
Group's payment gateway where the end user has no feeling of
using our internet payment service.
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CIP AT A GLANCE
CIPHIEE

INTEGRATED PAYMENT SERVICE

The business sector of integrated payment service can
provide merchants all-round membership management, full-
channel, self-marketing services. The Company has applied a
conservative strategies in developing this business sector due
to the relative cost. In a foreseeable future, seeking sizable
merchants in this business sector is still challenging for us.

CROSS-BORDER RENMINBI PAYMENT
SERVICE

The business sector of cross-border Renminbi Payment
provides our clients from international trading, e-trading,
tourism, and study abroad consultancy companies payment
services in doing their businesses of cross-border trading in
goods/services. Compared to the traditional bank, the Group
is able to provide safe accounts with simpler procedure and
shorter settlement cycle.
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CIP AT A GLANCE
CIPHIEE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Financial Review

For the past few years, the Group had been focused in building
up an all rounded and comprehensive Third Party Payment
service and solution system in order to staying ahead of the
industry. Although we have been confronted with various
difficulties such as the rapidly changing market condition as
well as changes in government policies, we still could make
continuous progress which was gradually reflected in the
progressive increase in the Group's turnover since 2015 and
2016. We have a comparatively fruitful year in 2017 in terms of
increase in revenue.

During the year ended 31 December 2017 the Group's
continuing operations turnover was approximately
HK$207,856,000 (2016: HK$80,182,000), a 159.2% increase as
compared to last year. The Group recorded a loss attributable
to shareholders from continuing operations of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$112,192,000 (2016: loss
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CIP AT A GLANCE
CIPHIEE

Significant Investment and Acquisition
Conditional Acquisition of 51% Equity Interest in Qima Holdings
Limited (“Youzan ")

On 17 March 2017, the Company and the shareholders of Youzan
entered into a Sale and Purchase Agreement pursuant to which
the shareholders of Youzan have conditionally agreed to sell
and the Company has conditionally agreed to purchase the sale
shares for a total consideration of HK$2,096,100,000 which
shall be satisfied by the Company by way of allotment and issue
of 5,516,052,632 consideration shares at the issue price of
HK$0.38. The sale shares represent 51.0% of the issued share
capital of Youzan as at the date of the announcement, assuming
all preference shares of Youzan having been converted into
ordinary shares.

For details of the above transaction please refer to the
Company's announcement dated 28 March 2017

Loan Agreement with Youzan

On 8 April 2017, the Company entered into the Loan Agreement
with Youzan, pursuant to which the Company conditionally
agreed to grant to Youzan an unsecured loan facility up to
HK$200,000,000 (inclusive of the principal loan amount and
interest) and subject to the terms and conditions set out
therein from the loan effective date until 31 December 2019.
The proposed annual caps in respect of the transactions
contemplated under the Loan Agreement for each of the
three years ending 31 December 2019 was HK$200,000,000,
HK$200,000,000 and HK$200,000,000 respectively. Due to
the delay in the despatch of the Circular, the Company and
Youzan entered into a supplemental agreement to the Loan
Agreement (“Supplemental Loan Agreement”) pursuant to
which the parties agree to (i) revise the term to being from
the loan effective date to 31 December 2020; and (ii) revise
the annual caps to HK$160,000,000, HK$200,000,000 and
HK$200,000,000 for each of the three years ending 31
December 2020 respectively. The revised annual caps are
determined with reference to, among others, the current
business plan of Youzan Group.

For details of the above transaction please refer to the
Company’'s announcements dated 10 April 2017 and 29
November 2017
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CIP AT A GLANCE
CIPHIEE

Financial Resources and Liquidity

As at 31 December 2017 the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$304,612,000 (2016:
HK$185,422,000) of which HK$23,101,000 were exclusively for
the purposes of settlement obligations.

As at 31 December 2017 the Group had bank borrowings of
HKS$nil (2016: HK$ nil).

As at 31 December 2017 the Group had restricted bank
balances of HK$1,102,000 (2016: HK$nil) that were frozen
by a PRC District People’s Procuratorate to facilitate legal
investigation not related to the Group.

The Group will keep looking for chances of further synergetic
investments and will consider difference ways of raising funds,
such as obtaining loans, Placing or Open Offer, to cope with our
intended expansion.

Capital Commitments and Pledge of Assets

On 12 December 2016, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to obtain 20% equity interests of an
investee company by way of capital injection of RMB5,000,000.
As at 31 December 2016, the Group paid RMB2,000,000.
The remaining balance of RMB3,000,000 was a capital
commitment.

On 31 December 2017 a subsidiary of the Company entered
into a capital agreement with a potential investor and other
shareholders of the associate, Beijing Wallet Science and
Technology Co. Ltd. (“BJ Wallet”), conditionally agreed to invest
further RMB2,500,000 for maintenance 20% equity interests of
the associate. The investment is subject to fulfilment of other
conditions precedent.
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CIP AT A GLANCE
CIPHIEE

As at 31 December 2017 available-for-sale financial assets were
pledged as security in respect of loan granted to the underlying
investee company.

Contingent liability
As at 31 December 2017 the Group did not have any
contingent liabilities (2016: Nil).

As at 31 December 2017, the total current assets over the total
current liabilities was 3.00 times (2016: 1.41 times). The ratio
of all debts to total assets was 0 (2016: 0). As most sales are
made in Renminbi, no hedging arrangement is made to offset
the exposures to fluctuations in exchange rates.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Since the Group's operations are mainly located in the PRC and
its transactions, monetary assets and liabilities are primarily
denominated in Renminbi, there is minimal exposure to foreign
currency risks. The Group monitors its foreign currency risks and
will consider hedging significant currency exposures should the
need arises.

Intellectual Property

As at 31 December 2017 the Group had 34 trademarks
(2016: 24) registered in the PRC and Hong Kong, of which all
trademarks have been approved. At the same time, the Group
had 50 software copyrights (2016: 68) and 6 patents (2016: 6) in
the PRC.
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CIP AT A GLANCE
CIPEIEE

Employees

As at 31 December 2017 the Group has approximately 239
employees (2016: 275). Employees are remunerated according
to their performance and work experience. In addition to
basic salaries and retirement scheme, staff benefits include
performance bonus and employee share options. The Directors
believe that good quality of its employees is a company asset
which affects growth and improves profitability. The Group
recognizes the importance of staff training and thus regularly
provides internal and external training for its staff to enhance
their skills and knowledge.

Further information of our group’s employees and related issues
will be disclosed in page 75.

Litigation
As at 31 December 2017 the Group has no material outstanding
litigation.
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STRATEGIC REPORT
REEHRE

From 2016, the Company is moving towards the concept
of integrated reporting, as envisaged by the International
Integrated Reporting Council (“IIRC”). The IIRC described
Integrated Reporting as that which “brings together material
information about an organization’s strategy, governance,
performance and prospects in a way that reflects the
commercial, social and environmental context within which it
operates. It provides a clear and concise representation of how
an organization demonstrates stewardship and how it creates
and sustains value”. Specifically, the strategic report provides
analysis of the development and performance of the Group's
businesses in 2017 and the Group’s position at the end of 2017

MARKET CONDITION

Economic growth of the PRC has strengthened in 2017
driven by services and a number of strategic industries. The
quarter nominal GDP of the PRC has reached US$3.6 billion in
December 2017 compared with US$3.2 billion in the previous
quarter, and is expected to have a yearon-year growth of 6.8%.
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R IER-FKEENLERE BaAR ¥
BERBNEEEEZER  WHEHABEER
R AL @ MIRIBARN - B - AR
REZMBOMRIEERE D AR mE
BN TEBEANEE] LER  KBW
ERHAKRER T -t FHEBERERE
BURAEER S —+tFFENRIND
e

R

REZE—tF FENCEERZREER
ATHRBUTERESmMME RZT—+LF
+Z A HBENEEREBRNEEHLEES
BEL i E—FEARNIEET  FBIEF
#£6.8% °

Gross Domestic Product of the PRC (2008-2016) (in US$'billion)

PENEAEESE (CSBNEE-S—A%) (HE%T)

12000
10000 //‘/./‘
8000
6000
4000
2000
2008 2009 2010 201 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Gross Domestic Product in China (2008-2016)
FENBEREERLE (CETN\FE-ZF—F)
Source: Trading Economics B ¢ A A p
16 China Innovationpay Group Limited

Annual Report 2017



STRATEGIC REPORT
REEHRE

Third-party payment business is one of the most rapid growing
strategic industries in the PRC recent years. The business
lands on distribution and acceptance of the prepaid card and
electronic payment process such as making payment via
internet and mobile phone network. The electronic payment
process can ensure a provision of safe and convenient payment
platform for the consumer and merchants to carry out electronic
business trading activities. The use of third-party payment
is getting diversified from day-to-day and it can be seen in
e-commerce, mobile payments, and online payment etc.
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Third-party payment can be categorized into the followings
based on the license regulated by the PBOC:

BETBEARBIEE MR E=h%
A EmMT

A) The issuance and acceptance of prepaid cards
(including magnetic stripe, chip and other technologies
issued in the form of cards, passwords, etc.);

A)

BTHEZBENE (BIEIK - &
FRABETRR BHBEEANE
fhRHE)

B) | Providing online payment service (exchange of B | REBLIMRBF(E¥Hik B
currency, payment on the Internet, payment by mobile XA -FHIZA BEEERH
phone, payment by landline and digital TV); FTERINMN)

C) | Carrying out merchant integrated acquiring service C) | REEPEFEEWERS (FBH—FK
(refer to the act of receiving money from an authorized fE/_‘EFﬂ-fl?giﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬂﬁlﬁﬂﬁg
merchant from a bank card to a point terminal sales); BMPRIENTAR)
and

D) | Other payment services determined by the PRC. D) AR B T Y H M ST A AR o
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STRATEGIC REPORT
REEHRE

It is undoubted that third-party payment has reformed the
commercial payments model and to a large extend, it reshaped
people’s shopping style. Payment is to be one of the significant
and fastest-growing areas of the financial service sector globally
and at the same time the emerging markets is seen to be
the primary catalyst for the growth of payment industry. The
performance is mainly driven by the widening acceptance of
cashless payment methods in countries especially the PRC and
India.

Narrow down to domestic market, China Payment and Clearing
Association has released the “China Payment and Settlement
Industry Operation Report (2016)" (20164 X7 1 88 RiE 1748
E21E%) in 2017 The report indicates that the payment and
settlement industry in the PRC is developing rapidly and the
business increment has come first in the world. In 2016, a
total of 125.1 billion non-cash payment transactions were
processed in the country, representing a transaction volume
of RMB3,687.2 billion in total, an increase of 32.6% and 6.9%
respectively with compared to the previous year.

Risks and Regulations

Given the popularity of third-party payment in the PRC, mobile
payment is almost penetrated to every corner and every sector
of the country, from transportation to public services such as
hospital, household bills, from mini store to supermarket. The
popularity of third-party payment has placed a growing concern
towards data security protection and privacy. To identify and
classify the risk of mobile payment, first and foremost, is to
recognize its ecosystem.
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STRATEGIC REPORT
REEHRE

According to ISACA, the mobile payment ecosystem involves
the following stakeholders:

- Consumers - In-service providers
(merchants)
- Financial service - Network service
providers providers
- Payment service - Device manufacturers
providers
- Regulators - Trusted service

managers
Application developers

- Standardization and
industry bodies

The regulator has tighten the regulation policies year by vyear,
as a result of the intensive competition for the industry. At the
end of 2017 the PBOC confirmed to raise the reserve funds
ratio of third-party payment firms to 50.0% by April 2018 from
the existing rate of 20.0%. The move aims to ban all non-bank
payment agencies from using client's money, and prevent the
financial risks caused by the increase of illegally embezzled and
abscond with money cases.

In addition, the payment license is gradually becoming a scarcity
resource since the issuance of license is tightened, and the
requirement on renewal is getting stricter. 24 license payment
license were become invalid in 2017 and the total number of
Chinese non-bank payment institutions has reduced to 247 at
the end of 2017 Also, a number of small market participants
were fined for operational violations. It is worth note that
the third-party payment industry is under reshuffling and the
surviving space for small market participants is getting narrower.
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STRATEGIC REPORT
REEHRE

In order to strengthen supervision and administration in
the future, the PBOC has formulated and promulgated
the “Centralized Custody System for Customer Payment
Institutional Preservation,” setting up the so-called “China Nets
Union Clearing Corporation” and is building a real management
mechanism and making more efforts for cleaning up
undocumented payments and cracking down money laundering
in 2017 laying a solid foundation for the healthy and sustainable
development of third-party payment in the PRC.

During the regulatory escalation, license barriers is becoming
the industry moat. The industry will reduce the threat posed by
new entrants through tighten licenses, high prices and specific
license for specific business, while preventing risks will be the
mainstay of future regulation. To be concrete, the industry at
this stage can be illustrated by the following table:

RBEMAEERER PREARRITRC
T—LFHERRMG XN EBETPEN
SEPFEHE] RLIBBBEARAD
Al YR -EBENEEES BN
BB IPDE N RITESE  RPBEE=)
SNHRERAFEERT TRE-

T RBTET - IRRPIE B AT
BB RTEHBBRENTE BEER
LS S LU L S NG e S
EE - A BRRER AR REE N E
e BBTE - RRBRTRT U TR
B9

Main concerns BEMERH
we have considered as a result of... TEME HR..
Decreasing industry rivalries | Stricter regulations carried ROITERF EERNERERENAE
out by regulatory body IES
Decreasing threats from Stricter regulations carried BOFATESR | EERNERERENHAE
new entrants out by regulatory body MR &
Decreasing threats from The trend of cash payment BOBERREREN | BeEXNREGELREE
substitutes and traditional debit card HE REHBE
being eliminated
Strengthening on Standardizing the third-party &R EEE REE=FIETE
Government regulations payment industry
Increasing business Improvements on economic HRH S 0P TERARE
opportunities conditions
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EXECUTIVE RETROSPECT & PROSPECT

Past Operation

In the past, the Company took the tighten regulation into
its expansion consideration. The Company also explored
domestic and overseas efficient payment businesses and
searched for the optimal business model in the fast-growing
and ever changing payment industry. In 2017 the Company
is pleased to demonstrate that the focus approach to market
our mature services as set out in our 2016 Annual Report was
a success. All we are doing is to create a harmonic cycle of
the Group’s progressively mature platforms with increasing
ease of services to customers and merchants. Added to this
is the success stories from our renowned merchants in the
retail industry to whom the Group has deployed its payment
channels and platforms. They have proved to be extremely
useful in helping merchants generating operational efficiency.
The Group successfully connected more buyer and seller, user
and merchant through our advanced and integrated platforms.
The Group makes its licensed payment services to bridge the
gap between its distributors and their customers by a mean of
seamless, efficient payment experiences. The Group connects
more and more industrial distributor cross products and
services. The Company’s ambition is to be a well-recognized
innovative market leader in the Mobile e-commerce industry,
staying the payment and beyond. The Group will achieve this
by assisting its distributors and business partners in their own
business development, emphasize on the needs of theirs, as
well as the society the Group serves, so that the Group is
making long-term sustainable return to all of its stakeholders.
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STRATEGIC REPORT
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In the past, the Company regarded the mergers and
acquisitions (“M&A") to be an integral part of the growth
strategy. The following sets out the Group’'s major M&A
activities and business collaborations in connection with third-
party payment services of the Group:

ARBBEGHE ([68E]) KBRS
AJSREREY — B0 o A N &SI E 2 =26
BRI MNARAREE = XNRBZES

At

November 2010 | The Group acquired 100% equity interest —T-FF AEBYWE Country Praise
in Country Praise Enterprises Limited, +—A Enterprises LimitedZ 100%f&
a company principally engaged in the B HRIERFENEETX
development and operation of electronic NIRCAEREEZDE.
payment tools in the PRC.

June 2011 The Group was contracted to distribute —T——F AEEETART R ERE K
and promote Yinsheng Prepaid Card, a ~H T EREFERBERRAR
prepaid card accredited and licensed by AT A 2 B R
China Unionpay Co., Ltd.

September 2011 | The Group was contracted to distribute —E——F AREFTAORTREREN L BE
and promote Gold Exchangeable Gift A 2EMFo
Card.

February 2013 The Group issued a co-brand prepaid —2-=% AEBEPEERRT (M)
card with China Construction Bank (Asia) —A RN BRARZRTHAEN R
Limited.

June 2013 = [ 38 o T 4415 virtual card, jointly issued “T-=F FEEEEABSECE= AN
by the Group and Tenpay, a third-party N FaMNREART I RER.
payment platform operated by Tencent, MENERRRPREREL
was launched officially in the PRC.
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October 2014

The Group acquired 51% equity interest
in Beijing Onecomm Technology Company
Limited ("“ONECOMM?"), a company
principally engaged in the provision of
total solution for third-party payment
system, and the sales of integrated
smart point of sales (“POS") device,
including payment software development,
application integration, software testing,
construction and maintenance of business
application platforms. Its management
has extensive knowledge and expertise in
the development of third-party electronic
payment platform in the PRC.

The purpose of the investment was to
enable the Group to leverage on the
ONECOMM'’s research capability and its
expertise to develop different payment
platforms like 020 (online-to-offline or
offline-to-online) payment platform.

—T-NF
+A

AEBNREIL R B MNRERE
BT ([—15#M])251%K
B MEIRXBRBFE=TX
NEGREZERRANE IR
HERABRHER ([POS])
BE BRINEMHRE ER
Sk R REA LA RERT
BRRRHE-EEEENTH
FNEFXMNFERENEE
BEEMBREXT -

PREERSAEETRE S
WNZRRENREEE T8
RENFXAFE 0020 (&
FHETRETERE)XNT

él\o

November 2014

The Group has involved in the investment
of setting up of Haier Consumer Finance
Co.,, Ltd. (BB EEES®MAR AR,
representing 10% equity interest,
which principally engages in Personal
consumption loans.

Through the development and launch of
integrated intelligent POS, the operations
and management of prepaid card system
and the development of relevant payment
software for Haier Consumer Finance
Co. Ltd, the investment can (i) expand
the Group's payment business and
improve the finance payment industrial
chain; and (ii) accelerate the accumulation
of individual users and expand the
acceptance of the prepaid cards of the
Group.

FTEEREZTRUBMAEES
BERAR] FHHEI0%HE:
ERTENEANREERHE
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June 2015 The Group acquired 51% equity interest “T-1F AEE W EModerntimes
in Moderntimes Payment Limited, ~A Payment LimitedZ51%% 1 -
a company principally engaged in (i) HATERZ(REERSHT
providing consultancy services in strategy EREMBERTEIRBRE
and implementation in the traditional HRARE: (1ER EERE
finance industry and the internet finance BEHREREBEGENER:
industry; (i) the development, operation RliVEPEEEE AR &K
and promotion of innovative products BEANREGERBNREE
in the internet and finance fields; and ARREERBNRZRATE -
(iii) customer value management. The R AAEESEN R KRG
purpose of this investment was to BITEIEBR0FLH L ER
accelerate the acquisition of the virtual B
prepaid card holders and stimulate the
acceptance of the virtual prepaid cards,
while at the same time bring in the
management team with over 20 years'
experience in the finance and internet
industries to the Group.

September 2015 | The Group's online payment service and —Z-nf TEER EXNRERERAR
cross-border RMB payment service were NA B RIS AR B A HE o

launched officially in the PRC.
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The above series of M&A demonstrated the continuous effort
of the Group in its third-party payment services business
expansion strategy in (i) capturing technology, research and
development capabilities, and experienced professionals;
and (ii) expanding payment gateway for various businesses
or industries in order to increase the number of contracted
merchants/brands for its payment services, and in turn the
transaction volume handled through its third-party payment
system.

Nevertheless, the Company is of the view that such expansion
hinges on the Group’'s ability to capture a critical mass of
merchants or stores using the Group's third-party payment
services; which the Group believes could contribute positively
to the popularity and reputation of the Group's third-party
payment platform and, in turn, could attract more consumers,
enhance transaction volume, and thus increase transaction fee
income for the Group's business segment.

Set aside the macro economic factors, indeed the Company
has noticed that online purchases as a growing trend changing
the conventional trade model in recent years. The trend has
positively impacted the e-commerce market in terms of
increased transaction volume. Following the past experience
and the vision of being the industry connector, the Group has
proposed including Youzan to be one of its subsidiary in 2017
The completion of which is expected to be within 2018. As
of 31 December 2016, Youzan Group's e-commence platform
has over 364,000 active registered merchants and a GMV
of approximately RMB10 billion. Youzan Group was currently
handling its daily transactions through multiple payment
gateways provided by several third-party payment service
providers. At present, Youzan Group had engaged six third-party
payment service providers servicing its e-commerce platforms.
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The intention of the Company is that Beijing Gaohuitong will
replace the existing third-party payment service providers
of Youzan Group by substituting the applicable third-party
payment services currently provided by those existing third-
party payment service providers and gradually become the sole
third-party payment service provider of Youzan Group. Such an
anticipated arrangement includes providing various third-party
payment services to Youzan Group, such as offline integrated
payment transactions services, online payment services for
“"WeiMall”, cross-border RMB payment settlement services
for “WeiMall” overseas merchants, physical and virtual prepaid
cards services for merchants of Youzan Group and other
payment related services. Accordingly, the GMV of Youzan
Group, representing the total value of all confirmed transactions
for products and services on Youzan Group’s e-commerce
platform, regardless of whether the goods are delivered or
returned or how such orders are settled, could be translated
into the Group's existing principal e-commerce business — third-
party payment service, through charging service fee for the
third-party payment services to be provided by the Group. The
conditional acquisition could immediately contribute positively
and expand the Group's number of contracted merchants
and increase the transaction volume using the Group's third-
party payment services. The Group considers the conditional
acquisition complements the Group's development strategy
regarding its third-party payment services by expanding the
number of merchants and consumers using the Group's
payment gateway and processing transaction volume via the
Group's payment system.

The expanded merchant and consumer base through the
conditional acquisition could also be a pool of potential
business for the Group's other business segments, such
as use of pre-paid cards, provision of consultancy services,
payment solutions, use of cross-border payment gateway,
big data analytics enabling etc., which, the Group considers
complements and provides growth momentum for the Group's
existing business segments.
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Through the conditional acquisition, the combination of Youzan
Group’s third-party ecommerce platform and the Group's
third-party payment platform can allow the Group to provide
comprehensive one-stop services to the merchants, including
opening and operating of their online stores, inventory
management, consumer management, marketing management,
online store management, coupled with the payment services
support and capital management.

With the abovementioned synergetic effects with the existing
businesses of the Group, it is also expected that both income
from the principal businesses of the Group and the income
from Youzan Group's operation of the e-commerce applications
related business (which mainly consists of (i) fees charged for
use of applications and premium functions; and (i) transaction
fees based on consideration of relevant transactions) could be
enhanced through providing a comprehensive one-stop service
that will enrich the Group's income stream, which the Group
considers is beneficial to and in the interests of the Group and
its shareholders as a whole.

Further Discussion

Third-party payment as one of the new financial infrastructures,
its influence and industry penetration have further underpinned
in recent years. In the context of the consumer era, the
traditional industries represented by the heavy asset model
have gradually taken over and the light asset industries such as
science, technology and finance have taken the stage.
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Third-party payment competition is stepping into abyssal
zone, pushing the evolution of the ecosystem, technology
and models. The competition among the third-party payment
agencies has gradually evolved from pure product-based
to business model competition and it is tend to move to
ecosystem competition in the future. From the password
payment, the development of biometric fingerprint recognition
to face recognition payment, the innovation continues to be
accelerated. But as a payment business, relying solely on the
channel business itself is far from enough, marketing and other
value-added services such as credit payment is a fundamental
platform dedicated to providing customers with a seamless and
efficient scene-based transaction experience. At the same time,
more and more payment enterprises integrate their upstream
and downstream industry chains and different financial
institutions to build their own ecosystem ensure third-party
payment of the core competitiveness of enterprises. Especially
as financial industry replaced real estate industry and became
the key support of the economic development, its industry
ecosystem is under reconstruction. Traditional banks, non-bank
financial institutions are under shrinking the balance sheet, P2P
consumer finance and other non-bank financial institutions have
also been pressured by a series of tighten regulations. Third-
party payment, with transactions as the entry point, relies on
data to connect traditional finance and digital inclusion finance,
will become the next new important financial infrastructure.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERESREEE ZBEFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Guan Guisen, aged 54, joined the Company on 28 February
2011. Mr. Guan acts as an executive Director, Chairman of the
Company. Mr. Guan obtained his bachelor degree from China
Central University of Finance and Economics ( R R EBf4&E A ) in
1984 and a master degree from Graduate School of the PBOC
(PEIARIEFTHIITE) in 1987 Mr. Guan has over twenty
years of senior management experience in finance, property
development and investment in the PRC.

Mr. Guan was a deputy president of Hainan Technology and
Industry Group M EI TEE) from 1990 to 1994, a deputy
president of Taihe Holdings Co., Ltd. (K& IZE AR A 7)) from
2001 to 2003 and a director of China Union Pay Data Services
Co., Ltd. (SREEEUE AR A E)) from 2002 to 2005. From August
2008, Mr. Guan became the chairman of Beijing Dongsen Jinbi
Investment Consultancy Co., Ltd. (It R B HEEBREZHER
/2 7)) and a director of China Union Lovyalty Co., Ltd. ( E/&5E %
EAR2AF]) from August 2008 to October 2014. From April
2010 to March 2011, Mr. Guan became the chairman of Beijing
Shangyin Investment Consultancy Co., Ltd. (R ah@E (db57) %
EEHARAF) . Mr. Guan owns the entire equity interest in
Beijing Dongsen Jinbi Investment Consultancy Co., Ltd., (1t &=
HAe BIREZANABRAAF) an investment company, which in
turns ever owned 10.18% equity interest in China Union Loyalty
Co., Ltd. ( E/8EmE AR A7) . In October of 2014, Beijing
Dongsen Jinbi Investment Consultancy Co., Ltd. (It RE k&
B EFAER QA disposed 10.18% equity interest in China
Union Loyalty Co., Ltd. ( )8R &M ABRAF]) .
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EERESREEE ZBEFE

Mr. Cao Chunmeng, aged 46, joined the Company in March
2011 and acted as Vice President of the Company. Mr. Cao was
appointed as executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company on 11 July 2012. Mr. Cao held a bachelor’'s degree
in Computer Science from Shandong University in 1994. And
he obtained a master’'s degree in business administration from
Peking University in 2006. He worked at Shandong Branch of
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, acted as
General Manager in Jinan Xiande Technology Limited. (/&
KB BRARF), Senior Deputy President in Fengyuanxin
(China) Limited. (271 () AR AF]), General Manager
in Zongheng Tiandi (Beijing) Information Technology Limited. ( 4
fERH (b)) BT AR AR]) © Vice President in Beikong
Easycode (Beijing) Electric Commerce Ltd. (1b4% 58538 (db
) EFEEARAQT) and Vice President of Beijing Shangyin
Investment Consultancy Co., Limited. (4R g1t RI& &4
BR/AF]) . From December 2014, Mr. Cao acts as Director of
Haier Consumer Finance Co., Ltd. GBS B2 ®MAR AT .
Mr. Cao has over 20 years of financial information technology
Internet industry management experience.

Mr. Yan Xiaotian, aged 58, joined the Company in April 2014
and acted as the chief strategy and investment officer of the
Company in April 2014; and acted as the chairman and legal
representative of Beijing ONECOMM Technology Company
Limited, an indirect subsidiary of the Company since December
2014. Mr. Yan has been appointed as an executive Director and
the chief investment officer of the Company with effect from
24 December 2014. Mr. Yan has obtained a master degree in
economics from Graduate School of the People’s Bank of China
(B ARIRITHIZEER) , which was then merged with Tsinghua
University and known as PBC School of Finance, Tsinghua
University since 2012, and is a senior economist. Mr. Yan had
worked consecutively as the president of the head office of
Bank of China Limited, vice president of Guangzhou Branch of
China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited, formerly known as CITIC
Industrial Bank Limited, general manager of CITIC Securities
Co., Ltd. (Guangzhou) and director and executive president of
South China International Leasing Co., Ltd.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERESREEE ZBEFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Fong Chi Wah, aged 55, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on December 19,
2013. Dr. Fong is a Chartered Financial Analyst, a fellow of
CPA Australia and Hong Kong Institute of CPA, a member of
the Institute of Certified Management Accountants, Australia,
and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He
holds a Bachelor's Degree majoring in Management Science
(Economics) from Lancaster University in the United Kingdom,
a Master's degree in Business Administration from Warwick
University, United Kingdom, a Master's degree in Investment
Management from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology, a Master's degree in Practising Accounting from
Monash University, Australia and a Doctorate in Business
Administration from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and a Juris Doctor from Chinese University of Hong Kong.
Dr. Fong has over 25 years of extensive experience in various
sectors of financial industry, including direct investment, project
and structured finance and capital markets with focus on the
PRC and Hong Kong. Dr. Fong was previously a director of
Baring Capital (China) Management Limited and held various
management positions in ING Bank. Dr. Fong was previously
also an executive director of Grand Investment Internationa
Limited (15 April 2003 (date of incorporation) to 1 April 2006),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Dr. Fong has been
serving as an executive director of National Investments Fund
Limited since 1 November 2005 and an independent non-
executive director of Real Nutriceutical Group Limited since 28
March 2008, both of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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EERESREEE ZBEFE

Mr. Gu Jiawang, aged 67 has accumulated profound
knowledge and valuable experience in the mass media industry.
Mr. Gu worked as a senior editor, commentator, person in
charge of the editing section and the head of the business
development department of People’s Daily ( AERH#R) . He was
also appointed as the chief executive officer of China Huawen
Investment Holding Company Limited ( A7 B2 % & 15 A% A IR
A ]) which is held by People’s Daily ( AR H#) the chairman
of Zhongtai Trust and Investment Co., Ltd. (R REFEERE B R
FEAF]), the chairman of Shanghai New Huang Pu (Group)
Co., Ltd. (E/B%&EH (£E) BREEAF]) and the chairman
of Shenzhen Stock Times Media Limited CRIIZE FHEF it A
BR/AA]) . Mr. Gu graduated from the Philosophy Department
of Nanjing University. He also obtained a postgraduate diploma
after studying two years at the Party School of the Central
Committee of C.PC. Mr. Gu joined the Company in April 2011.

Mr. Xu Yanqing, aged 61, graduated from the Department
of Finance at the Central Institute of Finance (FR REf & &
BT ) (now known as the Central University of Finance and
Economics) with a bachelor degree in economics (major in
international insurance) in 1984. Mr. Xu is a senior economist
and has over 30 years of experience in finance industry. Prior to
his retirement in August 2016, he was the vice general manager
of The People’s Insurance Company of China (Hong Kong) Ltd
between August 2011 and August 2016.
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EERESREEE ZBEFE

HONORABLE CHAIRMAN

Mr. Liu Tinghuan, a famous banker, was appointed as
Honorable Chairman of the Company on 23 October 2011. Mr.
Liu was the former chairman of China Unionpay Co., Ltd. Mr.
Liu began his profession in the banking sector of the PRC from
1960s. Since 1985, Mr. Liu had served as deputy president,
deputy Secretary of the Party, and then became the president
and the Party Secretary of Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China. In 2000, Mr. Liu was appointed to the deputy president
and deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of the PBOC. Mr.
Liu was a committee member of the Standing Committee of
the 10th National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference in 2003. He was deputy director of
the Economic Commission, an alternate committee member
of the 15th Central Committee of Communist Party of the
PRC and a representative of the 16th National Congress of
Communist Party of the PRC. Mr. Liu served as chairman of
China Unionpay Co., Ltd from 2004 to 2010. Mr. Liu served as
independent non-executive director of Bank of Communications
since August 2013. Mr. Liu achieved extraordinary contribution
to the development of China Unionpay and the PRC's payment
industry.

CHIEF ECONOMIC CONSULTANT

Mr. Xia Bin, a famous economist and financial expert in the
PRC, was acted as the Chief Economic Consultant of the
Company on 8 June 2011. Mr. Xia Bin currently serves as an
honorable director of Research Institute of Finance under
Development Research Centre of the State Council, and Chief
Consultant of China International Futures Co., Ltd. He also acts
as an independent director of China Fortune Land Co., Limited
and Haitong Securities Co., Limited. Mr. Xia was ever a director
of Research Institute of Finance under Development Research
Centre of the State Council, a number of the Monetary Policy
Committee of the PBOC, served as a vice director of the
Institute of Finance of the People’s Bank of China, a manager
of trading department of the CSRC, a general manager of
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, a person-in-charge of Department
of Policy Research of the People’s Bank of China and a director
of Regulatory of Non-Banking Financial Organization of the
People’s Bank of China. Mr. Xia Bin's research primarily covers
macro-economic condition; currency policy; financial regulatory
and the development of the capital market in the PRC. Mr. Xia
wrote or edited a lot of books which are very influential to the
capital markets.
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Mr. Fung Kwok Leung, aged 52, is the qualified accountant
and company secretary of the Company. Mr. Fung holds an
Honors Degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as advice and services of the group’s
general counsel and the company secretary, with a view
to ensuring the Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed. All directors may also obtain
independent professional advice at the group’s expenses for
carrying out their functions. In addition, the Board has adopted
various practices to bring the Group to a high level of corporate
governance and in compliance with the CG Code.

Maintaining a high level of corporate governance and integrity
cannot depend solely on the Board's efforts, each of the
Group’s employees is also required to contribute to such cause.
A code of conduct policy which emphasizes on honesty and
respect is distributed by the Company to all employees and
forms part of their service contracts.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRES

The Directors present this report together with the audited
financial statements of China Innovationpay Group Limited and
our subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2017.

THE COMPANY

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 17 August
1999 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended). Its shares have
been listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited since 14 April 2000.

PRINCIPLE ACTIVITIES

Our Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in three operating
segments, which are (i) general trading, (ii) third party payment
services and (i) Onecomm. Within the third party payment
services, there are four core business sectors which are:

Business

(1) Prepaid Card Service

(2) Internet Payment Service

(3) Integrated Payment Service

(4) Cross-border Renminbi Payment Service

An analysis of our Group’s turnover, segment result and
segment assets for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set

out in Note 8 and 10 respectively to the accompanying financial
statements.
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CUSTOMERS & SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 the five largest
customers accounted for approximately 56% (2016: 55%) of
our Group's total turnover, while the five largest suppliers of our
Group accounted for approximately 68% (2016: 100%) of our
Group’s total purchases. The largest customer accounted for
approximately 21% (2016: 35%) of our Group's total turnover
while the largest supplier accounted for approximately 24%
(2016: 48%) of our Group's total purchases.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their
associates, or any shareholders (which, to the knowledge of
the Directors, owned more than 5.0% of the Company’s share
capital) had a beneficial interest in the five largest customers
and suppliers of our Group.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of our Group's results for the year ended 31 December
2017 are set out on pages 98 to 102 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend
(2016: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements share capital of the Company are set out
in Note 37 to the accompanying financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on information that is
publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the directors, the directors confirm that the Company
maintained a sufficient of public float as required under the
GEM Listing rules.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

As at 31 December 2017, there is no outstanding convertible
bonds.
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WARRANTS

On 6 February 2015 (after trading hours), the Company and
Greater China Select Fund (the “Subscriber”) entered into the
Subscription Agreement. Following obtaining the Shareholders’
approval of the Warrant Subscription and issue of the Warrant
Shares at the SGM dated 29 June 2015, all conditions set out in
the Subscription Agreement have been fulfilled and completion
of the Warrant Subscription took place on 6 July 2015. Warrants
of an aggregate amount of HK$381.6 million have been issued
to the Subscriber at the Issue Price of HK$0.002 per Warrant.
The Warrants entitle the Subscriber to subscribe a maximum
of 530,000,000 Warrant Shares at the initial Subscription Price
of HK$0.72 per Warrant Share for a period of five (5) years
commencing from the date of issue of the Warrants.

As at this report date, there were still outstanding 530,000,000
Wiarrant Shares with an aggregate fair value of HK$381,600,000
to be subscribed.

RESERVES AND RETAINED LOSS

Movements in reserves of the Company during the year are
set out in Note 39 to the accompanying financial statements.
Movements in retained profits and other reserves of our Group
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 103 of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2017 the Company had no reserves
available for distribution to its shareholders. However, the
Company’'s share premium account, in the amount of
approximately HK$1,601,579,000 may be distributed in the form
of fully paid bonus shares.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

A conditional acquisition of 51% equity interest in Youzan was
proceeding during the financial year, details are set out on
pages 12 of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Byelaws and the laws in Bermuda in relation to the
issue of new shares by the Company.
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SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates are
set out in Notes 20 and 21 respectively to the accompanying
financial statements.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Details of our Group's share option schemes are set out in Note
40 to the accompanying financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions are set out in Note 46 to
the accompanying financial statements.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

Pursuant to Article 178 of the Bye Law of the Company, the
Directors, Managing Directors, alternate Director, Auditors,
Secretary and other officers for the time being of the Company
and the trustees (if any) for the time being acting in relation
to any of the affairs of the Company, and their respective
executors or administrators, shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets of the Company from and against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them, their or any of their executors or
administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any
act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of
their duty or supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts,
except such (if any) as they shall incur or sustain through their
own wilful neglect or default, fraud and dishonesty respectively,
and none of them shall be answerable for the acts, receipts,
neglects or defaults of any other of them, or for joining in
any receipt for the sake of conformity, or for any bankers
or other persons with whom any moneys or effects of the
Company shall be lodged or deposited for safe custody, or for
the insufficiency or deficiency of any security upon which any
moneys of the Company shall be placed out or invested, or for
any other loss, misfortune or damage which may happen in
the execution of their respective offices or trusts, or in relation
thereto, except as the same shall happen by or through their
own wilful neglect or default, fraud and dishonesty respectively.

Such provision was in force during the year. In addition, the
Company has also maintained Directors and officers liability
insurance during the year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Guan Guisen (Chairman)

Mr. Cao Chunmeng (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yan Xiaotian

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Fong Chi Wah
Mr. Wang Zhongmin
(Resigned on 8 March 2018)
Mr. Gu Jiawang
Mr. Xu Yanging
(Appointed on 4 August 2017)

In accordance with Article 99 of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Cao
Chunmeng, Mr. Yan Xiaotian and Dr. Fong Chi Wah will retire
by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Mr. Xu Yanging was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 4 August 2017 Mr. Xu is required to
retire in accordance with Article 102(A) of the Bye-Laws and he,
being eligible, has offered himself for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

Mr. Guan Guisen, the executive director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 28 February 2017

Mr. Cao Chunmeng, the executive director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 11 July 2015.

Mr. Yan Xiaotian, the executive director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 24 December 2017

Dr. Fong Chi Wah, the independent non-executive director, has
entered the service agreement with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 19 December 2015.

Dr. Fong Chi Wah has served on the Board for more than 10
years but he has never held any executive or management
position in our Group nor has he throughout such period been
under the employment of any member of our Group. Dr. Fong
has demonstrated his ability to provide an independent view
to the Company’s matters. The Directors noted the positive
contributions Dr. Fong made to the development of the
Company. Dr. Fong Chi Wah has given the confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of GEM Listing Rules to
the Company. The nomination committee of the Company has
assessed and is satisfied of the independence of Dr. Fong. The
Board considers that the long services of Dr. Fong would not
affect his exercises of independent judgments, notwithstanding
his years of service as an independent Non-executive Director
of the Company, the Board is of the view that Dr. Fong is able to
continue to fulfill his roles as required.
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Mr. Gu Jiawang, the independent non-executive director, has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term
of three years commencing from 28 April 2017

Mr. Xu Yanging, the independent non-executive director, has
entered the service agreement with the Company for a term of
one year commencing from 4 August 2017 subject to rotation
and re-election at annual general meetings of the Company
in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company. Pursuant to
Article 102(A) of the bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Xu will hold
office until the next annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election thereat.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors being proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has an unexpired service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by our
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the
Company to which the Company, its holding company or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES

As at the date of this report, the interests or short positions of
the Directors in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (i) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein; or (iii) were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions
by Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

EERARANESR

RARE BH - EERAR A EERAA
BorE (E& BES MPEEGIEXVED)
IR0~ HEEERR G R EEE T - A ()RR
BE RS IEHIEXVEET NS B AN S
RAFIRBRATZ ERIAR (BIERE
BE K EE GOIE BIEXESIESAR B
BZRERIORR) KR EZBHFLRBE
&) 5536214 4R & 7B C A RZ 1§ A il & 7o il
ZRETEBORAE S IRIEGEM_ETH AR A
BABEL67IGEHMEFTHITEFRHZH
TFANGARRMBRATZ ERTOAR L
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Long Position in Shares
RRGZFE

Interest in

underlying Total interest %

Name of Directors Interest in shares shares in shares Shareholding

R RiRP 2 i REBRG 2 ER RRGzEES RERSL

Mr. Guan Guisen (Note 1) 1,311,792,000 (L) - 1,311,792,000 (L) 18.80%

BERTE (M) 1,140,000,000 (S) 1,140,000,000 (S) 16.33%

Mr. Cao Chunmeng 67420,000 36,000,000 103,420,000 1.48%
BEHLE (Note 2)
(PE2)

Mr. Yan Xiaotian 21,640,000 25,000,000 46,640,000 0.67%
BEALE (Note 2)
(BEE2)

Dr. Fong Chi Wah 1,000,000 3,000,000 4,000,000 0.06%
HEERT (Note 2)
(FE2)

Mr. Wang Zhongmin 1,000,000 3,000,000 4,000,000 0.06%
(Resigned on 8 March 2018) (Note 2)
TRRAE (PaE2)

(B :%-)\i
=AN\BEA)

Mr. Gu Jiawang 1,000,000 3,000,000 4,000,000 0.06%
ARHLE (Note 2)
(BiEE2)
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Note 1:  The shares are held by Mighty Advantage Enterprises

Limited (“Mighty Advantage”). Mighty Advantage is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is beneficially
owned by Mr. Guan Guisen.

Note 2:  The Company granted the share options under New Share

Option Scheme on 11 June 2015.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none
of the Directors of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any Shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which (i) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (i) were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the register referred
to therein; or (iii) were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions
by Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

INTERESTS DISCLOSABLE UNDERTHE SFO
AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed below, as at the date of this report, there was
no other person (other than a director or chief executive officer
of the Company) who had any interests and short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO.
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Long position in Shares
RBGBzH#R

Interest in

underlying Total interest %
Name of Directors Interest in shares shares in shares Shareholding
Esps R4 2 #% REERG 2 #R R}z Bz RERDL
Mr. Guan Guisen (Note) 1,311,792,000 (L) - 1,311,792,000 (L) 18,80%
BEREE (M) 1,140,000,000 (S) - 1,140,000,000 (S) 16.33%
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Note 1: The shares are held by Mighty Advantage Enterprises
Limited (“Mighty Advantage”). Mighty Advantage is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is beneficially
owned by Mr. Guan Guisen.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the year.

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
with the standards of good practice concerning the general
management responsibilities of the Board of Directors as set
out in Chapter 5 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout year
ended 31 December 2017

FIVEYEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of financial position of our
Group is set out on pages 239 and 240 of this annual report.

AUDITORS

RSM was re-appointed as auditor of the Company. A resolution
for the re-appointment of RSM Hong Kong will be put at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board

Mr. Guan Guisen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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Pursuant to the Rule 18.44 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “"GEM
Listing Rules”), the Board of Directors of CIP (the “Board”) is
pleased to present the corporate governance report for the year
ended 31 December 2017 The Hong Kong Governance Code
is available at www.hkex.com.hk. This report highlights the key
corporate governance practices of the Company.

The Board continues to monitor and review the Company's
corporate governance and makes necessary changes at an
appropriate time.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to protect the interests of the
shareholders of the Company. The Company's corporate
governance practices are based on principles and code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
("Code”) in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with the Code for the year ended 31
December 2017

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group adopted the required standard of dealings set out
in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions in securities
of the Company. Upon the Company’s specific enquiry, each
director had confirmed that during the year ended 31 December
2017 they had fully complied with the required standard of
dealings and there was no event of non-compliance.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board's fundamental responsibility is to exercise its best
judgement and to act in the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders. The Board is responsible for overseeing
the management’s efforts to promote the Company’s Success
while operating in an effective and responsible manner. The
Board is able to delegate and confer on any executive Director
any of its powers, authorities and discretions for such time and
on such terms as it thinks fit.

The Board may at any time appoint any person who is willing to
act as a Director, either to fill a vacancy or as an addition to the
existing Board. The total number of Directors shall not be less
than five nor should it exceed 25. Newly-appointed Directors
retire at the Annual General Meeting ("AGM") following
appointment and shall be eligible for election. The Board may
appoint any Director to hold any employment or executive
office and may revoke or terminate any such appointment.
Shareholders may, by ordinary resolution, appoint a person as a
Director or remove any Director before the expiration of his or
her period of office.

The Board regularly formulates our Group's overall business
strategies and monitors management's execution of such
strategies.

By discharging its responsibilities, the Board has defined the
business and governance issues for which it needs to be
responsible, and these matters reserved for the Board have
been separately defined, and are reviewed periodically, to
ensure that our Group maintains the proper level of corporate
governance and to ensure they are up to date. In this regard,
the Board:

° determines our Group’s mission, provides its strategic
direction and is responsible for the approval of strategic
plans;

46 China Innovationpay Group Limited

Annual Report 2017

Exg
EENEANTERITEEREHE MIAKR
RAMERROZENSTE - EFEAT
EAEMFBEETANEENRAREEER
BB HUESARRIK - EFEARNE
RREEZERA - RERREA Z G
REEAHES R EBEERTIETE
MHITES-

EEgnBEREZETARERIEnELE
B UNEAZRIMARGESTSHEN
HEE - ERHBNE NI EE25(T -
METCESAERZ TR ZBRRBFRE
(IERBFREg]) LER HEEEBRREE
F-EFQRInETMNESEETEMNXRER
7S TTIRRAL - Al B SR EEA B R R
T-BRRABABEBRBARZTESTIAEE
0] 5 55 {1 H Je ok A S5 L B

ST HRIEARENBEXHRER
EEEEHZE REEHMT

B

BRETHET EEeCRAEAAREN
EBREAER MAESSRENERE
HEREFRTE NETHEN  UBRAE
BERFEEKFNERER MEERAEDX
BAREEF UM E BEFE:

. HEARBEN B R RAAKEREHER
BEIEFE R - B B WAL R AR M S



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EER

=+

s

approves the annual business plan and budget proposed
by management;

retains full and effective control over our Group and
monitors management with regard to the implementation

of the approved annual budget and business plan;

appoints the Chief Executive Officer, who reports to the
Board, and ensures that succession is planned;

approves our Group’s financial statements, interim and
annual reports;

determines our Group’s communication policy;
determines director selection, orientation and evaluation;
ensures that our Group has appropriate risk management,
internal control, internal audit and regulatory compliance;

procedures in place and that it communicates adequately
with shareholders and stakeholders;

establishes Board sub-committees with clear terms of
reference and responsibilities as appropriate;

defines levels of delegation in respect of specific matters,
with required authority to Board sub-committees and
management;

monitors non-financial aspects pertaining to the business
of our Group;

considers and, if appropriate, declares the payment of
dividends to shareholders; and

regularly evaluates our Group's performance and
effectiveness.
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To better serve the long term interests of our stakeholders,
the Board dedicates certain matters which require particular
time, attention and expertise to be devoted to its committee.
The Board has determined that these matters are better
dealt with by the committees as they require independent
oversight and specialists input. As such, the Board has
established four committees to assist the Board: Audit
Committee, Risk Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee. Each of the committees has
terms of reference which clearly specifies its powers and
authorities. All committees report back to the Board and make
recommendations to the Board if necessary.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

As at 31 December 2017, the Board comprised three Executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors.
Details of biographical details of directors and senior
management are set out on page 29 to 34 of this annual report.
The Board complies with the minimum requirements of the
GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors and one of them has the
appropriate professional qualifications required under Rule 5.05
of the GEM Listing Rules.

Board Meetings

The Board has adopted good corporate governance practices
and procedures, formal notice of at least 14 days will be given
in respect of a regular meeting. For special board meeting,
reasonable notice will be given. Directors participated, either
in person or through other electronic means of communication
in the Board meetings. The Board meets regularly at least
four times every year. The directors participated in person or
through electronic means of communication. All notices of
board meetings were given to all directors, who were given an
opportunity to include matters in the agenda for discussion. The
finalized agenda and accompanying board papers were sent to
all directors at least 3 days prior to the meeting.
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All directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major
changes that may affect the Group’s businesses, including
relevant rules and regulations. Directors can also seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties at
the Company's expense, if necessary. The Company Secretary
records the proceedings of each board meeting in detail by
keeping detailed minutes, including all decisions by the Board
together with concerns raised and dissenting views expressed
(if any). All minutes are open for inspection at any reasonable
time on request by any director. 8 Board meetings were held
in 2017 The attendance of each director at Board, committee
meetings and annual general meeting (“AGM"), whether in
person or by means of electronic communication, is detailed in
the table below:

FIEESE IS ERENA Y ERNREREK
MEREE) BEARRALRIINET -
EENANFERSKBLEXER AE
THEZERS ERBARRAE R
ENBRESTEERNARRFLFANG S
i BHEMEESERENESROMNE
BRERENERZ (WNE) - EESAEEM
RENKEREMAESRLE - EFERN
T LHERTBREZ -BEFHEEFE
ZEGERMBRBEARE ([BRBFAX
) (TwmBRFINEFBEASTR)WIER
HEN TR

Independent
Audit Nomination Remuneration Board
Committee Committee Committee AGM Committee
ENZER REZE® MZES RRBEAE JBIEEZEE
Mr. Guan Guisen 7/8 N/A 11 1”1 " N/A
BERLE TEA TER
Dr. Fong ChiWah 8/8 5/5 11 1 1" 11
FEEL
Mr. Wang Zhongmin 38 3/5 N/A N/A N/A 17
(Resigned on MEA TEA TER
8 March 2018)
THRAREE
(RZE-N\5F
ZANHET)
Mr. Gu Jiawang 8/8 5/5 11 11 " "
ABE S
Mr. Cao Chunmeng 8/8 N/A 11 1”1 1”1 N/A
EHRELE TER TERA
Mr. Yan Xiaotian 8/8 N/A N/A N/A il N/A
BERLE TEA NEA TEA TEA
Mr. Xu Yanging 1/8 1/5 N/A N/A N/A N/A
(Appointed on MNER TERA TER TER
4 August 2017)
BRESEE
(RZF—+F
NAMBEZT)
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At the Board meetings, the Board discussed on a wide range
of matters, including the Group’s overall strategies, financial
and operational performances, approved the annual, interim and
quarterly results of the Group, the appointment of directors,
business prospects, regulatory compliance and corporate
governance, and other significant matters. The company
secretary, in consultation with the Chairman and the senior
management team, prepares the agendas for each meeting
and all directors are given the opportunity to include matters for
discussion in the agenda. The company secretary also ensures
that all applicable rules and regulations in relation to the Board
meetings are followed. The company secretary sends notice
of the Board meeting to each of the directors at least fourteen
days in advance of each regular Board meeting. The company
secretary also sends the agendas, board papers and relevant
information relating to the Group to each of the directors at
least three days in advance of each regular Board meeting
and committee meeting, and keeps the directors updated on
the Group's financial performance and latest developments. If
any director raises any queries, steps will be taken to respond
to such queries as promptly and fully as possible. If there is
potential or actual conflict of interests involving a substantial
shareholder or a director, such director would declare his
interest and will abstain from voting on such matters. The
directors may approach the Company’s senior management
team when necessary. The directors may also seek independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense in appropriate
circumstances.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separate
and not performed by the same individual to avoid power
being concentrated in any one individual. The Chairman of
the Company is primarily responsible for the leadership and
effective running of the Board and ensuring that all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely and
constructive manner, whereas the Chief Executive Officer is
primarily responsible for the running of the Group’s business
and implementation of the Group's strategies in achieving the
overall commercial objectives.

The Chairman also encourages all directors, including the
independent non-executive directors, to actively participate in all
board and committee meetings.

Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

All directors are appointed for a specific term. All the executive
directors and independent non-executive directors of the
Company are engaged on a service contract of appointment.
With the Company for a term as stated in pages 40 to 41 of this
report. Besides, the procedures and process of appointment,
reelection and removal of directors are laid down in the
Company's Bye-laws. According to Bye-laws, all directors of
the Company are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and are eligible for re-election at annual
general meetings of the Company. Any new director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall submit himself for re-
election by shareholders at the first general meeting and any
new director appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board
shall submit himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at
the next following annual general meeting.
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In accordance with Bye-laws, Mr. Cao Chunmeng, Mr. Yan
Xiaotian, Dr. Fong Chi Wah and Mr. Xu Yanging shall retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. The Board
recommends their re-appointment. The Company’s circular, sent
together with this annual report, contains detail information of
the above four directors as required by the GEM Listing Rules.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers
that all the independent non-executive directors to be
independent.

Directors’ Training

All directors should keep abreast of the responsibilities as
a director, and of the conduct and business activities of the
Company. The Company is responsible for arranging and funding
suitable training for its directors. Accordingly, the Company
has put in place a training and development programme for
the directors including: an on-going training and professional
development programme for directors. The Company regularly
organizes the seminars for the directors.

In addition, individual Directors also participated in other
courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director or further enhancement of their professional
development by way of online aids or reading relevant materials.

All executive and independent non-executive Directors had
provided the Company Secretary with their training records for
the year under review.
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Directors’ Code of Ethics

The directors observe a code of ethics (the “Code of Ethics”)
which is formulated and adopted to enhance the standard of
corporate governance and corporate behavior. The principles
on which the Code of Ethics relies are those that concern
transparency, integrity, accountability and corporate social
responsibility taking into account the relevant provisions and
requirements by the governing authorities.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The Remuneration Committee was established on 30 June
2005. The Remuneration Committee is with the responsibility
of approving the remuneration policy for all Directors and senior
executives. The Remuneration Committee members include all
directors as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Guan Guisen
Mr. Cao Chunmeng

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Fong Chi Wah
Mr. Wang Zhongmin
(Resigned on 8 March 2018)
Mr. Gu Jiawang
Mr. Xu Yanqing (Chairman)
(Appointed on 4 August 2017)
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All Remuneration Committee members met at the end of the
year for the determination of the remuneration packages of
Directors and senior management of the Group. In addition,
the Remuneration Committee members also meet as and
when required to consider remuneration related matters. The
works carried out by the Remuneration Committee are set
out below: (a) to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure of remuneration of Directors
and the senior management and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on
such remuneration; (b) to determine the specific remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and the senior management,
including benefits in kind, provident/retirement benefits and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment, and
make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration
of independent non-executive Directors; (c) to review and
approve performance-based remuneration by reference to
corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board from time
to time; (d) to review and approve the compensation payable
to executive Directors, senior management in connection
with any loss or termination of their office or appointment to
ensure that such compensation is determined in accordance
with relevant contractual terms and that such compensation
is otherwise fair and not excessive for the Company; and (e)
to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure
that such arrangements are determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms and that any compensation payment
is otherwise reasonable and appropriate.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE:

The Nomination Committee was established on 30 June
2005. The Nomination Committee made recommendations
to the Board on the appointment of Directors and the senior
management personnel with reference to certain guidelines
as endorsed by the Nomination Committee members. The
Nomination Committee members include all directors as
follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Guan Guisen
Mr. Cao Chunmeng

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Fong Chi Wah
Mr. Wang Zhongmin
(Resigned on 8 March 2018)
Mr. Gu Jiawang (Chairman)
Mr. Xu Yanging
(Appointed on 4 August 2017)
Mr. Wang Zhengmin
(Resigned on 8 March 2018)

The nomination committee is responsible in reviewing and
monitoring the structure, size, composition and diversity
of the Board in light of the group’s strategy, identifying
qualified individuals to be new Board members, assessing the
independence of independent non-executive directors, and
reviewing and monitoring the implementation of the board
diversity policies of the group.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Audit Committee comprises three independent
nonexecutive Directors who possess the appropriate business
and financial experience and skills to understand financial
statements. The current Committee is chaired by Dr. Fong Chi

Wah, and the other Audit Committee members are Mr. Gu
Jiawang and Mr. Xu Yanging. Under its terms of reference for
audit committee passed under a directors’ resolution dated
30 June 2005, is required, amongst other things, to oversee
the relationship with the external auditors, to review the
Group’s preliminary results, interim results and annual financial
statements and to monitor compliance with statutory and listing
requirements, to engage independent legal or other advisers as
it determines is necessary and to perform any investigations.

Dr. Fong Chi Wah (Chairman)
Mr. Gu Jiawang
Mr. Xu Yanging

(Appointed on 4 August 2017)
Mr. Wang Zhongmin

(Resigned on 8 March 2018)

The audit committee is responsible for handling company issues
with external auditor, reviewing financial data and information,
overseeing the financial reporting system and internal control
procedures.

Financial Statements

The Audit Committee held meetings to discuss the Group's
quarterly results, interim results, preliminary results
announcement and Annual Report. The Audit Committee
reviews and discusses the management’s reports and
representations with a view to ensuring that the Group's
consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and compliance with the GEM Listing
Rules and other legal requirements.

The Audit Committee and the Company’s external auditors
have reviewed the Company's financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2017 and has provided advice and
comments thereon.
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The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and retention of the external
auditors.

External Auditor

The Group engaged RSM Hong Kong to provide services in
connection with the audit of the Company's consolidated
financial statements and other professional services.

Auditors’ Remuneration
During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to
the Company’s auditors, RSM Hong Kong, is set out as follows:
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BB N &
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¥ (FR)BAMEHAOMEIT

Fees

paid/payable

B/ ENER

HK$'000

Services rendered MRS FATT
Audit services 1% ER 7% 1,500
Other Assurance (Note 1) H e (FfsE1) 1,450
Non-audit services (Note 2) IEZ B (KIEE2) 14
TOTAL @ 2,964

Note 1: The other assurance fees paid/payable to the external auditor
were for the circular related assurance work on purposed
conditional acquisition of the Youzan Group.

Note 2: The non-audit service fees paid/payable to the external
auditors were for advice on taxation matters and for
preparation, review and submission of tax returns.
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DIRECTOR’S AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITY FORTHE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries, in accordance with
accounting principle generally accepted in Hong Kong. The
Directors’ responsibilities in the preparation of the financial
statements and the auditors’ responsibilities are set out in the
Independent Auditor's Report in this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

An internal control system, being an integral part of the
Company's operations, is a process effected by the Board and
management team to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the effectiveness and efficiency of operations in achieving
the established corporate objectives, safeguarding Company
assets, providing reliable financial reporting, and complying with
applicable laws and regulations.

The Board is responsible for making appropriate assertions on
the adequacy of internal controls over financial reporting and the
effectiveness of disclosure controls and procedures. Through
the Audit Committee, it regularly reviews the effectiveness of
the system.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company assists the Board by
ensuring good information flow within the Board and that Board
policy and procedures are followed. The company secretary is
also responsible for advising the Board on governance matters.

As an employee of the Company, Mr. Fung Kwok Leung, the
company secretary of the Company, has undertaken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training to update his
skills and knowledge in 2017.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHTS

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information
about the Company’s performance to shareholders through
the publication of quarterly reports and annual report. In
addition to dispatching circulars, notices and financial reports
to shareholders, additional information is also available to
shareholders on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company, which is updated regularly. The annual general
meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to raise
comments and exchange views with the Board. Shareholders
are encouraged to attend annual general meetings for which the
Company gives at least 21 days’ notice. The Chairman, Directors
and external auditors are available to answer questions on
the Company’s businesses at the meeting. The Company
values feedback from shareholders on its effort to promote
transparencies and foster investor relationships.
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Our Board of Directors is glad to deliver the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report (“ESG Report” or “this Report”)
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 (“this year”)
to all shareholders. This Report is our second ESG Report which
aims to present our undertakings on sustainable development.
In the current society, investors also value the contribution by
an enterprise to the environment and the society in addition
to its ability to enhance business performance for the best
interests of its shareholders.

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Report Compilation Basis

This Report has been prepared according to the core option
of the Global Reporting Initiative (“GRI”) G4 Guidelines, and
the "Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”
("ESG Reporting Guide") as set out in Appendix 20 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”). The Company has complied with the “comply
or explain” provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide.

In the reporting period, the Board of Directors has supervised
our strategies, policies and reports on environment, society
and governance issues, monitored continuous compliance, and
sought to improve operation of the Group through improving
efficiency of business operation and resource utilization and
taking environmental protection measures for realizing its
sustainable development, thus minimizing our carbon footprint
in the environment.

60 China Innovationpay Group Limited
Annual Report 2017

EECR2BERMARRAEERE_F
—tFFTA=+—RUEFELRFE])
FIRE e RERRE (RE -HEhE
AWE] RIAHE]) AHRE/EMNE
“HRR - HEREARE EEERRRK
MY FERRNAE -ERSHEEF &
BEEERNERESEESBRFLRKE
M EE - BRI EEERE R ERE
HEYE RS

BARA®RE

BERRMKE
AHERBEHRREEFAL (TGRI)
GMESIMNZDEERBEMARZMER
NAE ([EBR2FT]) GEME#H MR (T £
A 820578 BRI - L& REBEARSE
#Eal) (RE - e RERHREES]) MR
Ble ANRBTRR -HEREATREES
Pal [ TBSTRLARREE ] 5RDC

RBESHE EFEBAKEERE
2NRERTEHRE BRMME WER
SEBTEALSKEBRREHLENE
TRE R ERER NS BRI AR RRIURR
ait ANEARENEE EMEERD
EIREHE TR P -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RiE HERERRE

This ESG Report includes forward-looking statements, based
on a number of assumptions and expectations as at the issuing
date of this Report. Such assumptions and expectations
shall not be deemed to be reliable unless they are approved
by internal review procedures. Relevant statements include
known and unknown risks and uncertainty, which means that
the actual results may be different from these expectations,
predictions and conclusions in this Report. The Company does
not provide any guarantee on the accuracy of these statements,
and makes it clear that, if any of the statements do not come
true or are confirmed as incorrect, the Company shall not bear
any responsibilities on amendment or update of such forward-
looking statements.

Reporting Period and Formats of Report

This ESG Report covers all data and policies of main operation
regions in the PRC of our Group during the reporting period of
2017 Report (from January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017).

This Report is published in form of online edition and print
edition. The online edition is available on the designated website
(www.hkexnews.hk) of the Stock Exchange, and our Company’s
website (www.innovationpay.com.hk).

Miscellaneous

This report shall be published both in Chinese and English.
Should there be any discrepancy between the Chinese and the
English version, the English version shall prevail.

Contact Information

Should you have any query or feedback on the Report, please
contact us via the following methods:

Tel: (852) 2979 5223

Fax: (852) 2510 9662

Email: cip@innovationpay.com.hk

Official Website: www.innovationpay.com.hk
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OUR SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
CONCEPT

Social
HeE

Governance
=530
B /A

We understand that, the Company’s sustaining success
depends on sustainable development of business, premium
services provided by diligent and innovative employees for
clients and business partners, and valuable contributions of
certain stakeholders of the Group. The Group tries its best
to meet relevant local and international standards related to
its operation. The Group manages its businesses positively
adhering to environmental protection and responsibilities to
the society, which is in line with the adopted policies. The
Company has consolidated and identified five different kinds
of stakeholders involved in main businesses of the Group
into corresponding categories, including shareholders, clients,
employees, communities and the government.
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Stakeholders
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Issues of Major Concerns

TEFIEE

Communication Channels

B RE

Shareholders 1. Financial Performance a. Annual Report and Interim Report
IR AR5 FWRMPERE
. Corporate Governance b. Annual General Meeting and other
TEER meetings
. Corporate Image RERAFRgREMBRRERS
TEER c. HKEx Website
55 5 #uh
d. Company Website
UNSIEERA
e. Notices of Meetings and
Explanatory Materials
RNEgdE RFAME
Governance . Corporate Governance a. Cooperate with the government and
B TEER regulatory authorities on compliance
. Compliance with Laws and inspections
Regulations REBFREERENGRRE
BT ERER
Customers . Product/Service Quality a. Email and Phone Contacts
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. Risk Management b. Visits, Meetings and Seminars
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Employees . Job Security a. Internal Website
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. Salaries and Benefits b. E-mail
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. Reasonableness of Rules and

Regulations
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. Working Hours
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. Long-term Development
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c. Employee Welfare Committee
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d. Committee for Complaints
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e. Surveys/Forums
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Community
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. Compliance with Laws and

Regulations
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. Career Opportunities

RS

. Community Welfare Outreach
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The Company continually strengthens communication and
relationship with investors. Designated senior management
personnel keep close contact with shareholders and investors
through email, teleconference, one-to-one meetings,
participation in broker forums and non-trading roadshow or
other forms, so as to ensure shareholders and investors can
get latest information of the Group in a fair and timely manner,
helping them make investment decisions. The Company
will give a detailed and timely response to inquiries from
investors. The Company has made a materiality evaluation
to identify material matters in the Group's businesses
which have significant influence on economy, environment
and society, and are most important for stakeholders. In
accordance with evaluation results, the Company hopes to
make its commitments and undertake its responsibilities to all
stakeholders.
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Stakeholders

Our Commitments and Responsibilities

FMz=AHRE A BN ABERERE
Clients Provide safe, high-quality products and services
s Rt SnEEMRRE

Environment
IS

Save energy and reduce consumption, reduce waste of resources, respond
to climate changes, and develop circular economy

fEefERE R ERRE  EEHRKREL BREREHE

Shareholders/Investors

Keep sound operation, provide reasonable and sustainable returns

R, EE BiES RESEAFBERR
Employees Provide safe sites, good welfare and compensation, pay attention to their
8T health and occupational development

UL 25 RFENTE BT EMMNEEMBERER

Business Partners

Achieve mutual development on the basis of good faith

Annual Report 2017

BESERE LA AR KRR

Communities Make contributions to harmonious development and care of communities
ZanE AHEBEMEERHEER BEdR

Government Pay taxes by laws and conform to laws and regulations

12¢5] BOERT - BAR T
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ENVIRONMENT

Global warming and climate change have become major
environmental issues to the world. The Group aims to
minimize energy consumption and carbon emissions and
has been exploring ways of adopting operational model
which incurs less adverse impact on the environment.

The Group is committed to enhancing environmental
protection to minimize the impact of its activities on
the environment, and compliance with applicable
environmental laws. It is the Group’s policy to promote
clean operation and make the most efficient use of
resources in its operations, and minimize wastes
and emission. The Group encourages environmental
protection and promotes awareness towards
environmental protection to the employees. Green
office practices are encouraged such as turning off of
idle lights and electronic appliances to minimize energy
consumption and double-sided printing and copying.

The Group will review its environmental practices from
time to time and will consider implementing further
eco-friendly measures and practices in the operation
of the Group's business to move towards adhering the
3Rs — “Reduce”, “Recycle” and “Reuse” and enhance
environmental sustainability.

A1 Emissions

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of
third-party payment services which is rely heavily
on internet technology and related equipment. The
operations of the Group do not have significant
impact to the environment and do not generate
hazardous waste and air emission including
NOx, SOx and other pollutants. Greenhouse gas
emissions are indirectly generated from electricity
consumed at the Group’s workplace with minimal
emissions. The Group undertakes environmental
protection as part of its corporate responsibilities,
and it is fully aware of the importance of
sustainable environmental development in
achieving sustainability in its operations.
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The Group complies with environmental legislation,
encourages environmental protection and
promotes environmental protection awareness
to all employees. The Group has implemented
a number of measures such as reducing carbon
emissions, increasing energy efficiency and
conserving water resources in order to deliver
our commitment to environmental protection.
The Group has launched a number of waste
management programs, including recycling of
glass, paper and metal. Paper waste is our major
source of non-hazardous waste in the office. We
have promoted a paperless work environment to
reduce paper waste. The Group did not find any
records of significant waste disposal disposed of at
landfills during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2017
the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with relevant standards, rules and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Al1 Waste Management

The Company regularly monitors the
consumption volume of paper, toner
cartridges and ink cartridges and have
implemented a number of reduction
measures. The Group’'s office has also
provided suitable facilities and encouraged
our staff to sort and recycle the wastes to
achieve the objectives in mitigating wastes,
reusing and recycling in its operations. The
Group maintains high standard in waste
reduction, educates our employees the
significance of sustainable development
and provides relevant support in order
to enhance their skills and knowledge in
sustainable development.

China Innovationpay Group Limited
Annual Report 2017
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Apart from recycling, the office has
implemented various programs and activities
to encourage employees to participate in
waste reduction management, including:

- Promote green information and
electronic communication, such as
e-mail and electronic workflows,
to implement “paperless system”
concept;

- Place “Green Message"” reminders on
office equipment;

- Utilize used envelopes and double-
side printing. Paper for single-side
printing would be only adopted
when handling official documents
and confidential documents when
necessary; and

- Recommend the use of recycled
paper.

The Group adheres to waste management
principle and strives to properly manage and
dispose wastes produced by our business
activities. Our waste management practice
has been complied with relevant laws
and regulations relating to environmental
protection.
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A12 Greenhouse Gases (“GHG ") Emission Al12 BERE ([EEZFFE])
b2 374
The consumption of electricity at the AEBEETHAZE 2R
offices is the largest indirect sources of BERAKEREREH
GHG emissions of the Group. During the GO E - ONE RN
year ended 31 December 2017 the Group's HE-Z—+tF+=-A
total carbon dioxides emissions through =+—HLEFE X%
consumption of electricity is amounted to EEAEEELEN_SA
approximately 150 tonnes and the total {b % 48 BE B = & 49150
carbon dioxides emission per employee was W8 A AL IE B — |1k
0.63 tonnes. The detailed summary of the BERN 42 2 50.63ME )R
GHG emission is shown as below: ERBHRZARNE
RINIAT
2017
Indicators ~E —E—+tfF
Total energy consumption (kWh) RERHFE T (TRE) 157,301
Equivalent to standard coal THERIZEE)
consumption (kg) of (Fz) 19,332
Total carbon dioxides emissions BRFEEEEN
through consumption of —E bIREBE RS
electricity (tonnes) (Wg) 150
Total carbon dioxides emission BAEE S/ BERE
per employee (tonnes) (WR) 0.63
The Group has implemented a number of AEEBCEERSE THE
measures to mitigate energy consumption 76+ LA B AR B8 R 8 #E
such as turning off the airconditioning Bl a0 - 78 7% 8 =k B 7
system at night or when leaving office, 8 2 22 38 R A - 1 I
keeping the office temperature at 25°C in RERE RN ERAER
summer and using LED lights or energy- ERR2BERERAE
saving light in the office, etc. PP LEDKE 3k & BE B9 %
RE o
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In addition to the above-mentioned
measures, the Group issues environmental-
related memorandum to its staff to
raise their awareness of environmental
preservation. Notices and posters relating
to the environmental information have been
placed in the offices to promote the best
practice of the environmental management.

The Group has complied with relevant
environmental laws and regulations,
including but not limited to Environmental
Protection Law of the PRC, Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of the PRC, Law of the PRC on
Prevention and Control of Air Pollution and
Environmental Protection and Law of Solid
Waste Pollution of the PRC. During the year
ended 31 December 2017 the Group was
not aware of any material noncompliance
with laws and regulations relating to the air
and GHG emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste that would have a
significant impact on the Group.

A2 Use of Resources

A2.1

Energy Consumption

Due to the business nature of the Group, the
volume of energy consumption, electricity
consumption and water consumption are
considered as relatively low, in particular
water consumption is very minimal. As
mentioned in the Aspect A1 section,
the Group has formulated policies and
procedures relating to the environmental
management, including energy
management. Electricity consumption and
petrol consumption account for a substantial
part of the carbon emission for the Group.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, REBEZEZT—tF+=
the Group's consumption in electricity were: A=+—BULtHFE XK
SEREEEA:

2017

Indicators ~ME s+t

Total energy consumption (kWh) BEIREREAR (TRE) 157,301
Total energy consumption B&E ROBFE BT

per employee (kWh/employee) (FEE 1EE) 667

On top of the measures of mitigating
the energy consumption mentioned in
previous section, the Group strives to
utilize telephone or video conference to
minimize face-to-face meeting in order to
reduce petrol consumption in traveling and
unnecessary business trips. The Group
encourages resources saving in daily office
operation and proactively fosters a low-
carbon corporate culture, which further
increases our employees’ awareness in
energy conservation.

A2.2 Water Consumption
The Group does not consume significant
water in its business activities. Regardless
of limited water consumption, the Company
still promote behavioral changes at office
and encourage water conservation. Pantry
and toilets are posted with environmental
messages to remind employees for water
conservation, which results in further
enhancing our employees’ awareness in
water conservation.

China Innovationpay Group Limited
Annual Report 2017
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During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Group's consumption in water cannot
be measured reliably since the majority of
water consumption were taken place in
public area of the rental office.

In addition, due to the nature of business,
the Group did not have physical products
for sale and therefore did not involve any
use of packaging materials. Therefore, this
disclosure is not applicable to the Group.

Environment and Natural Resources
The Group pursues the best practices in the
environment protection and focuses on the impact
of the Group's businesses to the environment
and natural resources. In addition to complying
with relevant environmental laws and regulations
as well as properly preserve the natural
environment, the Group has integrated the concept
of environmental protection into its internal
management and daily operations, with the aim of
achieving environmental sustainability.

The Group strives to promote environmental
protection and make effective use of resources. It
carries out continuous monitoring if the business
operations incur any potential impact to the
environment, and minimizes such impact to the
environment through promoting green office and
operating environment by adopting four basic
principles which comprise of reduce, reuse, recycle
and replacement. Where applicable, the Company
adopts green purchasing strategies and the
most practical technologies to protect our natural
resources.
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A3.1 Noises Follution
Due to the nature of business, the Group
did not involve in any business activities
that would generate noises pollution. This
disclosure is therefore not applicable to the
Group.

A3.2 Qutdoor Lightings
Due to the nature of business, the Group
did not involve in any business activities that
require outdoor lightings. This disclosure is
therefore not applicable to the Group.

A3.3 Landscape and Natural Habitat
Due to the nature of business, the Group
did not involve in any business activities
that would potentially place impacts on
landscape and natural habitat. This disclosure
is therefore not applicable to the Group.

SOCIETY

B1

Employment

The Group is committed to maintaining a diverse
workforce that includes age, gender, family
status, sexual orientation, disability, ethnicity,
religion and equal opportunities. The Group's
staff handbook contains polices in regards to
recruitment, promotion, discipline, working hours
and leave. The human resources department has
been responsible for ensuring all employees have
fully understood the contents of the handbook.
The management regularly reviews the Group's
remuneration and benefits policies in reference
to the market standards and is committed to
safeguarding the rights and interests of the staff.
Remuneration and benefits have been adjusted on
an annual basis in accordance with the employees’
individual performance, contribution and market
conditions.

China Innovationpay Group Limited
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Team Profile

The Group actively recruits high caliber talents of
different nationalities, genders, ages and religions
in a fair and equitable manner through social
media such as online platforms and newspaper
advertisements. Across our diversified online
business portfolio, the employee’s gender, female
employees accounted for approximately 42% of
total labor force and male employees accounted for
the remaining 58%. As for employees’ distribution
by age for the reporting period, aged below 30
accounted for approximately 47%; aged 31 to 40
accounted for approximately 39%; aged 41 to 50
accounted for approximately 9%; and aged above
50 accounted for approximately 5%.

Workforce by Gender
REFIEISHNET
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Workforce by Age
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The Group believes in equality of opportunity and
treatment between male and female employees
because it is just and fair and promotes good
business and better performance. The Group
recognizes that equality at work between male and
female employees means a) discrimination is not
existed in the recruitment process to get the best
candidates for the appropriate vacancies; and b)
equality of opportunity in providing assignments
based on candidate’s merit and choice rather than
sex-typed preconceived notions by management.
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B2

During the year ended 31 December 2017 the
Group has fully complied with relevant rules and
regulations in the PRC, including the Company
Law of the PRC, the Contract Law of the PRC,
the Labor Contract Law of the PRC and the
Regulations on Labor Inspection and Security, as
well as the statutory requirements in Hong Kong,
including the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 57
of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Minimum Wages
Ordinance, the Personal Data Privacy Ordinance
and other relevant rules and regulations. During the
year ended 31 December 2017 the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws
and regulations relating to employment and labor
practices.

Health and Safety
B2.1 Occupational Health and Safety

The Group has always placed emphasis
on occupational safety and has set up an
occupational health and safety management
system to provide a safe working
environment for office employees. The
operation of the Group belongs to general
office operation and does not involve high-
risk or high hazard work. However, the
Company identifies potential safety risk in
the workplace and establish various safety
practices. All staff must adhere to the
safety guidelines. The Group provides its
staff with relevant health and safety training
such as fire safety and first aid knowledge
training. In addition to the international labor
standards and laws, the Group has created
internal guidelines and systems specific to
its industry to make sure that the employees
would discharge their duties effectively.

China Innovationpay Group Limited
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During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Group has complied with relevant
rules and regulations in the PRC, including
the Law of the PRC on Work Safety and
Occupational Disease Prevention and
Control Law of the PRC, as well as the
legislative requirements in Hong Kong,
including the Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance.

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with the health and safety laws
and regulations.

B3 Development and Training

B3.1

Staff Development and Training

Employees are regarded as the Group's
largest and most valuable assets and the
core of competitive advantage. They provide
the driving force for continuous innovation
and development to the Group. The Group
provides its staff with training courses for
upgrading skills and development as needed.
Staff needs to upgrade their personal ability
to meet the requirements of rapid changing
e-commerce industry and the fast-growing
internet technology in order to enhance
competitiveness and provide better service
to our clients. The Group recognizes that
equipping employees with the appropriate
knowledge not simply benefits our long term
development, but the society as a whole.
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Understanding that employees are a vital
factor for success in the competitive
industry and promotion of innovation,
the Group continues to provide a wide
range of training opportunities in 2017 The
comprehensive training and development
opportunities were as follows:

Internal

A AR

Training Course

IEHlRE

TRAINING

3

Orientation Trainin

BRI (42 EF)

External

IEREE

TARGET
R

New employees

#iE&

g (Headquarter)

EERHEMINITERF
Mg ERIF T EANZ
(2SR Sy A
AEBR-_T—+FH
BTG IZ W 5T O
o RA B R
ST

Jn-site Visit

ernal Course

MRS R TE

SUMMARY OF TRAINING
EIIHE

Introduction of our Group's vision,
mission, culture, organizational structure,
rules and regulations

REBZES Fan b HEEE R
8l R IR BT 43

Orientation Trainin

AR (FBFT)

g (Department) New employees

¥EE

Training on operational standards, job
specifications, work procedures and
customer service etiquette for each
department of our Group
REE R EBPIEVIRIELER] - TIERRA - TE
MIZFE P RSB EE

Comprehensive Tr

Third-party Payment
F=7 X[ HRE 5F

aining on All employees

2REE

Comprehensive training on basic
knowledge, laws and regulations and daily
operation regarding third-party payment
BRE=F R ERME EEFNER
MAFEENGaE
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Management Training
BRI

TARGET
"R

Management Team
EREEK

SUMMARY OF TRAINING
BB E

Training specific to the management team
on building effective coaching techniques;
mastering problem analysis and decision
making; strengthening interpersonal
skills; and recognizing team success with
enthusiasm
EFHHEREEEGER AN B SRS
Al 2B RORFIF  1BR AR
TR RABEREEKKI R AEEEIE
*I5

English Course

All employees

Training on current English use

EERE ZRESR H & EEE
Recruitment Training Management Team Course from the understanding of the
RS E A TSI 18 E B X tasks involved with running a profitable

desk through to successful selling,
developing client relationships, essential
legislation and attracting and interviewing
quality candidates

WP REEENABNREER 2 ERE
BINHE  BREFPBIE  HHEEEKIRS
A R E S EFIREADRE

Training on Interpersonal Skills

ABRBE R IT I AR

All employees
TREESR

Course for employees to overcome
workplace obstacles by strategically
applying interpersonal communication
skills to persuade and negotiate their way
to positive results
FRERMEERABRBERERRITD AR
TER YRR B - 1T 30 AR S B g AERAS A5
fRAE R B TRI2
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Payment

Security Management of Third-party

FZN XN REEE

s 3
BIRMmE

TARGET

HR

Department of Risk
Management

2\ B 3 B P

SUMMARY OF TRAINING
BB E

Training on monitoring, controlling and
preventing suspicious transactions
regarding money-laundering, terrorist
activities, and etc.

ER -ERIRGIESROERE R ERE
HER R HHIEI

R 25

Fire Safety Training

All employees
TiEES

Training on fire prevention and fire escape
N K TER K E Bk A 5

RESHTRT &

Strategic Conference

Strategic Departments
and Management
Team
RESELPT I B IR E B X

Insightful educational sessions

on different topics regarding the
development of Chinese payment
industry and online service platform
BAPEINITERBLEREFEERRN
AN[R) 5 e Y R S M G

Training on Anti-money Laundering

Department of Risk

Training of basic knowledge, laws and

o R iR E Management regulations, daily operation and related
| Bex & 22 HB P knowledge about Money-laundering

AW AEEN BERERBMEKR
5% B9 A8 B8 AN Y EE I

The Group encourages and supports rEEHBEEIFES

employees to participate in personal and SEEARFEEZI

professional training to fulfill the needs of VAT & 3 BB 2 3F

emerging technologies and new equipment. HEZT K- AEEINE

The Group also encourages the culture of B > = FN G B A8 B 9 X

sharing of knowledge and experience. The ft-AEEEZRARNEE

Group has made good use of its internal R EREREEEREN

resources to organize various forms of BT BREHAE

training for its office in the PRC, including BWARERXAEI

management, customer service and financial BREER BEPRB R

knowledge with the assistance of the Hong RS NGS5 o

Kong Office of General Services.
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Labor Standards

The Group strictly prohibits employing any child
labor or forced labor in its operations in Hong Kong
and the PRC. The Group has established a well-
defined recruitment process which examines the
background of candidates and a formal reporting
procedure for handling any exception. During the
recruitment process, the age of the applicant is
verified against the identity documents of the
applicant. In addition, the Group conducts regular
reviews and inspections to prevent any child labor
or forced labor in operation.

In the meantime, the Group also avoids engaging
vendors and contractors which are already known
to be employing child labor or forced labor in their
operations. The Group has complied with the
Employment of Children Regulations (Chapter 57B
of the Laws of Hong Kong) under the Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), the Convention on the Abolition of Forced
Labor with respect to Employment of Workers,
the Labor Law of the PRC on the Employment
of Adolescents under the Age of 16 and their
Legal Rights and Interests and Provisions on the
Prohibition of Child Labor in the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2017
the Group has complied with all the laws and
regulations relating to the prevention of child labor
or forced labor. The Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations
relating to employment and labor practices.

TR
AEEBRELEEBRDE
¥R MBERET RS 4
T -ALECRYBREEE
ABEHNTENHBERERE
38 (F {7 1l SN 350 9 IE = 19 3R
ERRR ERERRET UE
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57BE) - BHEEAS T (BE
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B (PEISENE) AR (RE
ZIHFERETIRE) °
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B5

B6

Supply Chain Management

Given that the Group does not engage in
production and consumption of raw materials,
it is unnecessary to categorize the region of
suppliers and record the number of suppliers. Our
procurements are mainly office supplies. While
purchasing products, impacts on environment
will be considered during procurement process
and products made from renewable materials are
preferred.

Product Responsibility

Quality and Safety of Products and Services

The Group pays high attention to the quality and
safety of its services. The Group has established
relevant quality and safety inspection policies
for different projects, communicates with our
customers and confirms their project expectation
and direction prior launching any project, and
actively coordinates projects with customers in the
process of providing services.

Intellectual Property Management

The Group's day-to-day operations involve the use
of the intellectual property owned by customers,
suppliers or the Group itself. Therefore, the
protection of intellectual property rights is an
extremely important task for the Group.

The Group stringently protocols the guideline of
Network Security Law of the PRC (FFZE AR
HAMBEMWEZ 2)%), take as much as possible
measures to protect customer data from leakage.
There was no reported leakage of customer data
during the year of 2017 We attach great importance
to intellectual property, any products or service
that violate or infringe intellectual property rights
or counterfeit products are not allowed. Any non-
compliance cases that may constitute breach of
laws will be referred to the judiciary.
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When the Group engages with its customers
or suppliers, it will include the protection of
intellectual property in the contractual terms.
The Group's legal department will also review
all the contracts in operation and ensure that
the contractual terms protect both parties’
intellectual property rights. The Group also requires
technical professionals to sign strict confidentiality
agreements. Confidential information of our
customers is only accessible to employees who
are responsible for the corresponding project.

During the year ended 31 December 2017 the
Group has complied with relevant laws governing
the confidentiality of data and intellectual property,
including but not limited to Hong Kong Intellectual
Property Law, Patent Law of the PRC, Trademark
Law of the PRC and Copyright Law of the PRC.
During the year ended 31 December 2017 the
Group was not aware of any non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations related to product
responsibility.

Prevention of Corruption and Fraud
Preventive Measures, Enforcement and Monitoring
The Group has implemented the Prevention
of Commercial Bribery Management Policy,
strengthening its internal control mechanism, anti-
corruption and anti-bribery work so as to achieve
the business philosophy of “abiding by the law,
integrity and quality service”.

B7
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The Group has complied with major relevant laws
and regulations including Hong Kong's Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance and the Mainland's
Corruption Ordinance of the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2017 the
Group was not aware of any non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations related to anti-
corruption.

Anti-Money Laundering (“"AML ")

The company has formulated a set of anti-money
laundering policies based on the applicable local
and international anti-money laundering laws and
regulations. The principal local laws and regulations
involved: The Anti-Money Laundering Law of the
PRC (hEARAMBEIREEZE) , the Anti-Money
Laundering Regulations of Financial Institutions
(CRMEREEETE) , and the Administration
of Anti-Money Laundering and Anti-Terrorist
Financing for Payment Institutions {3z i # %
ROEBEMRZ MR EEE ML) . The Company
internal implemented policies include: Anti-
Money laundering training; Anti-Money laundering
auditing; Anti-Money laundering confidentiality
requirements; Anti-Money laundering special
requirement; Anti-Money laundering reporting
system; Anti-Money laundering management
policy; Suspicious transaction reporting system;
Terrorist Financing Risk Classification Management
and assessment; Customer Identification System;
Money laundering risk self-assessment system;
and Terrorist assets freeze measure.
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Efficiently cooperate with the regulators,
information sharing with related department
when any violations detected. Through continuous
training and stringent monitoring, employees at
all levels of the company possess a sense of
risk, legal awareness and compliance awareness,
shoulder their own responsibilities, and master
the necessary AML skills. Consequently, made
contribution to the equal and incorruptible society.

Community Investment

Contributions to Society

As a responsible company, the Group actively
strives to become a positive force in the
community and maintains close communication
and interaction with the community to contribute
to community development. The Group stays
proactive in fulfilling our responsibilities as a
corporate citizen not only the real community, but
also the online community

In the future, the Group will actively encourage
employees to contribute their time and skills
to community volunteer works to benefit local
communities by giving them opportunities to learn
more about social and environmental issues and
enhance the corporate value of the Group. The
Group will also consider from time to time to make
donations to charities when the Group records
aftertax profits and has sufficient funds.

B8
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Aspects Summary Details
=] Bt 15
Aspect Al: General Disclosure For more details,
EBHEA1 : — R EE please refer to Page
Emissions 65-69
1358 Information on: BAEZHE F2H
BRARBERIRERBHN M/KE MBS BERE | £65-698
EREEVNELSH:
(@) the policies; and
B K
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BTHBETABEAZENHEBEZZNERNE
o
Aspect A2: General Disclosure For more details,
[EEA2 : — = please refer to Page
Use of Resources 69-71
BIREA Policies on the efficient use of resources, including BEHEZFHE F2H
energy, water and other raw materials. %£69-718
BERFEAER (BIEEIR K REAMRM A BER
Aspect A3: General disclosure For more details,
[EEAS : — M= please refer to Page
The Environment and 71-72
Natural Resources Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact ERAELZHI5 BH2H
RERKAEIR on the environment and natural resources. F71-728
WIREITAHRBERRAEREKERNTERNBR -
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Aspects Summary Details
=] Bt 15
Aspect B1: General Disclosure For more details,
EHEB1 : — R EE please refer to Page
Employment 72-74
= Information on: EHREZFE H2H
BEATEENER: E72-748
(@)  the policies; and
BR K
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
BFHETAGBEAXENHBERNER
Aspect B2: General Disclosure For more details,
JEHEB2 : — A EE please refer to Page
Health and Safety 74-75
RS Information on: EHEEZE H2H8
BRANTRENER: 74-758
(@) the policies; and
B &
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
BTHETAGERTENHEBER LR
Aspect B3: General disclosure For more details,
BmEB3 : — = please refer to Page
Development and 75-78
Training Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills | B E Z %15 FLH
TR KE for discharging duties at work. Description of training | 875-788&
activities.
BRARTE B BT TIERE &Y A5 S R pe VUK - f it
HPlEE -
HEAIH X AEEERAR 85
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RIEHERERRSE
Aspects Summary Details
=] Bt 15
Aspect B4: General disclosure For more details,
[EEBS : — M EE please refer to Page
Labor Standards 79
& T %8| Information on: EHEEZFE H2H
BRAD IEZE T 3ol 55 T - E798
(@)  the policies; and
B K
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labor.
BTHBETABEAZENEBEZZNERNE
o
Aspect Bb5: General disclosure For more details,
JEEBS : — = please refer to Page
Supply Chain 80
Management Policies on managing environmental and social risks of | B E Z 15 B L H
HEEE R the supply chain. 808
EEHEENRR M ERARIBE-
Aspect B6: General Disclosure For more details,
[EEB6 : — MR = please refer to Page
Service 80-81
Responsibility Information on: BEHEZFHE F2H
RIS E(E BRAFRRHERMRENRREZ S B RENTL | 580-818H
BB EH AR A
(@) the policies; and
B &
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.
BTHETAGEATENHBEZZNERNE
o
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RIE HERERRSE

Aspects Summary Details

=] 1Lt 15

Aspect B7: General Disclosure For more details,
EEB7 : — M EE please refer to Page

Anti-corruption
RER

Information on:

BRA LS R MEFRIAREA

(@)  the policies; and
B K

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

81-83
EHEEZFHE B2H
%81-83H

laundering.

BTHETABEAXENEBEAERERNE

¥} o
Aspect BS: General Disclosure For more details,
[EEBS : — A EE please refer to Page
Community 83
Investment Policies on community engagement to understand the | B E Z %15 B2 H
HEKE needs of the communities where the issuer operates | 6838

and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
EENHEBHERTHETASEMELET EME
REZBEHEZERIMERFFAIBR -

TERAHZNEEERRATF
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BUZHARES

RSM

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA INNOVATIONPAY GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Innovationpay Group Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 98 to 238, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017 and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described
in the basis for qualified opinion paragraphs set out below,
the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017 and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BUZHERES

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

(a)

Impairment test for the Third Party Payment
Services CGU

As set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements, goodwill with carrying amount of
HK$698,554,000 was allocated to the cash-generating
unit (“CGU") of Third Party Payment Services and
the carrying amount of the CGU was assessed for
impairment by management. The recoverable amount
of the CGU was determined based on value in use
calculations. The Group prepared cash flow forecasts
for a four year period based on the assumption that the
CGU would experience significant growth of revenue
during the forecast period. Management considered
that the forecast revenue would be achieved because,
among other factors, the Group expected there would
be a synergetic effect upon its strategic development
of its Third Party Payment Services segment and the
Group’s expanding customer base upon completion of
the conditional acquisition of Qima Holdings Ltd. and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Target Group”) as
described in note 26.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (Contd)

(a)

90

Impairment test for the Third Party Payment
Services CGU (Cont'd)

However, the historical actual performance of Third Party
Payment Services had not met the Group’s forecast in
the past. Having considered management’s business
plans and the historical performance of the Third Party
Payment Services CGU which has incurred continuous
operating losses, we were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to support the appropriateness
of the assumptions related to the growth in revenue
and the resulting profits during the forecast period. As
a result, we were unable to determine whether any
impairment should be recognised for the Third Party
Payment Services CGU for the reporting period. Any
adjustments found to be necessary to the assumptions
related to the growth in revenue during the forecast
period would have a consequential effect on the
recoverable amount of the CGU including the goodwill.
Any impairment losses arising as a result of the revised
assumptions would have an effect on the Group's net
assets as at 31 December 2017 the net loss for the year
then ended and the disclosure related to impairment
losses in the consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BUZHERES

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (Contd)

(b) Recoverability of earnest money paid for

potential investments

As set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements, earnest money with carrying amount
of HK$73,246,000 was paid in connection with the
conditional acquisition of 51% equity interests of
the Target Group. Management determined that no
impairment is required for the balance because they
expect the acquisition will be completed in near future.

However, significant condition precedents for completion
of acquisition have not been fulfilled up to date of this
audit report. Should the Group be unable to complete
the acquisition the recoverability of the earnest money
would be in doubt. We were not provided with sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to support the Target Group's
capabilities to repay the earnest monies. Therefore, we
were unable to determine whether any impairment loss
is necessary, which would have a consequent impact on
the financial position of the Group at 31 December 2017
and on the Group's financial performance for the year
then ended.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified
opinion.
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BUZHERES

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The
Other Information comprises all of the information included in
the 2017 annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this Other Information, we
were required to report that fact. As described in the Basis
for Qualified Opinion section above, we were unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate evidence about the carrying amount of the
Third Party Payment Services CGU and impairment losses on
this CGU, if any. We were also unable to determine whether any
impairment loss should be recognised in respect of the earnest
money paid for potential investments with carrying amount
of HK$73,246,000. Accordingly, we were unable to conclude
whether or not the Other Information is materially misstated
with respect to these matters.

92 China Innovationpay Group Limited
Annual Report 2017

Hiw&

EFAHHMENER HMWEMBRE_-F
—tFFRABZABER (BRE M B RE
B HFW BN TS ERRIN) o

U>

BEAMBERRNBEAL TIREEMBE

Tﬂ&%ﬁ@ﬁﬂ%%@ﬂ%ﬂ

L
Ve
s

= 3 I
IH
W
éf

o
ko

i
£}

Mok

BEREAMBHRERE BEENEER
ﬁﬂﬁﬂ Rit@ies  ZEHEMER
/*/\ﬁﬁkiﬁ%& ENEZBIET

ERBERERE i%M?ﬁiﬁiﬁ

g A =
& A ?E'n‘a‘# i
= 3 \E?' i JHi

o

p=lllg
Gl

ENEFCHTNIE MEFRRS
b B F A E AR %%2 H
BB EXREBEREE M BF
/£H>Z *ﬁfﬁ"kfﬁi'zﬁﬁlﬁkfﬁﬁﬁi 5 {37
ﬁ%ﬁ@&lﬁtfﬁiﬁi SAORERBRE (IA)
IARBERE BENELEESS AR
B X TERE{E /&73,246,0008 T 2 BERE
HESREMRERSE AL BF8X
R FEEMEEMENREAEAERR

]]H ﬁf]
lI

i&t

Ot



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BUZHERES

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO
GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2 in the consolidated financial
statements, which indicate that the Group incurred loss from
continuing operations attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to HK$112,192,000 and recorded operating cash
outflow of HK$213,641,000 during the reporting period. The
Group has contracted to acquire 51% equity interests of the
Target Group subject to certain condition precedents, and the
Target Group had net current liabilities (excluding deferred
revenue) of approximately RMB61 million at 31 October 2017
as disclosed in the Company's circular dated 2 January 2018.
These conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. Except for the matters described in the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section and the
Basis for Qualified Opinion section, we have determined that
there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our
report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BUZHARES

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FORTHE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BUZHERES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BUZHERES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Contd)

96

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BUZHEARES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Contd)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Yam Tak Fai, Ronald.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants
29th Floor, Lee Garden Two
28Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

27 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

HV—F }Eﬁll ’13—‘%

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

T+t HF+RA=+—HItFE

2017 2016
—E—tF T RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHET
Continuing operations FESEER
Revenue S 8 207,856 80,182
Cost of sales BHE A (181,754) (56,227)
Gross profit EX 26,102 23,955
Other income H AU A 9 27,331 24,946
Selling expenses HEE M (23,812) (16,917)
Administrative expenses T (160,623) (125,040)
Equity-settled share-based payments REGEE R A (21,843) (48,415)
Loss from operations REFHE (152,845) (141,471)
Share of losses of associates il l/N ) = 21 (1,754) -
Impairment of investments in associates F B & A 7] 2 WA FE 21 (21,286) -
Impairment of amount due from JE Y — AT Bt i 1 A
an associate KIBRE 21 (3,469) -
Impairment of amount due from FEW — & IEFEAR AR R
a non-controlling shareholder FIERE 27 (752) -
Impairment of goodwill EESNEAE! 19 - (12,301)
Gain/(loss) on fair value change of ERNSARERTE
contingent consideration payables 2y (E18) 34 44,558 (70,984)
Loss before tax PREBIAIE 1B (135,548) (224,756)
Income tax credit FTigiiiE e 1 454 242
Loss for the year from continuing REFELCEER 2
operations FAEE 12 (135,094) (224,514)
Discontinued operations ERIEREXEK
Loss for the year from discontinued BERIFREER
operations FAEE 15 - (4,383)
Loss for the year KEERFIE (135,094) (228,897)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

] = N2
%ﬁ?iﬁ%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE-_T—tHF+-A=T—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—XF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FTHExT T
Attributable to: LT ALHER:
Owners of the Company ZiN/NIE PPN
— Continuing operations —FEREES (112,192) (210,128
— Discontinued operations —ERIEREER - (4,294)
(112,192) (214,422)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR
— Continuing operations — B T (22,902) (14,386)
- Discontinued operations —BERIEEEETR - (89)
(22,902) (14,475)
(135,094) (228,897)
HK cents HK cents
AL S
Loss per share BRER 16
From continuing and discontinued RERFERDKZILERESE
operations 3
Basic AR (1.67) (3.53)
Diluted g N/ARER NATEA
From continuing operations REFELEET
Basic BN (1.67) (3.46)
Diluted e N/A RER NATEA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GeRRREMEEWRAR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE_ZT—tS+-_A=1T—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —ZT—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
Loss for the year TEEEE (135,094) (228,897)
Other comprehensive income: HhZEUWA :
Items that may be reclassified to AJBEEF P E B o HE -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating MEBIINEB 2 EH Z5
foreign operations 60,003 (64,323)
Exchange differences reclassified RHEGINERREN DR
to profit or loss on disposals of EEnCERER
foreign operations 21 2,998
Other comprehensive income FREMEPERA
for the year, net of tax NEKRBiE 60,024 (61,325)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEBALLE (75,070) (290,222)
Attributable to: BUR AT HEfh:
Owners of the Company ZINNEIEFE DN
— Continuing operations —REKEER (52,168) (271,453)
- Discontinued operations — BRI EER - (4,294)
(52,168) (275,747)
Non-controlling interests AR HE =
— Continuing operations —FHEBREER (22,902) (14,386)
- Discontinued operations — BRI EER - (89)
(22,902) (14,475)
(75,070) (290,222)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e AR RR

AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

WZZE—tF+=-RA=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZT—XRF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHETT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% BE K& 17 12,754 12,882
Intangible assets mVEE 18 2,706 7154
Long term deposits RHiE® 25 2,823 3,978
Goodwill Bk 19 698,554 653,432
Investments in associates REERRZIEE 21 15,099 -
Available-for-sale financial assets AN ENKEE 22 108,227 100,620
Deposits for investments in associates ~ Bt& QA AR EIL S 43 - 2,233
Earnest money paid for potential REBEEREENHES
investments 26 73,246 33,490
913,409 813,789
Current assets REBEE
Inventories rE 23 2,710 3,153
Trade receivables JEE W5 BR 3R 24 26,762 20,507
Prepayments, deposits and other FENFIE - EZe Rk
receivables Hh JlE U5 3K 25 133,952 54,218
Amount due from an associate JiE U — eV Bt 2 2 B) 5008 21 - 3,349
Amounts due from non-controlling JiE U B BB R R FEE A%
shareholders of subsidiaries T 27 290 855
Financial assets at fair value through BAVEGFATEERER
profit or loss B EE 28 9,658 -
Restricted bank balances X PR FIER 1T ER 29 1,102 -
Bank and cash balances RIT RIS LR 30 304,612 185,422
479,086 267504
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade payables JERTBR K 31 4,982 2,418
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A I H fth < 5B 32 152,445 120,033
Amount due to a director B —RESFHIA 33 3 3
Current tax liabilities BEAf B & & 2,526 2,453
Contingent consideration payables JERT S AKRIE 34 - 40,278
Financial guarantee BB IR 35 - 23,756
159,956 188,941
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R IR R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

R_E—tF+-A=+—H

2017 2016

—B—+tF ZZ—RF

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

B 5 FET FHET

Net current assets RBEEFRE 319,130 78,563

Total assets less current liabilities BREERRBER 1,232,539 892,352
Non-current liabilities FRBEE

Contingent consideration payables JERT AR ME 34 - 33,582

Deferred tax liabilities EEFIAAE 36 - 441

- 34,023

NET ASSETS BEEZFE 1,232,539 858,329
Capital and reserves BERK#1E

Share capital &N 37 69,790 60,993

Reserves f#H 39 1,170,390 781,811

Equity attributable to owners of RARHEE AEGHEZ

the Company 1,240,180 842,804

Non-controlling interests FEIE IR HE 2 (7.641) 15,625

TOTAL EQUITY R 1,232,539 858,329

Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2018 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Guan Guisen
BERELE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SeEREER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-_T—tHF+-A=T—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAEER AL
Share Share Non-
Share  premium Capital ~ Statutory  Exchange option Warrant  Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve loss Total interests equity
BRE ARER FER

Bx RBEEE ARRE  IERE  EiRR e e REER aF Bi  REAE
HKS000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK§000 ~ HKS000  HK$000  HK§000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Thr  TET  TET  TErT  TEn  TEn  TEx  TER  TER  TET  TEx

At 1 January 2016 RZB-—~"§-A-8 60,158 1,151,475 (2,850) 9,898 27316 61,606 1,000 (263,983) 1,044,620 27697 1,072,317
Total comprehensive income FRZAMAEE

for the year - - - - (61,325) - - (214,422 (275,747) (14,475) (290,222
Deregistration of a subsidiary HHE-RNBARA - - 1,733 - - - - (1,733) - - -
Acquisition of non-controlling Wi R ER

interests - - - - - - - - - 544 544
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR - - - - - - - - - 1759 1,759
Issued for contingent FARERDEST

consideration shares 463 16,741 - - - - - - 16,204 - 16,204
Exercise of share options TEBRE n 13,081 - - - (4,141) - - 9312 - 9312
Share-based payments RiAE 3R - - - - - 48415 - = 48,415 - 48,415
Release upon lapse of NG TRV

share options - - - - - (2,442) - 2,442 - - -
Changes in equity for the year EREZED 83 28822 1,733 - (6138 41832 - [213713)  (201816)  (12172)  (213988)
At 31 December 2016 RZB-~%F

+=A=+-H 60,993 1,180,297 (1n7) 9,898 (34,009 103,438 1,000 (477696) 842,804 15,525 858,329

At 1 January 2017 RZZ—+F-F—H 60,993 1,180,297 (1,17 9,898 (34,009) 103,438 1,000 (477696) 842,804 15,5625 858,329
Total comprehensive income FR2ERALE

for the year - - - - 60,003 - - (112,192) (52,189) (22,902) (75,091)
Disposal of a subsidiary LE-BHEBAR - - - - 21 - - - 2 (264) (243)
Issued for placing shares RERNEST 7886 382,471 - - - - - - 390,367 - 390,357
Issued for contingent FARERDEST

consideration shares 695 31,249 - - - - - - 31,944 - 31,944
Exercise of share options TEERE 216 7562 - - - (2,378) - - 5,400 - 5,400
Share-based payments RiAE 3R - - - - - 21,843 - - 21,843 - 21,843
Release upon lapse of share options 1 & & R A 21 - - - - - (4,558) - 4,558 - - -
Changes in equity for the year FRERE 8797 421282 - - 60,024 14,907 - (107634 397376 (23,166) 374,210
At 31 December 2017 RZT—+F

+-A=t+-B 69,790 1,601,579 (1,17 9,898 26,015 118,345 1,000 (585,330) 1,240,180 (7641) 1,232,539
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERTREBMK

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 BHE - Z—+F+-_A=+—HItFE
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZT—RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHETT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHHEESRE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BT A& 1B
Continuing operations FEGE L (135,548) (224,756)
Discontinued operations ERIEREER - (4,383)
(135,548) (229,139)
Adjustments for: AT B IBFEE
(Gain)/loss on fair value change of ERT S ARERTE
contingent consideration payables BE) (W), B8 7(b) (44,558) 70,984
Interest income FLEUA 9 (1,465) (2,907)
Amortisation of financial guarantee HIEERE L8
contract 9 (24,606) (15,592)
Gain on fair value change of LA ER AL
financial assets at fair value BalRsWiBEE
through profit or loss NEEEZ U 9 (50) -
Share of loss of associates JE{GHE S R AR E 1B 1,754 -
Amortisation of intangible assets BiEmEEE 12 1,935 1,971
Depreciation of property, Y- HEREREBITE
plant and equipment 12 4,629 5,649
Loss/(gain) on disposals of HEWE - HE K
property, plant and equipment SEERE S (IhE) 12 36 (1)
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries, net HEWEB AR Z
Wiz - 558 12,15 (313) (3,633)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) FERE
of inventories ORERRE) 12 2,516 (137)
Impairment of amounts due from FE YT IE 12 AR AR 3R
non-controlling shareholders FIRRE 27 752 -
Equity-settled share-based payments AR #E 4 & M (H
X ERIE 21,843 48,415
Property, plant and equipment WESEEE - BB &
written off i 12 - 7
Impairment of intangible assets B EERE 18 2,869 -
Impairment of goodwill EERE 19 - 12,301
Impairment of amount due from JE Wi Bt 8 1 R
associate KIERE 3,469 -
Impairment of investments in iN:RMN]
associates WERE 21 21,286 -
Allowance for trade receivables JE LSt AR SR 4 24 5,072 -
Reversal of allowance for trade JE LT AR R R )
receivables 15, 24 - 612)
Allowance/(reversal of allowance) FENRIE ' &k
for prepayments, deposits and H qth pE U GRIE
other receivables (BEBRm) 12 31,430 (1,167)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MEEETMERRK

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE-_T—tHF+-A=T—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZT—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B3 FTHExT FHETT
Operating loss before working capital & E & & & AT~
changes KL EE (108,949) (113,861)
Increase in inventories FEEMm (2,262) (994)
(Increase)/decrease in trade FEMBR SR (38h0) B
receivables (11,775) 21,432
Increase in prepayments, ENFIE ek
deposits and other receivables H b fE Uk SR IR 8 N (117,479) (31,069)
Additions of financial assets at AT EEALERER
fair value through profit or loss LB EERNE (9,452) -
Increase in trade payables JE < BR 3% 0 2,564 533
Increase in accruals and TEIRERA K
other payables At JE 5 BRIB IS AN 32,412 86,837
Cash used in operations KEMARSE (214,941) (37122)
Interest received B U F B 1,300 2,610
Income tax paid TS - (146)
Net cash used in operating activities KE R TR FE (213,641) (34,658)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REEZBHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and BAME BB M&RE
equipment 17 (3,606) (4,680)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE - HWE K
plant and equipment REFTERIE - 7
Proceeds from disposals of HEMHEENKEE
available-for-sale financial assets Fr1S 3R - 464
Additions of intangible assets NEBRTEE 18 - (147)
Additions of associates NEHEE N A (37,884) -
Advance to an associate Bk 2=NSE-E - (3,500)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWEB QA 41(a)&(b) 70 (2,993)
Deposits for investments in associates B &A1& L& 43 - (2,233)
Earnest money paid for potential MEBEREENHES
investments 26 (36,023) (33,490)
Decrease in long term deposits REIZ SR 1,155 20,553
Increase in restricted bank balances PR I R 7T A5 BRI AN (1,102) -
Loans to third parties KTE=FEXR - (27,998
Repayment from loans to third parties WELTFE=HTEXK 3,634 39,081
Net cash used in investing activities KEGEMAREFEH (73,756) (14,936)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERTREBMK

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 BE-T—+&+-A=+—AILEE
2017 2016
—E—ttFE —E—REF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 7 FET FETT

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHRERE

ACTIVITIES
Payment to non-controlling shareholders JE#5 % % 5 1+ 3¢ - (1,416)
Net proceeds from placing Ao & TS SR F R 390,357 -
Issue of shares upon the exercise of PFTE B IR R R B2 1T AR D

share options 5,400 9,403
Payment to directors E=SNEN - (1,000)
Net cash generated from financing BMEEBMERESFRE

activities 395,757 6,987
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN HERBEESEEY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ®gm CRD) R 108,360 (42,607)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ & & &) & £ 10,830 (8,579)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—RAZBEEK
AT 1 JANUARY BHEEEY 185,422 236,608

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+=—A=+—-82
AT 31 DECEMBER HERBEEEEY 304,612 185,422

ANALYSIS OF THE CASH AND RERAESEEYIM
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank and cash balances RITNIR &8 304,612 185,422
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-_T—tHF+-A=T—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda with limited
liability. The address of its registered office is Canon's
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda. The
address of its principal place of business is Unit 2708, 27/
F The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong. The
Company's shares are listed on the GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 20
to the consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the "HKICPA"). HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“"HKAS"); and Interpretations. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed in note 4.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group. Note
3 provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

—RER
RARRRABRETIMRILZBRR
a) o Mt EE AL Canon's Court,
22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12,
Bermuda - HF 2L XU NES
2/ KE 95 1 IR /027182708
E - RARAIRNETEBERIMA
PRAR ([BEAFT]) GEM ETe

ARBIRREZER AR EWB QA
ZEIBEBHNIEEMBERRME
20°

mAEXE
ZERAMBERRIIREE B G
RE ([EEGMA®])BMZAHR
BEmEAMBHREER ([HEMB
HEEA D RR - BEMHRELER
BREABUWHREER ([BEMHR
FEA)  FEEFHER ([HFEg
R ) K2l - ZFLEAMBEHRRIT
RS EHARR 2 EAKE
R RBEBRRIGD (£622F ) 2
BHE - ARERAB ZERSFBR
PR BT FE A R o

ESEHMARDEAETRALE
A A B R A T R R
23T RATSHT BB A -
EREHARBRERRR Y BX
e P %% 5k SR B A0 AB M T 31
T AEERBE G R B B
(B BB 353 -

rEAFxIEEsRaE 107
“T—FFR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE_ZT—tS+-_A=1T—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Conta)

During the reporting period, the Group incurred loss
from continuing operations attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to HK$112,192,000 and recorded
operating cash outflow of HK$213,641,000. The Group
has contracted to acquire 51% equity interests of the
Target Group subject to condition precedents and the
Target Group had net current liabilities (excluding deferred
revenue) of approximately RMB61 million at 31 October
2017 as disclosed in the Company's circular dated 2
January 2018. These conditions indicate the existence of
a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
therefore, it may be unable to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

Management has prepared cash flow projections
which cover a period of eighteen months from the
end of reporting period. The directors of the Company
have reviewed the Group's cash flow projections that
considered both scenario of successful and unsuccessful
acquisition of the Target Group. Having taken into account
the above, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group will have sufficient financial resources to meet
in full its working capital requirements and financial
obligations when they fall due in the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to restate
the carrying amounts of the assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might
arise and to classify non-current assets and liabilities as
current assets and liabilities, respectively. The effects of
these potential adjustments have not been reflected in
these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and
revised HKFRSs that are first effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 None
of these impact on the accounting policies of
the Group. However, the Amendments to HKAS
7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative
require disclosure of changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.
The effect of the amendments on the Group's
consolidated financial statements has been the
inclusion of additional disclosures in note 41(e).

Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows:
Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require entities to provide
disclosure of changes in their liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both changes arising
from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as
foreign exchange gains or losses). The Group has
provided this information in note 41(e).
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3.

110

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Cont'd)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective
The Group has not early applied new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective for the financial year beginning 1 January
2017 These new and revised HKFRSs include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.
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HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Cont'd)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Cont'a)

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
amendments and new standards is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far the Group
has identified some aspects of the new standards
which may have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements. Further details
of the expected impacts are discussed below.
While the assessment has been substantially
completed for HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, the actual
impacts upon the initial adoption of the standards
may differ as the assessment completed to date
is based on the information currently available to
the Group, and further impacts may be identified
before the standards are initially applied in the
Group’s quarter financial report for the three
months ended 31 March 2018. The Group may also
change its accounting policy elections, including
the transition options, until the standards are
initially applied in that quarter financial report.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement of financial
assets, new rules for hedge accounting and a new
impairment model for financial assets.

HE-_T—tHF+-A=T—HIFE

3. ERIET REEITERMBR

wE

(b)

Al &)

C AR B 8 AR H#TET I
BRI B RN B REER
(%)

REE EFHEZSFIER RHET
RN B XA IR AR
VR E O ARBE R
FIERIME T E A EEARA
MBBREEREATE B
BHFENE—THBENTX
mill- B EARBE BV HRE
RHLOR BB B HRE LR
AIZE165% 2 FHE B REGERK
HERRAZSEREL
ERFEAREMTR AR
ES TR HETIRIEAN &K E
BRI SERMEL MRER
RASEHZE_T—-/\F=A
=t—HE=EAZEFEMB
BENERAZSER RS
ak Bl B b 52 8 o AN 5 [ T Al BE
BEFHSHARREE (BB
BER)  BEEANZTEY
BmE AR SR -

BB HEEREI N % B
TA

BB B 1% 3 22 Bl 595 G X
REBGHEAFEIRSFHT
B HBRARGE - BBV R
HERAFIRSIAUBEED
BRFTEZHAT P
2 AR B LA K2 B 1S & B 2 FTORL
BEER -

sEAFEAEEsRAs 111

“T—FFR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FTRE

AN
ra

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

3.

112

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Cont'a)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Cont'a)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont'd)

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018 on a retrospective basis.
The Group plans to adopt the new standard on
the required effective date and will not restate
comparative information.

Based on an analysis of the Group's financial
assets and financial liabilities as at 31 December
2017 on the basis of the facts and circumstances
that exist at that date, the directors of the
Company have assessed the impact of HKFRS 9 to
the Group's consolidated financial statements as
follows:

(a) Classification and measurement
The Group expects to irrevocably designate
those listed and unlisted equity securities
currently classified as available-for-sale as
at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

Fair value gains and losses on these
instruments will no longer be recycled
to profit or loss on disposal. Impairment
losses on equity securities will no longer
be recognised in profit or loss but rather
in other comprehensive income. In
addition, the Group currently measures
certain unlisted equity securities at cost
less impairment. Under HKFRS 9 these
instruments will be measured at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Cont'd)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Cont'a)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont'd)

(b) Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires the Group to recognise
and measure either a 12-month expected
credit loss or lifetime expected credit loss,
depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. The Group does not expect
the application of HKFRS 9 have significant
impact on the recognition of impairment
loss.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework
for recognising revenue from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will replace the existing
revenue standards, HKAS 18 Revenue, which
covers revenue arising from sale of goods and
rendering of services, and HKAS 11, Construction
contracts, which specifies the accounting for
revenue from construction contracts.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Cont'd)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Cont'a)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Cont'd)

HKFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. The standard
permits either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach for the adoption. The
Group intends to adopt the standard using the
modified retrospective approach which means
that the cumulative impact of the adoption will be
recognised in retained earnings as of 1 January
2018 and that comparatives will not be restated.

Based on the assessment completed to date, the
Group has identified the following areas which are
expected to be affected:

(a) Timing of revenue recognition
Currently, revenue arising from the provision
of services is recognised over time, whereas
revenue from the trading of goods is
generally recognised when the risks and
rewards of ownership have passed to the
customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Cont'd)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Cont'a)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Cont’d)

(a)  Timing of revenue recognition (Cont’d)
Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised
when the customer obtains control of the
promised good or service in the contract.
HKFRS 15 identifies 3 situations in which
control of the promised good or service is
regarded as being transferred over time:

a) When the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the entity’s performance,
as the entity performs;

b) When the entity's performance
creates or enhances an asset (for
example work in progress) that the
customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced;
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Cont'd)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Cont'a)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Cont’d)

(a)  Timing of revenue recognition (Cont’d)

c)

When the entity’s performance does
not create an asset with an alternative
use to the entity and the entity has
an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s
activities do not fall into any of these 3
situations, then under HKFRS 15 the entity
recognises revenue for the sale of that
good or service at a single point in time,
being when control has passed. Transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership is only one
of the indicators that will be considered in
determining when the transfer of control
occurs.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Cont'd)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Cont'a)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Cont’d)

(a)  Timing of revenue recognition (Cont’d)
The Group has assessed that the new
revenue standard is not likely to have
significant impact on how it recognises
revenue from the provision of services.

For contracts with customers in which the
sale of goods is generally expected to be
the only performance obligation, adoption
of HKFRS 15 is not expected to have any
impact on the Group's revenue or profit
or loss. The Group expects the revenue
recognition to occur at a point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery of the
goods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and related
interpretations. The new standard introduces a
single accounting model for lessees. For lessees
the distinction between operating and finance
leases is removed and lessees will recognise right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases
(with optional exemptions for short-term leases
and leases of low value assets). HKFRS 16 carries
forward the accounting requirements for lessors
in HKAS 17 substantially unchanged. Lessors will
therefore continue to classify leases as operating
or financing leases.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Cont ')

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Cont'a)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019. The Group intends to
apply the simplified transition approach and will not
restate comparative amounts for the year prior to
first adoption.

Based on a preliminary assessment, the standard
will affect primarily the accounting for the Group's
operating leases. The Group's office property
leases are currently classified as operating leases
and the lease payments (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Under HKFRS 16 the Group may need to
recognise and measure a liability at the present
value of the future minimum lease payments and
recognise a corresponding right-of-use asset for
these leases. The interest expense on the lease
liability and depreciation on the right-of-use asset
will be recognised in profit or loss. The Group's
assets and liabilities will increase and the timing
of expense recognition will also be impacted as a
result.

As disclosed in note 44, the Group's future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases for its office properties amounted
to HK$36,045,000 as at 31 December 2017 These
leases are expected to be recognised as lease
liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use assets,
once HKFRS 16 is adopted. The amounts will be
adjusted for the effects of discounting and the
transition reliefs available to the Group.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Cont'd)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Cont'a)

HKI(IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The interpretation of HKAS 12 Income Taxes sets
out how to apply that standard when there is
uncertainty about income tax treatments. Entities
are required to determine whether uncertain tax
treatments should be assessed separately or as
a group depending on which approach will better
predict the resolution of the uncertainties. Entities
will have to assess whether it is probable that a tax
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. If
yes, the accounting treatment will be consistent
with the entity’s income tax filings. If not, however,
entities are required to account for the effects
of the uncertainty using either the most likely
outcome or expected value method depending
on which method is expected to better predict its
resolution.

The Group is unable to estimate the impact of
the interpretation on the consolidated financial
statements until a more detailed assessment has
been completed.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. BARETHX

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, unless
mentioned otherwise in the accounting policies below
(e.g. financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and contingent consideration payables).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries
are entities over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. The Group has
power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly
affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties. A potential voting right
is considered only if the holder has the practical
ability to exercise that right.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(a)

Consolidation (Conta)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary
that results in a loss of control represents the
difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of
any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii)
the Company’s share of the net assets of that
subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill and any
accumulated exchange reserve relating to that
subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in subsidiaries not attributable, directly or
indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated
statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between the non-controlling shareholders and
owners of the Company.
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

4.

122

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(a) Consolidation (Contd)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
shareholders even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’'s ownership interest
in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions
(i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and

attributed to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment loss, unless the investment is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal

group that is classified as held for sale).
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for
the acquisition of a subsidiary in a business
combination. The consideration transferred in
a business combination is measured at the
acquisition-date fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and
any contingent consideration. Acquisition-related
costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in
which the costs are incurred and the services are
received. ldentifiable assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess
of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the sum
of the consideration transferred is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase which is attributed to the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary
is remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value
and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is added
to the sum of the consideration transferred in a
business combination to calculate the goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary
are initially measured at the non-controlling
shareholders’ proportionate share of the net fair
value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and
liabilities at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE_ZT—tHF+_A=1T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EBEREFTBER#E)

(Cont’d)
(b) Business combination and goodwiill (b) XEKEHREE(H)
(Cont’d)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (“CGUs") or groups
of CGUs that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill impairment reviews are
undertaken annually, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of the
CGU containing the goodwill is compared to its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs of disposal.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of an entity but is not control or
joint control over those policies. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible, including potential
voting rights held by other entities, are considered
when assessing whether the Group has significant
influence. In assessing whether a potential voting
right contributes to significant influence, the
holder’s intention and financial ability to exercise or
convert that right is not considered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(c)

Associates (Cont'a)

Investment in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements by the
equity method and is initially recognised at cost.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate
in an acquisition are measured at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The excess of the cost
of the investment over the Group's share of
the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the
investment and is tested for impairment together
with the investment at the end of each reporting
period when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group’'s share of an associate’s post-
acquisition profits or losses and other
comprehensive income is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. When the Group's share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate. If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes
recognising its share of those profits only after its
share of the profits equals the share of losses not
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE_ZT—tHF+_A=1T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EBEREFTBER#E)

(Cont'd)

(c) Associates (Cont'd) (c) HEE&ERQT](£)
The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate HE—MBRE AT ERLE
that results in a loss of significant influence BERFE N 2 W EER)

represents the difference between (i) the fair PEREZAFE ML
value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair NEMRBEMRE 2 A FER
WA

value of any investment retained in that associate (iNaZ B = N B AL B B 25T

and (ii) the Group's entire carrying amount of that
associate (including goodwill) and any related
accumulated exchange reserve. If an investment
in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture, the Group continues to apply the equity
method and does not remeasure the retained
interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
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the Group.
(d) Foreign currency translation d) HEgERE
() Functional and presentation currency (i) DIEeR 25 B HE

AEBEER 2B
KFTPIRAB - HUAZE

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group's entities are measured

using the currency of the primary economic BEEMEEZELBR
environment in which the entity operates R2EE ([heeEH])
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated FAEARAEMBmRIA
financial statements are presented in Hong RARZIERZ2E
Kong dollars, which is the Company's BHETTZES

functional and presentation currency.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(d)

Foreign currency translation (Conta)

(ii)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency
on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period.
Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair value in foreign currencies are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates when
the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary
item is recognised in other comprehensive
income, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a gain or
loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in profit or loss, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.
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4.

128

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(d) Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)

(iir) — Translation on consolidation
The results and financial position of all
the Group entities that have a functional
currency different from the Company's
presentation currency are translated into
the Company’s presentation currency as
follows:

Assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing
rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

Income and expenses are translated
at average exchange rates for the
period (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on
the transaction dates); and

All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the
exchange reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(d)

(e)

Foreign currency translation (Conta)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of monetary items that form
part of the net investment in foreign entities
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified to consolidated profit or
loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during
the period in which they are incurred.
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4.

130

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (Conta)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost
less their residual values over the estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual

rates are as follows:
Leasehold Over the shorter of
improvements

and estimated useful

lives, being no more than
20 years after the date of

completion

Furniture and office 20% — 33%
equipment

Motor vehicles 20%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate,

at the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant

asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

(f) Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the
Group all the risks and rewards of ownership of
assets are accounted for as operating leases.
Lease payments (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(g) Other intangible assets

(1)

Internally-generated intangible assets —
research and development expenditure of
computer software

Expenditure on research activities is
recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred. An internally generated
intangible asset arising from the Group's
e-business development is recognised only if
all of the following conditions are met:

- The technical feasibility of completing
the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale;

- Management intends to complete the
intangible asset and use or sell it;

- There is ability to use or sell the
intangible asset;

- [t can be demonstrated how the
intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

- Adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the
intangible asset are available; and
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4.

132

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(9)

Other intangible assets (Conta)

(1)

(ii)

(i11)

Internally-generated intangible assets —
research and development expenditure of
computer software (Cont'd)

- The expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its
development can be reliably
measured.

Internally generated intangible assets are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 3 to 10 years.
Where no internally generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets acquired through
acquisition of a subsidiary — technology
know-how

Technology know-how is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives of 5 years.

Intangible assets acquired through
acquisition of a subsidiary — customer
relationship

Customer relationship is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives of 5 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB RN

'.\.I
iy

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(h)

(i)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
first-in, first-out basis. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where
appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
assets expire; the Group transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
assets; or the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE_ZT—tHF+_A=1T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4 EREFBE#Z)
(Cont'd)

(j) Financial assets ) HBEE

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis where the purchase or sale of
a financial asset is under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the financial assets within the
timeframe established by the market concerned,
and are initially measured at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs except in the case of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
and available-forsale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are either financial assets classified as
held for trading or designated as at fair value
through profit or loss upon initial recognition.
These financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value of these
financial assets are recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(j) Financial assets (Cont'd)

(ii)

(i11)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an
active market. These assets are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method (except for short-term receivables
where interest is immaterial) minus any
reduction for impairment or uncollectibility.
Typically trade and other receivables, bank
balances and cash are classified in this
category.

Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturity investments are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity
that the Group has the positive intention and
ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity
investments are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE_ZT—tS+-_A=1T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREFBE B
(Cont'd)

(j) Financial assets (Contd) ) MEEEGE)

(lv)  Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivative financial assets that are not
classified as loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments or financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss. Available-
for-sale financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value of these
investments are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
in the investment revaluation reserve, until
the investments are disposed of or there is
objective evidence that the investments are
impaired, at which time the cumulative gains
or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified from
equity to profit or loss. Interest calculated
using the effective interest method and
dividends on available-for-sale equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss.

Investments in equity instruments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments,
are measured at cost less impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB RN

'.\.I
iy

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(k)

)

(m)

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents represent
cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group (i.e. the operations and cash flows of which
can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the
Group) that either has been disposed of, or is
classified as held for sale, and which represents
a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or
is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to
resale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

4.

138

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(m) Discontinued operations (Cont’d)

(n)

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the component meets
the criteria to be classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS b5, if earlier. It also occurs
when the component is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount is presented in the statement of
profit or loss, which comprises:

- The post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation; and

- The post-tax gain or loss recognised on
the measurement to fair value less costs
to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or
disposal group constituting the discontinued
operation.

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments
are set out in notes (o) to (s) below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(o)

(p)

(q)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are
measured initially at their fair value and are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

- the amount of the obligations under the
contracts, as determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets”; and

- the amount initially recognised less
cumulative amortisation recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the terms
of the guarantee contracts.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

4.

140

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Contingent consideration payable
Contingent consideration payable is classified
as a financial liability or equity according to the
definitions in HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation. The amount is initially measured
at fair value. Contingent consideration payable
classified as equity is not remeasured and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration payable classified
as a liability is measured at fair value at each
reporting date and changes in fair value are
recognised in profit or loss.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and is
recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably.

(i) Sales of goods
Revenues from the sales of finished goods
are recognised on the transfer of significant
risks and rewards of ownership, which
generally coincides with the time when the
goods are delivered and the title has passed
to the customers.

China Innovationpay Group Limited
Annual Report 2017

BE-T—+F+-A=+—ALLFE

4.

BEARSTEE 2)
 ESRARE

(s)

(t)

ENRAREREEEGE
AIE2RM B TR : 232 F
EDREAVBABEIER B
MR T R A FEFE-D
BAEm BN IARETT
Bt E HRELEN#ER
NARR- DB RAEZEMNK
AREREREARZATE
AFE - MAFEZEFNIES

27
o

KRATH
HARREITZ AT AR
ReZ PSR (IR ERETT
PA) AR o

K 2 TERR

YR E SR B2 AF
R 8 T RE R A T
RAKEE B WS BT 5
AT ERFRER -

()  HEEmR
& B a2 Wk X R
B2 KEBoy kg K [
REBRERER —RA
EmR A EEE
ERXPZEE B



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(t)

Revenue recognition (Cont'ad)

(ii)

(i11)

(iv)

(v)

Internet payment service income is
generally recognised on an accruals basis
when the service has been provided, which
generally coincides with the time when the
transactions are executed.

Card transaction levies represent service
fee charged by the Group to contracted
merchants at specific rates on the monetary
value of consumptions made by cardholder
seftled using the stored value cards in the
merchants’ stores. Card transaction levies
are recognised as these transactions occur.

Card handling and service charges consist
of monthly maintenance fees on expired
unused balances, new card handling
charges, net of discount or waivers, and
other customer services charges. The
monthly maintenance fees are recognised
when the fees are deducted from the
unused balances at each month end. The
new card handling charges are recognised
when a card buyer purchases a new card.
Other customer services are recognised
when the services are rendered.

Consultancy income is recognised when the
service is rendered and on the basis of stage
of completion of each individual project,
provided that the costs involved can be
measured reliably. The stage of completion
of a transaction is established by reference
to the costs incurred to date as compared
to the estimated total costs under the
transaction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE_ZT—tS+-_A=1T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EBREFBER#E)

(Cont’d)
(t) Revenue recognition (Cont'd) ) WRERE)
(vi)  Commission income is recognised when the i) AR ARREHREE
service is rendered. MR e
(vi)  Interest income is recognised on a time- i) FEHALAEBRF =%
proportion basis using the effective interest 125 L AR o
method.
(u) Employee benefits (u) EEEF
(i) Employee leave entitlements (i) EEZB KK
Employee entitlements to annual leave and EEFBERERBGR
long service leave are recognised when they MNBETITZHBNKRERE
accrue to employees. A provision is made R-ORMEEHERSE
for the estimated liability for annual leave HRZREMZEBFR
and long service leave as a result of services KR HARR B R (5t 7B
rendered by employees up to the end of the EzABELEE-
reporting period.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and EERBREBRER
maternity leave are not recognised until the RERF 25 T HERR o
time of leave.
(i) Pension obligations (i) REZEF
The Group contributes to defined AEBERAFBEER
contribution retirement schemes which are 2 E R FORRE S
available to all employees. Contributions ETHR-AEERLE
to the schemes by the Group and Bt el RBERE
employees are calculated as a percentage BERFEZADLE
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement Bo-BEmMRKRZEK
benefit scheme cost charged to profit or BHEEKAEREE
loss represents contributions payable by the AMESI N 2R

Group to the funds.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(u) Employee benefits (Conta)

(i11) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at
the earlier of the dates when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment

of termination benefits.

(v) Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain directors and employees.
Equity-settled share-based payments are measured
at fair value (excluding the effect of non-market
based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments
at the date of grant. The fair value determined at
the grant date of the equity-settled share-based
payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate
of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for
the effect of non-market based vesting conditions.

(w) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from

the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

4.

144

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(w) Borrowing costs (Cont'd)

(x)

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally
and used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that
asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted
average of the borrowing costs applicable to the
borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to it and that the
grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred
and recognised in profit or loss over the period to
match them with the costs they are intended to
compensate.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(y)

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
recognised in profit or loss because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREFBE B
(Cont'd)

(y) Taxation (Cont'a) y) BE )

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries and associates except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle
its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(z)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are
reviewed at each reporting date for indications
of impairment and where an asset is impaired,
it is written down as an expense through the
consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets. If this is the case,
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to
which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less
costs of disposal of the individual asset or the
CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated
future cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present
values are computed using pre-tax discount rates
that reflect the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset/CGU whose impairment is
being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first
against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata
amongst the other assets of the CGU. Subsequent
increases in the recoverable amount caused by
changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss
to the extent that they reverse the impairment.
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4.

148

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(aa) Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
assesses whether its financial assets (other than
those at fair value through profit or loss) are
impaired, based on objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition, the estimated future cash
flows of the (group of) financial asset(s) have been

affected.

For available-for-sale equity instruments, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the investment below its cost is considered also to

be objective evidence of impairment.

In addition, for trade receivables that are assessed
not to be impaired individually, the Group assesses
them collectively for impairment, based on the
Group's past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the delayed payments in the portfolio,
observable changes in economic conditions that

correlate with default on receivables, etc.

Only for trade receivables, the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For all other financial assets, the carrying amount is

directly reduced by the impairment loss.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(aa) Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)
For financial assets measured at amortised cost,
if the amount of the impairment loss decreases
in a subsequent period and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed (either
directly or by adjusting the allowance account
for trade receivables) through profit or loss.
However, the reversal must not result in a carrying
amount that exceeds what the amortised cost
of the financial asset would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date the

impairment is reversed.

(bb) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the

expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow is remote.
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4.

150

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(cc) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position
at the end of the reporting period or those
that indicate the going concern assumption is
not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements (apart from those
involving estimations, which are dealt with below).

(@)

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis since the
directors of the Company consider that the Group
will have sufficient financial resources to meet in
full its working capital requirements and financial
obligations when they fall due in the foreseeable
future after reviewing both scenario of successful
and unsuccessful acquisition of the Target Group.
Details are explained in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements.

China Innovationpay Group Limited
Annual Report 2017

HE_ZT—tS+-_A=1T—HILFE

4.

BEARSTEE 2)

(ce)

BEHEERSER
REBREARENREHARMN
MZBINER B RFELE
RERI BB 2 fs HERE
HYBRABREER INEA
BT 3R R A AR fied 32 IF 58 B
FRZBREHPHERERBEE
R B ER & B 15 ¥R 3R MY R
B

EXRHE R EEMET

FERETT R 2 ERHE

REASHBRERERY EFCHFL
A THGEEMBERERTAERCEL
BEAFEZ2HE (ETXEES M
fah 2 FIERER M)

(a)

FFER SR

RE BRI M AU B 1
SENMEBRLRE ARAE
ER/AEE K EETRET B
BR UERNEZEESHK
Ko R] T8 52K 2R B H e B 5 o
E-RIE ZERAUBHBRER
DIRFBEEEERK - AR
HBEREE M mAM E2R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Cont'a)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Cont'a)

(b)  Equity pick up of entity of less than 20% equity

interest

Although the Group holds less than 20% of the
voting power of Nanjing Houjian Cloud Computing
Co., Ltd. and Guangzhou Kuaizi Information
Technology Co., Ltd., the directors considered that
the Group has significant influence over Nanjing
Houjian Cloud Computing Co., Ltd. and Guangzhou
Kuaizi Information Technology Co., Ltd. because the
Group is entitled to appoint a director out of the
five directors of Nanjing Houjian Cloud Computing
Co., Ltd. and Guangzhou Kuaizi Information
Technology Co., Ltd..

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

(@) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges
for the Group's property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. The Group will revise the depreciation
charge where useful lives and residual values are
different to those previously estimated, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned.
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152

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Cont'a)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Contd)

(a)

(b)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Cont'd)

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
as at 31 December 2017 was approximately
HK$12,754,000 (2016: HK$12,882,000).

Intangible assets and amortisation

The Group determines the estimated useful
lives and related amortisation for the Group's
intangible assets. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be finite, based on the
expected usage and technical obsolescence from
the changes in the market demands or services
output from the assets. Intangible assets with
finite useful lives are amortised over the expected
useful economic lives and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible
assets may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for the intangible
assets with a finite useful life are reviewed by the
management at least at the end of each reporting
period.

The carrying amount of intangible assets as at 31
December 2017 was approximately HK$2,706,000
(2016: HK$7,154,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Cont'a)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Contd)

(c)

()

Income taxes

Significant estimates are required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.
During the year, HK$454,000 of income tax (2016:
HK$242,000) of income tax credit was recognised
in profit or loss based on the estimated profit from
continuing operations.

Recoverability of internally-generated intangible
asset

During the year, the Group reconsidered the
recoverability of its internally-generated intangible
asset arising from the Group's e-business
development, which is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position at 31 December
2017 with carrying value of HK$2,706,000 (2016:
HK$7154,000). The project continues to progress in
a very satisfactory manner, and customer reaction
has reconfirmed the Group's previous estimates
of anticipated revenues from the project. However,
increased competitor activity has caused the Group
to reconsider its assumptions regarding future
market shares and anticipated margins on these
products. This situation will be closely monitored,
and adjustments would be made in future periods,
if future market activity indicates that such
adjustments are appropriate.
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5.

154

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Cont'a)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Contd)

(e)

(7)

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and
doubtful debts based on assessments of the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each debtor. Impairments
arise where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible.
The identification of bad and doubtful debts,
in particular of a loss event, requires the use
of judgement and estimates. Where the actual
result is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the
trade and other receivables and doubtful debt
expenses in the year in which such estimate has
been changed.

As at 31 December 2017, accumulated impairment
loss for bad and doubtful debts amounted to
HK$64,813,000 from continuing operations (2016:
HK$25,017,000).

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made
based on the ageing and estimated net realisable
value of inventories. The assessment of the
allowance amount involves judgement and
estimates. Where the actual outcome in future is
different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of inventories and
allowance charge/write-back in the period in which
such estimate has been changed.

As at 31 December 2017 accumulated allowance
for slow-moving inventories amounted to
HK$3,928,000 (2016: HK$1,223,000).
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Cont'a)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Contd)

(9)

(h)

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the CGU to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in
use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value.

The total carrying amount of goodwill at the end
of the reporting period was HK$698,554,000
(2016: HK$653,432,000) and an impairment loss
of HK$Nil (2016: HK$12,301,000) was recognised
during the year. Details of the impairment
loss calculation are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of investments in associates and
amount due from associates

Management determines whether investments
in associates and amounts due from associates
have suffered any impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable, according to
their recoverable amounts determined by the
CGU based on value in use calculations. The
determination of impairment indication requires
significant judgement, and the calculations require
the use of estimates which are subject to change
of economic environment in future.

As at 31 December 2017 the carrying amount of
investments in associates and amount due from
associates were HK$15,099,000 (2016: HK$Nil) and
HK$NIl (2016: HK$3,349,000) respectively.
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6.

156

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance.

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of its business transactions,
assets and liabilities are principally denominated
in the functional currencies of the Group entities
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi (“RMB"). The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of other foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group
monitors its foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2016 and 2017 the Group entities
had no significant assets or liabilities denominated
in currency other than respective functional
currencies.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable
to its trade receivables. In order to minimise
credit risk, the directors have delegated
senior management to be responsible for the
determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures. In addition,
the directors review the recoverable amount of
each individual trade debt regularly to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are recognised for
irrecoverable debts. In this regard, the directors
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS AR Myt

VAN
b2 Ny =]

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'a)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Cont’d)

The largest two (2016: two) trade receivables
represent approximately 97% (2016: 46%) of total
trade receivables.

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are
made to customers with an appropriate credit
history. To control the credit risk of receivables
from factoring business, they were arranged as
factoring with recourse.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

Except for the financial guarantee given by a
subsidiary as set out in note 35, the Group does
not provide any other guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk. The maximum
exposure to credit risk in respect of these financial
guarantees at the end of the reporting period is
disclosed in note 35.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE BTSRRI EE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Conta)

HE_ZT—tS+-_A=1T—HILFE

6. BKRRMERE &)

(¢) Liquidity risk (Cont'a) (c) REBBESEMR (&)
The maturity analysis based on contractual REEBZHBAERES LK
undiscounted cash flows of the Group's financial KATIRBE 2R A ST A
liabilities is as follows: I
Less than Between
1 year 2 to 5 years Total
PR—F MEZRF &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FET
At 31 December 2017 R=-ZB—tF
+=A=+-H
Trade payables FERTER X 4,982 - 4,982
Accruals and other payables BREAR
H AR 148,382 - 148,382
Amount due to a director N —RESHIE 3 - 3
At 31 December 2016 R_T—RE
+=ZA=+—H
Trade payables JETBR 3N 2,418 - 2,418
Accruals and other payables BRERAK
Hofth JE 5K 115,531 - 115,531
Amount due to a director BN —RESHE 3 - 3
Financial guarantee (Note) TR (H5E) 59,105 - 59,105
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'a)

(c)

(d)

Liquidity risk (Contd)
Note:

Financial guarantee liabilities with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the “on demand or less
than 1 year” time band in the above maturity analysis.
As at 31 December 2016, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of the financial guarantee amounted to
RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to HK$55,818,000) for the
year ended 31 December 2016. Taking into account the
Group's financial position, the directors do not believe
that it is probable that the lenders will exercise their
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.
The directors believe that such borrowings will be
repaid one year after the end of the reporting period in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreement. At that time, the aggregate
principal and interest cash outflows of financial
guarantee will amount to approximately RMB52,945,000
(equivalent to HK$59,105,000) for the year ended 31
December 2016.

Interest rate risk

The Group’'s exposure to interest-rate risk arises
from its bank deposits. These deposits bear
interests at variable rate varied with the then
prevailing market condition.

At 31 December 2017 if interest rates at that date
had been 100 basis points higher with all other
variables held constant, consolidated loss after tax
for the year would have been HK$556,000 lower
(2016: HK$435,000 lower), arising mainly as a
result of higher interest income on bank deposits.
If interest rates had been 100 basis points lower,
with all other variables held constant, consolidated
loss after tax for the year would have been
HK$556,000 higher (2016: HK$435,000 higher),
arising mainly as a result of lower interest income
on bank deposits.
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

6.

160

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 6. HMBERERERE®

HE_ZT—tS+-_A=1T—HILFE

(e) Categories of financial instruments at (e) R=TB—tF+=A=+-—
31 December 2017 Az&r T A2ER
2017 2016
—E-tF —ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Financial assets: MBEEE:
Financial assets at fair value BEATEFABERZ
through profit or loss: MBEE:
Held for trading FEE S 9,658 -
Loans and receivables (including ExkERFIE (B
cash and cash equivalents) RekReFED) 350,316 259,277
Available-forsale financial assets AHHENBEE 108,227 100,620
Financial liabilities: MEaE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost X # K At E 2
MaE 153,367 141,708
Financial liabilities at fair value BERAFEFABRS
through profit or loss: MBARE:
Held for trading FIEE S - 73,860
(f) Fair values  2FE
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial NEBRERE ISR R R R

assets and financial liabilities as reflected in
the consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their respective fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

7.  FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The following disclosures of fair value measurements use
a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Group can access at
the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices
included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date of
the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE_ZT—+tF+-A=-+—HLEFE
7.  FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS (Conta) 7 ADVEAEEE
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value (a R=TB—tF+=ZA=+-—
hierarchy at 31 December 2017: B A ERB <z &5 E
Fair value measurements using: Total
UAFEREE: &t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2017

LSRN R 5l2 REI3 —B—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TR FET

Recurring fair value BRLOTE
measurements: REE:
Financial assets BREE
Financial assets at fair value R AFEF A
through profit or loss: CHBEE:
Unlisted PRC equity funds 3 £ AR
BRARES - 9,658 - 9,658
Fair value measurements using: Total
AAFEREE: =
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2016
AR A hl2 MA3 —FB—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FET FET
Recurring fair value EIRATE
measurements: A8
Financial liabilities AR
Contingent consideration JET S ARE
payables - - 73,860 73,860
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

7. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS (Contd) 7

(b)

(c)

Reconciliation of liabilities measured at

fair value based on level 3:

Hz—T—

DNPEAE

(b)

tE+ZA=+—RLFE

7 (#)

BRBBAFEABRZAE
ZH R

Contingent consideration payables JETBEAREE
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZT—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET
At 1 January n— ﬂ H (73,860) (19,667)
Release upon issue of consideration  FAZE 7T (B AL 17 B 7
shares 31,944 16,204
Gain/(loss) on fair value change REZANERZ AFE
recognised in profit or loss gEplies, (E18) 44,558 (70,984)
Exchange difference ME N =58 (2,642) 587
At 31 December Bn+=—A=+—H - (73,860)
Disclosure of valuation process () *&EBER-ZT—t&E+=A

used by the Group and valuation
techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2017:
The Group's directors are responsible for the
fair value measurements of assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes, including
level 3 fair value measurements. The directors
report directly to the Board of Directors for these
fair value measurements. Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the
directors and the Board of Directors at least twice

a year.

=t—-BEAZEERFR
DNFEBEFER 2 EER
MR ABE 2 HE:
AEEEFRERETHHRE
B cBENBBZ AFER
X BRELMBAFENE
FERERAEFTEMEU
ERNFEABLE - EZNES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 BE—_ZT—+HF+-_A=1+—HILFE
7. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS (cont'a) 7 ANEEREE 2
(c) Disclosure of valuation process () TEER=T—t&F+=A

used by the Group and valuation =t+—HERAZGERRF
techniques and inputs used in fair value RAFERAEFERA 2
measurements at 31 December 2017: ERM R AR 2R E
(Cont’d) (%)
For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group BRI AFEREEME A
will normally engage independent external SEATEIINEABRITRE
valuation experts with the recognised professional BB ARELSR B
qualifications and recent experience to perform the SN EERETHEBME
valuations.
Level 2 fair value measurements REN2 23 F (87 2 )%

Positive/(negative)

Description Valuation method Inputs change on fair value
NP EZD
Rt fRER* WA E@E/(8E)
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Unlisted PRC equity funds Redemption value Redemption value - N/A
provided by the fund
company
EETHREREES EREE EeRuREzEOEE - A3 A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

7. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS (Contd) 7

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process

used by the Group and valuation
techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2017:

(Cont’d)

Level 3 fair value measurements

HE-_T—tHF+-A=1T—HIFE

NP EREE @)

(c)

AKEBR=-_ZE—tF+=A

=t+—-RERAZEHERF
RO ERERER 2
ERMREABEZKE:

(#4)

R BB F BRI EZ

Valuation Unobservable Possible Effect on fair value for Positive/(negative)
Description technique inputs change increase of inputs change on fair value
AR IE AVEEH
Bt BRI TABERARE TREH AVEZEE EE/ (&)
2017 2016
“Z-t§ T F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
Contingent Discount cash The number of N/A The higher the cumulative N/A —/(33,866)
consideration flows cumulative virtual (2016: +/-50%) number of virtual prepaid
payables prepaid cards sold cards sold, the higher of
fair value
ENERRE EHRAERE CEERENRRHEE TEH BEERENRRZFHEY TER /(33,866
(Z2—5F: & ATEEA
+-50% )
The amount of N/A The higher the cumulative N/A -
cumulative virtual (2016: +/-50%) amount of virtual prepaid
prepaid cards cards reloaded, the higher
reloaded of fair value
ZEERENRRESE TEA FEERENRRASEY TER -~
(Z2—5F: & ATEEA
+-50% )

During the two years, there were no changes in
the valuation techniques used
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 BHE_Z—+F+-_A=+—HItFE
8. REVENUE 8 HEEH
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year from REERFARBBELEXEB  EXETE
continuing operations is as follows: DITEE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHETT
Sale of goods HEEm 65,742 28,525
Rendering of services R R 142,114 51,657
207,856 80,182
9. OTHER INCOME 9. HA
2017 2016
—E—t+tF —E—KE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHETT
Continuing operations SIS E ETE
Amortisation of financial guarantee contract B1#§#E1R & 49 # 44 24,606 15,592
Exchange gain, net P e JF 5 831 1,907
Interest income FEWA 1,465 2,907
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries, net HENB AR 2 W JF58 313 2,465
Reversal of allowance for prepayments, ERFRIE meE Rk
deposits and other receivables Ho At JE BB BB - 1,167
Reversal of impairment of inventories FERERE - 137
Gain on fair value change of financial assets 1% A {Ezt AEIBZE 2
at fair value through profit or loss HFEE2 N FEE
Wz 50 -
Others HAt 66 771
27,331 24,946
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

10.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has three (2016: three) operating segments as
follows:

General trading - trading of watches and other goods

Third party — provision of third party payment
payment services and related consultancy
services services in the People’s Republic of

China (the "PRC")
Onecomm — provision of third party payment

management services and sales
of integrated smart point of sales
("POS") devices

Travellers related services segment was discontinued
during the year ended 31 December 2016. The segment
information reported does not include any amounts
for these discontinued operations, which is described
in more detail in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business
units that offer different products and services. They are
managed separately because each business requires
different technology and marketing strategies.

The Group's other reportable segment includes certain
inactive operations. None of the segments meets any
of the quantitative thresholds for determining reportable
segment. The information of the other operating
segments is included in the “others” column.

The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as those described in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements. Segment profits
or losses do not include equity-settled share-based
payment and impairment of goodwill. Segment assets
do not include goodwill, available-for-sale financial assets,
deposits for investments in associates, earnest money
paid for potential investments and other corporate assets.
Segment non-current assets do not include financial
instruments, deferred tax assets and goodwill.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers
as if the sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at
current market prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 BE-T+F+-A=t—BLEE
10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 10. ZEER @)

BRE20BaMNEEE FELE

EBEERABZEMDT

Information about operating segment profit or loss
assets and liabilities from continuing operations:

Third party

General payment
trading services Onecomm Others Total

®ZH
-REZ  XABRE RN Hith &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET TET TET TET

HE-Z2—+tF
+tZA=+-RALEE

Year ended 31 December 2017

Revenue from external customers REIBEPZEEE 64,676 137,099 6,081 - 207,856
Interest income FEHA 350 530 6 - 886
Intersegment interest income/(expenses) D ERIFI BWA (BX) 1,284 - (1,284) - -
Segment (loss)/gain 248 (BB) /s (15,677)  (118,102) (22,483) 164  (156,098)
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH (600) (4,242) (1,718) (2) (6,562)
Shares of associates DIEHE DT - (1,754) - - (1,754)
Other material items of non-cash items: ~ HftIFR&EAER :

— Impairment of prepayment, —ERNRE ke REM

deposits and other receivables FEW R B - (20,752) (10,678) - (31,430)
— Impairment of trade receivables — YR FORE (4,894) (12) (166) - (5,072)
— Impairment of intangible assets —-BREERE - - (2,869) - (2,869)
— Impairment of inventories -FERE - - (2,516) - (2,516)

— Impairment of amounts due from —FE W N R B R (E
associates - (3,469) - - (3,469)

— Impairment of investments —-REE AR ZIRERE
in associates - (21,286) - - (21,286)
Income tax (expensel/credit e (BX) e - (3) 457 454
Additions to segment non-current assets  AE D MR EE 19 3,587 - 3,606

As at 31 December 2017 R-B—tF
+=A=+-8

Segment assets DEEE 48,022 218,110 1,958 268,108
Investments in associates REE R B ZRE - 15,099 - 15,099
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE_Z—+Ft+-_A=+—HIFE
10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'a) 10. 7EER (&)
Information about operating segment profit or loss, FHAREDERMNIEER EEKE
assets and liabilities: (Cont’d) EZERWT: (&)
Third party
General payment
trading services  Onecomm Others Total
E=7
—RES ZNRE BN Hith =5

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET

Year ended 31 December 2016 BEZT—RF

TZR=+-BLFE
Revenue from external customers REIBEPZEER 33,712 42,665 3,357 448 80,182
Interest income FEHA 2,383 520 2 2 2,907
Segment loss DEEE (10,033) (63,314) (8,202) (3,213) (84,762)
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH (1,666) (3,932) (1,823) (72) (7493)

Other material items of non-cash items: ~ H#MIEHEELEXIER -

-~ Reversal of allowance for prepayment, ~ —JE{3IE K4 K
deposits and other receivables Hth FEU R B 3 ) 1,167 - - - 1,167
Income tax (expensel/credit e (BX) % - (30) 272 - 242
Additions to segment non-current assets  AE D MR EE 2,197 12,118 86 315 14,716
As at 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
+-A=+—H
Segment assets DEEE 46,303 188,373 11,108 601 246,385
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RE RN

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)

Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or loss:

HE_ZT—tS+-_A=1T—HILFE

10. DEEE (B

DR ER R AR Bk

2017 2016
—E—tF —E=—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHETT
Revenue W 2=
Total revenue from continuing operations ~ FFEK S ¥ 2 L5
L] 207,856 80,182
Loss BB
Total profit or loss of reportable segments 7] 2 ¥z $8 2 )% F =k
E e (156,098) (84,762)
Gain/(loss) on fair value change of ERSHAREAFEE
contingent consideration payables e, (E18) 44,558 (70,984)
Equity-settled share-based payment IR HE 48 B I {9 2 [ kI8 (21,843) (48,415)
Unallocated amounts: ROBLERE:
Corporate income and expenses, net TERARRAS  F58E (26,771) (23,886)
Amortisation of financial guarantee HBERE L8
contract 24,606 15,592
Impairment of goodwill EESNCAE - (12,301)
Consolidated loss before income tax from  REFEKLLERE 2
continuing operations BRATISTLRTAR & B 18 (135,548) (224,756)
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments from  KBEFELEEBK 2
continuing operations AIEZERN B EERTE 268,108 246,385
Unallocated amounts: ROBLERE:
Available-forsale financial assets AHEEMBEE 108,227 100,620
Deposits for investments in associates BaEArRERS - 2,233
Earnest money paid for potential REBEREEN
investments BEE 73,246 33,490
Goodwill Bk 698,554 653,432
Other corporate assets HMrEEE 244,360 45,133
Consolidated total assets maBEMER 1,392,495 1,081,293
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE-_T—tHF+-A=1T—HIFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont'a) 10. 2EER @)
Geographical information: Hh [ & Y -
No separate analysis of segment information by HRAEB WS MERBEETE
geographical information is presented as the Group's HERNE—IREE (ARE) - Bt
revenue and non-current assets are principally attributable 253t E E R B 5 2 B 5
to a single geographical region, which is the PRC. BRI DT
Revenue from major customers: REEXFERP 2 Mz :
2017 2016
—E—t+tF —E—KE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Third party payment services segment FE=ZAEZRESEE
Largest customer BRAEF 32,988 -
Second largest customer FZREP 15,250 -
General trading segment —REZFHE
Largest customer BAEP 44,019 28,038
Second largest customer EF_RREFP 13,759 -
11. INCOME TAX CREDIT 1. FBHIER
Income tax relating to continuing operations has been FHBEREEK 2 EHERER
recognised in profit or loss as following: NIERLAT -
2017 2016
—E—t+F —E—XE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current tax — the PRC BVERFR IH — P
Under-provision in prior years BAEFERENR 3 30
3 30
Deferred tax (Note 36) EIERIE (FfT7E36) (457) (272)
(454) (242)
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1.

172

INCOME TAX CREDIT (Conta)

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax and Hong
Kong Profits Tax is required since the Group has no
assessable profit for the year ended 31 December 2016

and 2017

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,

HE_ZT—tS+-_A=1T—HILFE

n. BHER &)

HRAERERBE T —R"FA-F
—tFE+ - A=T—BHILFEALE
EERRTOGEN I BELPEE

EABHEBEANEHRERE-

interpretation and practices in respect thereof.

The reconciliation between the income tax credit and
the product of loss before tax multiplied by the PRC

Enterprise Income Tax rate is as follows:

H b 3th [ R B8 M) 2 B IA S i AR
SEXGAEBRR ZBTHE LR
BAMAB LR REREMFHE-

PR B S SR AR A B R R DA P B 1
EFEHHEMFERZHEKRNT

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHETT
Loss before tax PR A ES 18
(from continuing operations) (REFBERKEHER) (135,548) (224,756)
Tax at the PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate & B> FT15 5
of 25% (2016: 25%) M E25%
(ZE—RF:25%)
FAEZBIE (33,887) (56,189)
Tax effect of expenses that are not PRI B R 2 MG E
deductible 30,169 55,218
Tax effect of income that are not taxable BARBWAZ B E (18,052) (11,887)
Tax effect of temporary differences not REREREREZ
recognised MB 2 (457) (278)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RNENARERNIBER
recognised LB E 20,203 11,722
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not B AT RERTIAESE
previously recognised 2B E (355) (1,155)
Under-provision in prior years BAFERENR 3 30
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries B AR TR R 2 £ 1,922 2,297
Income tax credit (relating to continuing FriSHiE %
operations) (BRAFEREER) (454) (242)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

12.

LOSS FORTHE YEAR FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS

The Group's loss for the year from continuing operations
is stated after charging/(crediting) the following:

HE-_T—tHF+-A=1T—HIFE

12. FERERBZ2FABE

AEERFBREET 2 FAERIH
B/ (GEA) BIRRSIE -

2017 2016
—E—tF T RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHETT
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 25 Bl = B 1,500 1,450
Allowance for trade receivables JE UK BR SR 5,072 -
Allowance/(reversal of allowance) for TE A FRIE N H At fE W kI8
prepayments and other receivables BiE (BERD) 31,430 (1,167)
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEE 1,935 1,955
Cost of inventories sold BEERFENRA 61,177 33,407
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BB R EREBITE
equipment 4,629 5,638
Impairment of intangible assets mEEERE 2,869 -
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of FTERME/ CRERE)
inventories 2,516 (137)
Loss/(gain) on disposals of property, HEDE BEREZHEZ
plant and equipment EE () 36 (1)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, HEMRBAR Z W
net (note 41(b)) FER (MH3E41(b)) (313) (2,465)
Operating lease charges KEHET 13,757 14,889
Property, plant and equipment written off  #% B E K R S - 7
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13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

HE_ZT—tS+-_A=1T—HILFE

13. EETAFEX

2017 2016
—E-tF —ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Continuing operations FEREER
Employee benefits expense: EERAMAX
Salaries, bonuses and allowances T& - TE4L FoRRL 79,159 69,605
Equity-settled share-based payments IR HE 45 E I 2 T R 21,843 48,415
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R4 K5 24 7¢ 6,396 3,746
107,398 121,766
Five highest paid individuals hEGEEFMAL

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during
the year included two (2016: two) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in
note 14(a). The emoluments of the remaining three (2016:

FAXKELZZESFTMALRER
Z(ZE-—RF MB)EF HB=2
FHNHEE14@ PP DT - R T =4
(ZZ—RF: =8) AL ZFHBHET

three) individuals are set out below: W
2017 2016
—E—tF —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAETT
Basic salaries and allowances HEARTE NERL 1,139 1,120
Equity settled share-based payments IRt & E IR 2 T FIA 7,879 16,952
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R AEFIEH 23X 86 43
9,104 18,115
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13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Contd)

The emoluments fell with the following band:

HE—

E—+F+RA=+—HILFE

13. EEEANFEX #)

BRSNS E -

Number of individuals
A
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—KF

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000

2,500,001/8 L&
3,000,000/ 7T
3,000,001/ TE
3,500,000/ 7T
3,500,001/ L2
4,000,0007% 7T

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

2 _
1 3
3 3

FRAEERERNEANESHTS
ReHMALTXNME ERINAKR
KBNS 2 R BB (E -
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 BHE_Z—+F+-_A=+—HItFE
14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 14. EEENRFZ
DIRECTORS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (@) EE#M<
The remuneration of every director is set out ZESZMeRIOT
below:

Equity-  Retirement

settled benefit
Salaries and  Discretionary  share-based scheme
Fees  allowances bonus payments contributions Total
RELH BAEH
e IERER BERL ROXARAE SRR BEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThR ThR ThR ThR TAR TERT
Executive directors gz
Guan Guisen BER - 2,074 357 - 18 2,449
Cao Chunmeng BEH - 1,830 315 4,128 18 6,291
Yan Xiaotian B - 1,627 280 2,867 18 4,792
- 5,531 952 6,995 54 13,532
Independent non-executive BV IEHTEE
directors
Wang Zhongmin (note (i) TRR () 120 - - 344 - 464
Gu Jiawang AR 244 - - 344 - 588
Fong ChiWah hEE 244 - - 344 - 588
Xu Yanging (note (ii) BEE (M) 102 - - - - 102
710 - - 1,032 - 1,742
Total for 2017 “E-tEEE 710 5,531 952 8,027 54 15,274
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14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Conta)

(a)

HE-_T—tHF+-A=1T—HIFE

14. EFENRAZ &)

Directors’ emoluments (Conta) (@ ES=EM<#®)
Equity-  Retirement
settled benefit
Salaries and  Discretionary  share-based scheme
Fees  allowances bonus payments  contributions Total
RiEEE RIKGER
we IEREE MBTEL ROZIHE BE LG EEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TR TR TR TR TR
Executive directors HIESE
Guan Guisen BER - 2,000 150 - 18 2,168
Cao Chunmeng BEH - 1,740 120 9,021 18 10,899
Yan Xiaotian BEH - 1,613 90 6,265 - 7868
- 5,253 360 15,286 36 20,935
Independent non-executive BM JEHITESE
directors
Wang Zhongmin FAR 220 - - 752 - 972
Gu Jiawang ARH 220 - - 752 - 972
Fong Chi Wah HEE 220 - - 752 - 972
660 - - 2,256 - 2,916
Total for 2016 T RE8E 660 5,253 360 17542 36 23,851
Note: e,

(i) Suspended his duties on 4 August 2017 and

resigned on 12 March 2018.

(ii) Appointed on 4 August 2017.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors
waived any emoluments during the year (2016: nil).

(i) R-E—tFN\ANAE
BHR -_Z—N\FE=A
+-—B&E-

(ii) R-ZE—tFN\ANBE
&

FRITHRAEH L ENESHRE
MEMWNS (ZZF—RF:8)-

FEAHXNEERRATF

T —tF

FiR
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14.

15.

178

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Conta)

(b) Directors’ material interests in

transactions, arrangements or contracts
No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group's business to
which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company and the director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 11 April 2016, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to dispose of the Group's entire
equity interest in Kopu (Beijing) Technology Co., Ltd. and
its subsidiary (collectively referred to as “Kopu Group”).
On 14 April 2016, the Group entered into another sale
and purchase agreement to dispose of the Group's equity
interest in Kanghui Financial (Beijing) E-Commerce Co.,
Ltd. (“Kanghui”). Kopu Group and Kanghui represented
the travellers related services segment and were
principally engaged in the provision of airticketing
services and related customer services. Details of the
assets and liabilities disposed of and the calculation of
the profit or loss on disposal are disclosed in note 41(a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE-_T—tHF+-A=1T—HIFE

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Conta) 15. BRILEEEK &)

The disposal of Kanghui and Kopu Group were completed

HERELELEREECORN -

on 29 April 2016 and 29 September 2016 respectively. T-REFNAZTILBRZZE—XF
NAZ+HhBREK-
2016
—ET-RF
HK$'000
FHETT
Loss for the year from REERIEREEBZ
discontinued operations: FAEE:
Revenue Wz 3,852
Cost of sales 8 65 AR -
Gross profit EH 3,852
Other income H A 8
Selling expenses HER X (4,535)
Administrative expenses TBFE (4,876)
Loss before tax R A ES 18 (5,551)
Income tax expense FriS T < -
Loss after tax BREIEEE (5,551)
Gain on disposal of discontinued HEERIEREEB 2 W
operations (note 41(a)) (Ff15E41(a)) 1,168
Loss for the year from REERIEREEBK 2
discontinued operations FAEIE (4,383)
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15.

180

B RS Rk Myt

HE_ZT—tS+-_A=1T—HILFE

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (conta) 15. CRIEREXEK =)
Loss for the year from discontinued operations includes REERIEREEB 2 FAEBBRE
the following: A T&IE:
2016
—T-RF
HK$'000
FHETT
Auditor's remuneration 1% BRI 37 B ~
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEEHH 16
Reversal of allowance for trade receivables & U BR 3k 3% & 1 o] (612)
Operating leases charges of BEEREEL
premises and facilities KEREY 2,146
Depreciation of property, M- BB &
plant and equipment BT E m
Employee benefits expense: EERMAX
Salaries, bonuses and allowances T & FE4L o #8L 2,662
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R4 F 5+ 24 5 236
Cash flows from discontinued operations: AR ILELEKIR S RE !
Net cash outflows from operating activities #&& /& &R & L F 58 (5,584)
Net cash inflows from financing activites ~ Bl & /ZEIHR & RAFEE 2,806
(2,778)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ERGHTE 727
Net cash outflows WE ML FRE (2,051)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

16. LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

Basic loss per share

(1)

(ii)

From continuing and discontinued
operations

The calculation of basic loss per share is
based on the loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$112,192,000 (2016: HK$214,422,000)
and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 6,720,598,000 (2016:
6,070,965,000) in issue during the year.

From continuing operations

The calculation of basic loss per share is
based on the loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$112,192,000 (2016: HK$210,128,000)
and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 6,720,598,000 (2016:
6,070,965,000) in issue during the year.

HE-_T—tHF+-A=1T—HIFE

16. EREE

(a)

BREXEE

(1)

(i)

KEHER OIS
Ey 4

BREXNEBBEIRE
KARER AEMLF
fE /&5 18 #9112,192,000
BT (ZE—XF:
214,422,0007% 7T ) & F
WE BT @R 2
F 5 £16,720,598,000
g ( = & — X F
6,070,965,0008% ) iy 5t

%O
Ea

BREXNEBEIRE
KRARER ANEMLF
fE /&5 18 #9112,192,000
BT (ZE—XF:
210,128,000/ 7T ) & F
WE BT @R 2
F 5 £16,720,598,000
g ( = & — X F
6,070,965,0008% ) iy 5t

%O
Ea
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16.

182

LOSS PER SHARE (cont’a)

(a) Basic loss per share (Contd)

(i) From discontinued operations

Basic loss per share from the discontinued
operations during the year ended 31
December 2016 was HKO0.07 cent per
share based on the loss for the year from
discontinued operations attributable to the
owners of the Company of approximately
HK$4,294,000 and the denominator used
was the same as those detailed above for
basic loss per share.

(b) Diluted loss per share
As exercise of the Group’'s outstanding share
options, warrants and contingent consideration
payables for the years ended 31 December 2016
and 2017 would be anti-dilutive, no diluted loss
per share was presented for the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2017
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16. EREE (&)

(a)

(b)

BREXEE (£)

(i)  HKEEARIAEE R
RIEARRBEE AEG
BRI EEE I FE

[E518 494,294,000/ 7T, -

RBE-ZT—XRF+=
A=t—RHLFEZE
RIEBEXHBZER
EXNEESER0.078
fileFrEMZz D BEE
Xrpill 2 BREARE R
PrAERR -

BRBESE

HRITEBEZE T —RFEh_
T—tF+-A=1+—HILHF
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE_Z—+Ft+-_A=+—HIFE
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 Y% BEERXE
Furniture
Leasehold and office
improvements equipment Motor vehicles Total
HAR
HEMEEE BAERE AE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TEL AT TET
Cost BA&
At 1 January 2016 R-E-~"¥—A—H 5,707 19,345 1,110 26,162
Additions NE 1,985 2,695 - 4,680
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBLE - (1,720) - (1,720)
Disposalsfwritten off HE /s - (143) - (143)
Exchange differences BEHEE (456) (1,262) (72) (1,790)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE-RE+-_A=+-HR
1 January 2017 —E—+F—f—H 7236 18,915 1,038 27189
Additions NE 1,754 1,852 - 3,606
Disposals/written off HE/#H (262) (183) (307) (752)
Exchange differences BEHEE 604 1,464 67 2,135
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+ZA=1—8 9,332 22,048 798 32,178
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE
At 1 January 2016 R-E-~"F—A—H 2,087 8,174 593 10,854
Charge for the year KEERY 2,256 3,319 74 5,649
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBLE - (1,202) - (1,202)
Disposals/written off HE /8 - (130) - (130)
Exchange differences BHER (233) (589) (42) (864)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE-R"E+-A=+—-HEK
1 January 2017 “E—+%—-A—H 4,110 9,672 625 14,307
Charge for the year AEERX 1,359 3,116 154 4,629
Disposals/written off HE, /M (262) (166) (288) (716)
Exchange differences IE =5 353 809 42 1,204
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=ZA=1+—H 5,560 13,331 533 19,424
Carrying amount FRHEE
At 31 December 2017 WZE—+F+ZA=1—H 3,772 8,717 265 12,754
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R"ETZA=1T—H 3,126 9,343 413 12,882
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-_Z—+tF+-_A=1+—HLFE
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. BEE
Computer
software
Customer Technology (internally
relationship know-how generated) Total
EREH
EFBR BEA#E (RBEE) a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THET TR
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~"E—A—H 244 7406 1,417 19,067
Additions RNE - - 147 147
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT (245) - (6,048) (6,293)
Exchange differences R A 1 (481) (504) (984)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE-RE+ZA=+—0RK
1 January 2017 —T—+§—-A—H - 6,925 5,012 11,937
Exchange differences BEHEE - 523 379 902
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+F+-A=1—H - 7448 5,391 12,839
Accumulated amortisation and ERBHRAEFE
impairment loss
At 1 January 2016 RZE—R"E—-HA—H 134 1,482 7693 9,309
Charge for the year KEERY 16 1,447 508 1,971
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAT (151) - (5,905) (6,056)
Exchange differences EHER 1 (159) (283) (441)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE—R"E+ZA=T—HK
1 January 2017 —E—+F—-H—H - 2,770 2,013 4,783
Charge for the year AEERT - 1,435 500 1,935
Impairment loss REEE - 2,869 - 2,869
Exchange differences ERER - 374 172 546
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—tF+_A=+—H - 7448 2,685 10,133
Carrying amount HRHEE
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F+-A=+—H - - 2,706 2,706
At 31 December 2016 RZZE-RE+-A=1+—H - 4,155 2,999 7154
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

18.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont )

The average remaining amortisation period of technology
know-how and computer software are 4 years and 5
years respectively (2016: 5 years and 6 years).

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount
of its intangible assets in 2017 having regard to the
market conditions of the Group’s business. These assets
are used in the CGUs of Onecomm and Third Party
Payment Services.

For the year ended 31 December 2017 the review led to
the recognition of an impairment loss of HK$2,869,000
for technical know-how used in the segment of
Onecomm since the directors of the Company expected
that no revenue would be generated in the foreseeable
future. The recoverable amount of HK$2,706,000 of
computer software has been determined on the basis
of its value in use using discounted cash flow method.
Details of the impairment testing of computer software in
the CGU2 are out in note 19.

HE—

18.

E—+F+RA=+—HILFE

BILEE (&)

Tob i 0 28 % B B B > 45 R B 4
FEHID R BAERSE (ZE—RE 5
FERGE) o

AEEREBAKEXRBZHNE

HER T+ F2EVEEZTH
e ETER ZFEERN B
BNz REEEBURE=TTXNE
7o

BE_T—+tF+-A=1t—HItF
[ RER 2l — IS M 2 #BE A
Z BH % A0 387 782,869,00078 7T . R
BEER RESARRESFERER
BRBRAG T EE W - B
2,706,00078 7T 2 ] Y Bl & B8 E {8 F
MARSRELTEEREBERE
E RIS EE B2 2 BIET 2R
BRI 2 FIFENHEE19 -

rEAFEIEEERAT 18D

“T—FFR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PPN

e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-_Z—+tF+-_A=1+—HLFE
19. GOODWILL 19. HE
General  Third party Travellers
trading payment related
operations services services Onecomm
(“cGu 1) (“cGU 2") ("CGU 3") (“CGU 4") Total
%=F
-REZEK IHRE RERBERES — RN
((ReEE ([ReEE ([REEE ([REE:s
Bf1]) Ef2]) Efu3]) Efid]) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TAT TET FET
Cost BA
At 1 January 2016 i \i A—A 204,760 910,457 4,497 12,589 1,132,303
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBR - - (4,491) - (4,491)
Exchange differences EHZE (13,308) (55,496) (6) (818) (69,628)
At 31 December 2016 and WZE—R"E+ZA=+—-8H
1 January 2017 LZE—t5-H—H 191,452 854,961 - 1,77 1,058,184
Exchange differences EREE 14,474 60,359 - 890 75,723
At 31 December 2017 “E—tF+ZA=1—H 205,926 915,320 - 12,661 1,133,907
Accumulated impairment losses 2R EFE
At 1 January 2016 RZZ—-RFE—H—-H 204,760 215,538 4,497 - 424,795
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBLTF - - (4,491) - (4,491)
Impairment loss recognised TEERAZRESE
in the current year - - - 12,301 12,301
Exchange differences EREE (13,308) (14,009) (6) (530) (27853)
At 31 December 2016 and Q—? /\E‘I‘ A=+-H
1 January 2017 “Z—+tF-H—H 191,452 201,529 - 1,771 404,752
Impairment loss recognised Zl‘@?ﬁﬁ@ REBE
in the current year - - - - -
Exchange differences BRESR 14,474 15,237 - 890 30,601
At 31 December 2017 WZE—+5+ZA=+—-8H 205,926 216,766 - 12,661 435,353
Carrying amount BEE
At 31 December 2017 “Z2—+F+-A=1+-AH - 698,554 - - 698,554
At 31 December 2016 RZE-R"E+ZA=+-H - 653,432 - - 653,432
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

19.

GOODWILL (Cont'a)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated,
at acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit
from that business combination.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been
determined on the basis of their value in use using
discounted cash flow method. The key assumptions
for the discounted cash flow method include those
regarding the discount rates, growth rates and budgeted
gross margin and revenue during the period. The Group
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates
are based on long-term average economic growth rate
of the geographical area in which the businesses of the
CGUs operate. Budgeted gross margin and turnover are
based on past practices and expectations on market
development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets approved by the directors
for the next four years (2016: five years) with the residual
period using the terminal growth rate of 3% (2016: 3%)
for CGU 2 (2016: CGU 2 and 4). This terminal growth rate
does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the relevant markets.

At 31 December 2017 the pre-tax rates used to discount
the forecast cash flows in each CGU of the Group are as
follows:

HE—

19.

E—+F+RA=+—HILFE

BE e
REKAGIEES Y BRIk
SEREEEENZER AT EY
38 47 4 B AT o

ReEEE 2 el SR EER
MRREREBELTEEREERE
E-RBRRSREZMEAZIEER
REERAANER R E FRE.
BEENER LW - REBNAA K
BRE RIS ERRE MRS
EA BN 2 K R 2 BRI AT L R h
FHRRIR K B REARR G EL BN
RERGAT R 2 & BT 15858
RERSEE-FAEEMNKRWZETIIZ
BEBPIRERTIZERSEE

AEERE 2 ReRETEN THRE
EESHERKNE (ZT—RF:
FF)RFGBHEEZRSEEEN2
(ZE—RF RBEeEAXEMMRSE
EEBM)KRERERI% (ZF
—NF13%) 2B RTEE - %
Bt RENBRBE@AM S 2 FHEK
HiE R &K o

R-ZE—+FE+-_F=+—8 Bl
BRRTBAAEBERREELENRS
MEZBRBEAILERDT

2017 2016
—g—t% —T 5%

CGU 2
CGU 4

REeELEN2
BeELrBM4

21.60% 20.75%
N/A ~EH 24.94%
FEAFxFEEgRAT 187
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19.

20.

188

GOODWILL (Cont'a)

At 31 December 2016, the Group changed its business
strategy for CGU 4 to focus on third party payment
management services and not sales of POS devices.
The directors determinated the recoverable amount of
CGU 4 having regard to the revised business strategy
and recognised a full impairment of goodwill of
HK$12,301,000. The recoverable amount of CGU 4 of
HK$12,384,000 was based on value in use. A discount
rate of 24.94% was applied to the forecast future cash
flows. No other impairment of the assets of the CGU 4
was considered necessary.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of major subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017
are as follows:

Place of incorporation/
registration and

HE

19.

20.

Z—+F+A=+—HILFE

[5E3€ )
RZE—REF+ZA=+—8B 'K
SERBCELEATREELE
B BN E = AN ERRES I
HEPOSKE - EFLH REIBEI %
BEERETHRSEEEN4ZATRE
R LR R E R E12,301,000
B -REELBMAZ AT KE S
¥ /512,384,0008 T Y E R FE A E
BE-TBRRKRIRE REE PR R
2494% -G ELEBMNABE 2 EAM
BERRAELTEK-

REBARZIRE
TEMBARAR -T—LF+ -7
S+—BZEEmT

operation Issued and Percentage of
Name HEmEL/ paid up capital ownership interest  Principal activities
a8 TR E KR ERTREARE BEEEERENL TEXH
Direct Indirect
BEE %
Country Praise Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands 769,231 ordinary shares of 100% - Investment holding
("BVI") no par value
KBRS 769,231k A E 2 AR REER
(IRBRLHE])
Splendid Win Enterprise Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
£ 10,000 7T REER
Bright Voyage Limited BVI US$50,000 - 100%  Investment holding
KERAES 50,0003 7T BAEER
Modermntimes Payment Limited BVI US$102,041 - 51%  Investment holding
("Modermntimes") RBRAEE 102,041 7T REER

China Innovationpay Group Limited
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20.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'a)

Place of incorporation/
registration and

B

==

—T—+F+RA=T—HILFE

20. RAMIBARZKRE (&)

operation Issued and Percentage of
Name BT AT paid up capital ownership interest Principal activities
A% TR EROTREHRE REEERBAL FEER
Direct Indirect
Hi# %
Essence Management Service Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100%  Investment holding
& 100,000/ 7 RERR
EREE (LR) RELHERLA The PRC RMB123,330,000 - 100%  Trading of goods
Beijing Shangyin Investment h AR #123,330,0007T BEEM
Consultancy Co., Ltd.*
ERAREREERBEAERAR The PRC RMB101,000,000 - 100%  Provision of third party
Beijing Tiantongsaibo Information H AR #101,000,0007C payment services,
Technology Co., Ltd.* information system
maintenance and
development services
REE=FIABRBRES
RO E R AR RS
TREEREXEEERAA The PRC RMB150,000,000 - 100%  Provision of third party
Beijing Gaohuitong Commercial H AR #150,000,0007T payment services
Management Co., Ltd.* REE= RS
IREHENHEBRAR The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100% Trading of goods
Beijing Zhixiang Chuangfu F AR #10,000,0007T BEEm
Commercial Co., Ltd.*
FEREBREERAA The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100%  Provision of third party
Shanghai Jinghui Commercial H AK#1,000,0007C payment services
Co., Ltd.* REE=FINRS
RpnEPelEREHALBRE The PRC HK$18,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
BRAR w (2016: HK$10,000,000) REER
Shenzhen Innovationpay Co., Ltd.* 18,000,000/ 7T
(ZT—R&F:
10,000,000/ 71.)
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont)  20. RHBARZERE (@)

Place of incorporation/
registration and

operation Issued and Percentage of
Name BT AT paid up capital ownership interest Principal activities
£ AMREEHE BRIRBHRA EEEREZEINL FEER
Direct Indirect
R Ck:
RSB RER AR (M) The PRC RMB23,000,000 - 51% Provision of third party
Beijing Onecomm Technology F AR #23,000,0007C payment management
Co., Ltd.* (Note) services and sales of POS
devices
REZE=FZNEERBER
SHEPOSEE
RIEREEHR (LG ERAA The PRC US$7340,000 - 51%  Provision of consultancy
Yu Shun Investment Consultancy h 7340,000E T services, development,
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* operation and promotion
of innovative products
and customer value
management
RUBERERE R 82K
RFBIFERREPEE
B
MMNERREERAR () The PRC RMB6,350,000 - 100%  Inactive
Hangzhou Saibo Information F (2016: RMB4,000,000) TEEE
Technology Co., Ltd. * (Note) AR #6,350,0007C
(ZZ—R"F:AR%
4,000,0007T)
mMNEEREERAR (F) The PRC RMB7300,000 - 100%  Inactive
Hangzhou Gaohuitong Commercial F (2016: RMB2,000,000) gmax
Co. Ltd. * (Note) AR #7300,0007
(ZZ—R"F:AR%
2,000,0007C)

* The English translation name is for identification purpose
only. The official name of the entity is in Chinese.

Note: To facilitate legal investigation not related to the Group, Misk: ARESEKNEEEEEERFAET —
by order of a PRC District People’'s Procuratorate, the FEBEARBERBESZEWB
shares of these subsidiaries were restricted to transfer NEZ BRI B s o
freely.

The above list contains the particulars of major FREVNTEZEREFREE BE

subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets FEETENB AT -

or liabilities of the Group.
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HE-_T—tHF+-A=1T—HIFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (cont'a) 20. RAMIBRARIZERE (&)
As at 31 December 2017 the bank and cash balances of RZZE—+F+A=+—H K&
the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB FEMEBEARIAARKEZR
amounted to HK$57374,000 (2016: HK$136,836,000). 17N IR & 458 E57374,0008 7T (=
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject T — 7N 1 136,836,000 L) - AR
to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations B HIRBINERER CREINEE TR
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of By K (FERE - EE RN EEIEAR
Foreign Exchange Regulations. E) °
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. REEQFIZRE
2017 2016
—E—tF T RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Unlisted investments in the PRC: R ZIELETIRE -
Share of net assets JE(REEFE 1,393 -
Goodwill S 35,810 -
37,203 -
Impairment losses BIEEE (22,104) -
15,099 -
Reconciliation of impairment of investments: WERE 2 K
2017 2016
—EBE—-+tF TR F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At 1 January R—HA—H - -
Impairment for the year FRRE 21,286 -
Exchange difference N ERE 818 -
At 31 December R+=—RA=+—8H 22,104 -
PERIF XN EBER AR 191
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21.
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HE—

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Contd) 21.

Details of the Group's associates at 31 December 2017

were as follows:

—tF+ZA=+—HIFE

VAN

Percentage of
equity interest

BERARN_E
=t —HZHFBWT:

RBERT2RE (&)
REE

—t&+=A

Place of incorporation/ attributable to
Name registration and operation  Registered capital the Group Principal activities
AEBEEG
a8 HEMRY EMEREELYE ZMEX REEIL FEEH
HERBERERRBERAA The PRC RMB5,000,000 37%  Micro business lending
(1#4%]) e AR #5,000,0007C HEREER
Shanghai Yu Chang Financial
Information Services Co., Ltd.
("Yu Chang")*
LAEZEEERBERA The PRC RMB1,000,000 20%  Information technology
(I5%]) (M) i AK1,000,0007T development and
Shanghai Xueying Information & consultancy services
Technology Co., Ltd. EERMAER
(“Xueying")*(note (a)) EHRE
IR REBHBRBRAF The PRC RMB2,500,000 20%  Provision of
([ERKER]) H AR #2,500,0007T consultancy services
Beijing Wallet Science and Technology for internet operation
Co., Ltd. ("BJ Wallet")* REEHPES
BRI
BMEFEERKRBRAR The PRC RMB3,207470 5%  Information technology
(TEMETF]) (FEED) H AE13,2074707T development
Guangzhou Kuaizi Information 5 BHMTFE
Technology Co., Ltd.
("GZ Kuaizi")* (note (b))

HREREHEERAA The PRC RMB1,164,023 5%  Information technology
(TERER)) (M) i AEH1,164,0237C development and
Nanjing Houjian Cloud Computing Co., consultancy services

Ltd.* ("NJ Houjian") (note (c)) EERMAER
BRI
* The English translation name is for identification purpose

only. The official name of the entity is in Chinese.
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21.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Contd)

Notes:

(a) As at 31 December 2016, the amount due from an
associate was unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

(b) The recoverable amount of the investment in an

associate, GZ Kuaizi, is determined from the value in
use calculation. The key assumptions for the value in
use calculations are those regarding the discount rate,
growth rate and net profit after tax. The Group estimates
discount rates using pre-tax rates of 17.71% (2016: N/A)
with the residual period using the terminal growth rate
of 3%. This terminal growth rate does not exceed the
average long-term growth rate for the relevant markets.

As at 31 December 2017 accumulated impairment
loss of HK$10,567000 (2016: N/A) was made on the
investment in GZ Kuaizi as the associate has been
unable to achieve its financial forecasts and requires
continuous funding from investors to develop its

business to a meaningful scale.

(c) The recoverable amount of the investment in an
associate, NJ Houjian, is zero because the directors
of the Company expected that no profit would be

generated in the foreseeable future.

As at 31 December 2017 accumulated impairment
loss of HK$11,537000 (2016: N/A) was made on the

investment in NJ Houjian.

Although the Group holds less than 20% of the voting
power of GZ Kuaizi and NJ Houjian, the Group exercises
significant influence over these entities because the
Group is entitled to appoint a director out of the five

directors of these entities.

HE—

21.

E—+F+RA=+—HILFE

REE QR 2 RE (#)
GEE

(a) RZE—AF+ZA=+—8 Bk
—EE A R R PR R BRI 28K
ARERERE-

(b) R ERBEMEFREZA
WEeEHeEMBEEFEREE -
EREEFEZARER2EAN
BEBERERBHEREAN - AEE
EABRBATMEI771% (ZF—R
FNER) R TR B R 6 R AR o 4
RE3% MR E - ZKIHE R K
THRBEEM S TIORAERE-

RoZE—tE+=-A=+—0 2%
8 (B 85 1810,667,000/8 7T ( —ZZ — X
FTER)IRREMNRERFZIRE
et RA AR E A RE ERER
HUBEARFREEFEREE
S EEBEREAEEE

©) RN—REERBAERERIREZA
WEEERE RERAAARESRR
R R RE T EALR -

R-Z—+F+=-A=+—A0" 25t
B RTE11,637000/8 7T (ZF—7<
FNER) RN ERER A
R

BEAEERARMETNERER
TR20% 2 B EE RSB ZF
ERARBEARE RRARSAEE
BRRIZSECIRESTTHES
—RES-
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21. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (cont'a) 21. REEQTZ2RE (&)
The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group's TREFBETASEEGAEREA
share of the amounts of all individual immaterial RZFBETERBE AR ZE
associates that are accounted for using the equity B o
method.
2017 2016
—E—tF =R F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
At 31 December: R+=RA=+—8:
Carrying amounts of interests B ZREE 15,099 -
Year ended 31 December: BEZ+-A=+—H
LHFE:
Loss from continuing operations FRECEEBEE (1,754) -
Other comprehensive income Hip2mUA - -
Total comprehensive income FHEWAERR (1,754) -
The Group has not recognised loss for the year AEEHABRRERELZFA
amounting to approximately HK$4,000 (2016: BB 9 B4 A4,0008 L (ZF—<
approximately HK$45,000) and HK$19,000 (2016: F : 4945,0007%8 7T ) 519,000/ 7T (=
HK$114,000) for Yu Chang and Xueying respectively. The T—NF 114,000 L) B RSE
accumulated losses not recognised were approximately &2 AR ZIEEE S B4 750,000
HK$50,000 (2016: approximately HK$46,000) and BT (ZZT—7NF  £946,0008 L) &
HK$133,000 (2016: HK$114,000) for Yu Chang and 133,000/ 7T ( =& — /54 : 114,000
Xueying respectively. BIL) °
As at 31 December 2017 the bank and cash balances RZE—tF+A=1+—0H0 K&
of the Group's associates in the PRC denominated EhEBERARIUAARBTEZR
in RMB amounted to approximately HK$16,585,000 17 &3 & 45 #23F £916,585,000/8 7T
(2016: approximately HK$53,000). Conversion of RMB (ZZE—J/N%F 1 453,000 7m) - AR
into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign BHIRBINERER (REIINEE TR
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of By K CHEME - EE RN EEREAR
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange JE) °
Regulations.
194 China Innovationpay Group Limited
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HE-_T—tHF+-A=1T—HIFE

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 22, WHEEMBEE
ASSETS
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Unlisted equity securities FE L THIRAFE
At cost RN 108,227 100,620

Unlisted equity securities with carrying amount of
approximately HK$108,227000 (2016: HK$100,620,000)
were carried at cost as they do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and their fair value cannot be
reliably measured.

The carrying amounts of the Group's available-for-
sale financial assets are denominated in RMB as at 31
December 2016 and 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, available-forsale financial assets
were pledged as security in respect of loan granted to
the underlying investee company.

JE LTI AN FE A BREI{E 4Y108,227.000
B (ZF— 739 :100,620,000%
TO) B AMEYE - B s EaRm
BUWEMSHRERTEAISEFEED
FA{E -

RZE—RFER_FT—+F+-H
=t+—HB AEEAHREEHKEE
ZEEEENUAREEE-

RZE—+rE+-_A=+—0" 7
HEVBEEDRE THBEERER
RIEFEHK IR -
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 Bz Z—+F+-_A=1+—"HIFE
INVENTORIES 23. =&
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
Finished goods 2K mh 2,710 3,153
As at 31 December 2017 an allowance was made for RZE—+ttF+-_A=+—8"
estimated irrecoverable inventories for approximately G AW E 2 FEEL & E
HK$3,928,000 (2016: HK$1,223,000). #13,928,0008 L (=& — X &
1,223,000/ 7T) °
TRADE RECEIVABLES 24. FEWERF
2017 2016
—E—-+tF TR F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAETT
Trade receivables JrE Uk BR 3k 35,638 23,863
Allowance for doubtful debts ARG (8,876) (3,356)
26,762 20,5607

196

The Group's trading terms with customers are mainly
on credit. The credit terms generally range from 25 to 90
(2016: 30 to 90 days) days. For new customers, payment
in advance is normally required. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the directors.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Contd)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on the
invoice date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

HE-_T—tHF+-A=1T—HIFE

24. FEWERF (&)
FEMBE 2 (IR Z A E W e
MBS Y BRI AT

2017 2016

—E—+F —T—KE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT F#TT

0 to 90 days 0%90H 25,073 10,688
91 to 180 days 91H £180H 1,666 4,662
181 to 365 days 1812365H 23 5,157
26,762 20,507

As at 31 December 2017 an allowance was made
for estimated irrecoverable trade receivables for
approximately HK$8,876,000 (2016: HK$3,356,000).

R—_E—+tFE+_A=+—H8 &
fly &1~ AT Uk [B] 2 8 UK BR 3K 1 B
1% 498,876,000 7t (=T — /N F -
3,356,000/ 7T ) °

Reconciliation of allowance for trade receivables: JRE LS BR SR s 2 SRR
2017 2016
—E—+FE —T—XE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAETT
At 1 January n—A—H 3,356 4,216
Allowance for the year FARE 5,072 -
Reversal of allowance for the year FNEFERD - (612)
Exchange difference N ZRE 448 (248)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 8,876 3,356
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 BE—_ZT—+HF+-_A=1+—HILFE
24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (contd) 24, FEWBRFR (&)
As of 31 December 2017 trade receivables of RZFB—tF+_A=+—08 EK
HK$2,189,000 (2016: HK$9,862,000) were past due but 88 582,189,000/ 7T (=& — /N F ¢
not impaired. These relate to a number of independent 9,862,000/ 7T ) & #1 HA1E KRB E © 5%
customers for whom there is no recent history of default. LIRS FT B R R 8 2 B
The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as BFPEM ZERBER KRR DT
follows: LU
2017 2016
—EB-tF —ERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Up to 3 months =EAZA 2,118 4,704
3 to 6 months =EAZEREA 48 1
Over 6 months 7~E A LA E 23 5,157
2,189 9,862
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables RZE—RFER_ZE—+F+=-A
are denominated in RMB as at 31 December 2016 and =t+—RH AEEEWERZEREE
2017 IARKEHE-
25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25. FENRE -RERHEMERR

RECEIVABLES

2017 2016
—E—tF —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Prepayments (Note (a)) Tt kI (Kista)) 115,301 9,052
Deposits Ee 13,653 12,357
Loans to independent third parties MBYE=FELZ
(Note (b)) B (X)) - 3,349
Other receivables H b & Wk 7,821 33,438
136,775 58,196
Long term deposits classified as DERIRBEES
non-current assets RHR® (2,823) (3,978)
133,952 54,218

198
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25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Contd)

Note:

(a)

As at 31 December 2017, prepayment of
HK$109,989,000 (2016: HK$NIl) were exclusively for the
purpose of fulfilling settlement obligation as set out in
note 32.

The carrying amounts of loans to independent third
parties were denominated in RMB as at 31 December
2016. The loans were arranged at fixed interest rates
between 12% to 15% per annum.

At 31 December 2016, the loans are secured by the
following:

(i) Personal guarantee with unlimited amount given
by the largest shareholder of the borrowing
company; and

(ii) Land located in the PRC owned by the borrowing
company.

As at 31 December 2017 an allowance was made for
estimated irrecoverable prepayment, deposits and other
receivables of approximately HK$55,937000 (2016:
HK$21,661,000).

Reconciliation of allowance for prepayments, deposits
and other receivables:

HE-_T—tHF+-A=1T—HIFE

BNRE RERHEMERRK
(%)
P& -

@ RZZE—+tF+-A=+—8"
8 f-+ % 78109,989,0008 7T ( —
T RF B E ) MM FE328T
WA EAREITHREET-

by RZT-—RE+-_A=t—H8"
R H =TT Eh 2 &5 2 AR
BAARETE BEFUANTE
F12%ZE15% 2 B E MR 5 -

RZTE—RF+-A=+—8"
ERTIA T IR B ERA

(i) BRARZ&RAREIEL
ZERHSE L EAE
R R

(i)  BERABEAR LR
B2 L3 o

R-E—+E+-_A=+—08 %H
AAAKREZEMNFE Re kE
fth JE WK H 485 8 £955,937,0007% 7T
(=Z—7X%:21,661,0007T) °

BNRIA e REMERGREE
Hik:

2017 2016
—E-tF =R F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 January R—H—H 21,661 24,361
Allowance for the year FNEE 31,430 -
Reversal of allowance for the year F B FERD - (1,167)
Exchange difference ME W ERR 2,846 (1,533)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 55,937 21,661
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 BE—_ZT—+HF+-_A=1+—HILFE
EARNEST MONEY PAID FOR POTENTIAL 26. ®mEBERECHED
INVESTMENTS
On 18 July 2016, the Company entered into a RZZE—REFLATN\B KAaH
memorandum in respect of a conditional acquisition B EEREE U A 1R
of the Target Group. Pursuant to the memorandum, Bz AEEREBEEZT—X
the Group paid to the Target Group RMB30,000,000 F+-A=+T—HLEFERERE
(equivalent to HK$33,490,000) as earnest money during & = 1+ A R #30,000,0007T (HHE R
the year ended 31 December 2016. 33,490,000 L) tEBHE S °
On 17 March 2017, the Company and the sellers entered RZZE—+tF=A++tH ARAFH
into a Sale and Purchase Agreement pursuant to which BARIMNEEWE Bt AAFE2
the Company have conditionally agreed to purchase 51% ERHREEEEBEEEE Z51%K
equity interests of the Target Group. R
On 31 October 2017 the Group agreed to pay further R-_ZE—tF+A=+—H0 &&EE
RMB31,000,000 (equivalent to HK$36,023,000) as AEREEEEE-—TITARK
earnest money to the Target Group and the total 31,000,0007T (48 & 736,023,000/
earnest money paid by the Group was RMB61,000,000 TMERBEES MAKEER-ZE
(equivalent to HK$73,246,000) as at 31 December 2017. —+tF+A=t+—HX[Zz#HES

458 A AR #61,000,0007T (HHE %
73,246,000/ 7T ) ©
AMOUNTS DUE FROM NON- 27 FEWHEA R ZIEERRER
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS OF b1 |
SUBSIDIARIES
Amounts due from non-controlling shareholders of JEE Wi Bf /B8 2 &) 2 FF 122 AR AR BR SR IE 40
subsidiaries are as follows: Rk
Maximum
Balance at amount
31 December Balance at outstanding
2017 1 January 2017  during the year
R=-Z—tF RIT—LtF
+=A=t+—-H —H—H FAZS
Name " kg2 FEER REESHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR FET
Mr. JOONG Chi-Wei RERELE 290 290 290
Mr. Sun Jiangning BIEXAE - 565 650
290 855
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 ==
27. AMOUNTS DUE FROM NON- 27.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

The amounts were unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2017, an allowance was made
for estimated irrecoverable amounts due from non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries of approximately
HK$752,000 (2016: nil).

E—+F+RA=+—HILFE

FEUR B BB A B oz FE I IR AR AR K
15 (%)

%Zﬁ’ﬂlﬁz%?ﬁiﬁﬁ R ERARBERE

yam

Aﬂ

RZTE—tF+-_R=+—H ®E
Yo Bt /B8 2 B 2 SRR R AR A & S AT K
THFIAAY752,0008 7T (ZF—RF:
)R-

28. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 28. BAVEFTATEEZRZBE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BE

2017 2016

—E—tF —T-RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHETT

Unlisted PRC equity funds JEETHBERERES 9,658 -

The carrying amount of the above financial assets is
classified as held for trading. The fair value of the unlisted
PRC equity funds at 31 December 2017 are based on
statement provided by the operator of the fund. The
directors of the Group assessed that there was no
material difference when the funds were redeemed as at
31 December 2017.

MM EEZ REESEAFER
% RZZT—+F+=—A=+—H3k
FHAHRBRERES 2 ATFETERE
SRIEEFMRH IR - AEBES
FEEEN—FT—+tF+_A=1+—
AEORITEERER-
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29.

30.

202

RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES

As at 31 December 2017 the Group had bank balances
of HK$1,102,000 (2016: HK$NiIl) frozen by a PRC District
People’s Procuratorate to facilitate legal investigation not
related to the Group.

The restricted bank balances were denominated in RMB.

Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject
to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations.

BANK AND CASH BALANCES

As at 31 December 2017 the bank and cash balances
of the Group denominated in RMB was amounted to
HK$61,128,000 (2016: HK$136,836,000). Conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations.

As at 31 December 2017, bank balances of
HK$23,101,000 (2016: HK$98,295,000) were exclusively
for the purpose of fulfilling settlement obligation as set
out in note 32.
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30.

Z—+F+A=+—HILFE

SRR ITEER
RZEBE—+FE+-_A=+—0 K&
E A RITA#1,102,0008 L (=&
—NFTHE) EPE e ARR
R RS AR AL B R 2 AR R
Z o

HEHRITAERAARKEFHE -

ARERIBBINGERETE (PEIIME
BRI K GEE- - EENRTEE
BRED)

RITRAESERR
R-—ZE—+HF+-_A=+—8 'K
SEUARBHEZRITIABESE
F23%61,128,0008 7L (ZF — /R F:
136,836,000/ 7T ) ° A R H 1 & 51
aEE (P BEINEFEBIEN) &
(FE -SERNEEEHTE) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R RMEE
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 BE—_Z—+H+-_A=1t—HItFE
31. TRADE PAYABLES 31. EMFERRM
The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the date EAER(REIERERTE) 2
of receipt of goods, is as follows: BRI DT T -
2017 2016
—E—+fF T—RF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHET FAET
0 to 90 days 0£90H 2,546 17
181 to 365 days 181 H £365H 18 15
Over 365 days 365H LA 2,418 2,386
4,982 2,418
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables are RZE-—RFRZZE—EF+H
denominated in RMB as at 31 December 2016 and 2017 =+—B FAEBEENERZKREE
AARBEGHAE -
32. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 32. FERREARHEHMEMR
2017 2016
—Z2—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Settlement obligation (Note) HEEME (M) 119,876 98,295
Receipt in advance ?EH&* 4,063 4,502
Accruals Tﬁi\hiﬁ’{‘ﬁﬁ 5,978 5,985
Other payables H A & - 5K 22,528 11,251
152,445 120,033
Note: B 5T

The settlement obligations are recognised upon receipt of fund
from end users and prepaid card holders of Third Party Payment
Services. The amount represents the Group's obligations to
remit the same to designated recipients or the contracted
merchants. The settlement basis is normally the next business
day of the transaction date, except for certain designated
recipients and merchants.

BEEERURER AP RE =TT N

HE%‘Z%H—F—FIZ IR HERR © 2 &
BIEASEAREREERBZANRGL
BPERRESR EEH-—RARS
AR —EEXA EEEXaEANRE
FRRSNo
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 BE_ZT—+HF+-_A=+—HILFE
33. AMOUNT DUETO A DIRECTOR 33. B¥—RE=E
The amount was unsecured, interest free and repayable ZHERERR RERERERE
on demand. = o
34. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION 34. ENIARE
PAYABLES
2017 2016
—E—tF =R F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
As at 1 January Rn—H—H 73,860 19,667
Release upon issue of consideration shares 21T (& I B 7R (31,944) (16,204)
(Gain)/loss on fair value change recognised FR RN FEEH
for the year (W), /B8 (44,558) 70,984
Exchange differences N ERE 2,642 (587)
As at 31 December R+=—RA=+—8 - 73,860
Analysed as: DT
Current liabilities neaE - 40,278
Non-current liabilities EREBEE - 33,582
- 73,860
The contingent consideration payables as at year end REFL - BRSO E R RN B
date represented the present value of the contingent NEIZHAREBRE REREE=
considerations for the acquisitions of subsidiaries, which LET2HE - A EFBHIIREGE I

were estimated based on level 3 measurement. Details MK M5F41(c) °
of the above are set out in note 41(c) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 BE—_Z—+H+-_A=1t—HItFE
35. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE 35. BrEER

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
At 1 January R—H—H 23,756 41,365
Amortisation for the year (note 9) FREE (59) (24,606) (15,592)
Exchange difference PE N ERR 850 (2,017)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H - 23,756

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
has issued a guarantee of RMB150,000,000 in respect
of loans granted to an investee company. Under the
guarantee, the Group is liable for the maximum liability
of RMB150,000,000 (equivalent to HK$179,093,000) of
the investee company’s borrowings from the investee
company’'s major equity holder upon failure of the
investee company making payments when due.

The maximum liability of the Group as at 31 December
2016 under this guarantee is the aggregate of borrowings
drawn at that date of RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$55,818,000) and interest accrued up to
that date of approximately RMB2,945,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,288,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2017 the investee
company settled loans from the investee company’s
major equity holder. Thus, the financial guarantee was
derecognised when the loans settled.

REBEE-_Z—AF+-_A=+—H1
FERN AEBRE T —RHEIRERD
A B # #1717 A R #150,000,0007T 2
BR-BEER WHEERRRE
REHAREEEE  RIAEEBEHRA
WIRERRZEERRITBEAZLHE
BRERAERZESABAARK
150,000,0007T (48 & #179,093,000
BIL)BE -

R-E—RE+-A=+—80 &%
ERZERET &= BEANZAB
RELZ Bk 488 AR %50,000,0007T
(A& 7 4955,818,000/87T) M H E7%
A 1E z A F B4 A K #2,945,000
7t (FHE 7 493,288,000 7T) °

RE-T—+tE+-A=+—AitE
R REAAFEEERET SN
A EAZ R EUL - 8RR
B B TR
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36.

206

DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax liability of fair value gain on intangible assets
by acquisition of a subsidiary is recognised by the Group.

HE_ZT—tS+-_A=1T—HILFE

EER IR
75 BB AU R — R 2 IR 4
FaE ATEWSZEERER

EEEO

2017 2016

—E—tF —T—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHETT

At 1 January n—H—H (441) (749)
Credit to profit or loss for the year FARKFEEER

(Note 11) (B=E11) 457 272

Exchange differences IE N ZRE (16) 36

At 31 December W+=—A=+—H - (441)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of HK$179,066,000 (2016: HK$112,417.000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of such tax losses
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. All
unused tax losses will expire on or before 2022.

No temporary differences associated with undistributed
earnings of subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities
was recognised as at 31 December 2016 and 2017
No liability has been recognised in respect of these
differences because the Group is in a position to control
the timing of reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that such differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE-_T—tHF+-A=T—HIFE

37 SHARE CAPITAL 37 BAE
2017 2016
ZB-tF “ERF
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
RPEE KX BHEE G|
Note ‘000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000
Bt TR TERT T FET
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of BREE.0E T
HK$0.01 each T Ak 20,000,000 200,000 20,000,000 200,000
Ordinary, issued and TEBETR
fully paid: MR
At 1 January W—A—H 6,099,310 60,993 6,015,766 60,158
Share issued under placing I B EA & 31T (a) 788,600 7,886 - -
Share issued under share BRI IEEE R 4E
option scheme EES 40 21,600 216 37248 372
Share issued under BB ESA
contingent consideration X {E#1T 34 69,445 695 46,296 463
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 6,978,955 69,790 6,099,310 60,993
Note: B 5E -

(a) On 17 March 2017 the Company entered into a placing
agreement with Oriental Patron Asia Limited (the
“Placing Agent”) pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to place, through the Placing
Agent, up to 900,000,000 placing shares at a price of
HK$0.5 per placing share. The placing was completed
on 26 April 2017 and the net proceeds from placing was
approximately HK$390,357,000.

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maximise the return to the shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

(a) R-ZE—tF=ZA+tH AQF
B2 Oriental Patron Asia Limited ([ ¢
EREDITVRERZE B K
ANRIEERHERERARENRER
B ERM7H0.558 T2 BIRALE &
%900,000,0000% it & A% 1 © B2 & 7
—E—+EMA -+ RNBEEARER

EF
TTo

R

==t

1=K

TH 5 %8 4 5390,357.00078%

AEBEREEZ AR REEARE

LR WEBE(CERE

Pk & AR RS RS E O 5

FEAFXNEERRATF

“T—FFR
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

37

208

SHARE CAPITAL (Cont'd)

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to
risk. The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the payment of dividends, issue
new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts, redeem
existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-
adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by adjusted capital. Net debt is calculated as total
debts less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity (i.e. share capital,
share premium, retained profits and other reserves).

HE—

37

Z—+F+A=+—HILFE

IRA ()
AEELZERLLPIREERTE A
SERBELEREZB2ELEREE
ZRBRE B EARRBIL NIA
B - BERINHEEARE A&H
A A B R A B B AT HTR - B A
h BEFEH BRREBHIH
EEENRBEETR-

AREBIREFLHEHBER L REAE
EEER A R FEBRIAKLH
EENGHE - FEHZAEHRHRS
EREeFEYAE - LRBEELABRE
PrE#EzmEy (20 B~ Bt s (&
REBEBENMEMBERE)

2017 2016

—E—tF —T—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHETT

Debts (a) &%) 153,364 141,705
Less: Prepayment restricted for B EBBEERE

settlement obligation PR HI B A (109,989) -

Less: Cash and cash equivalents BRERREEEY (304,612) (185,422)

Net debts (EOr R (261,237) (43,717)

Equity (b) 1% (b) 1,240,180 842,804

Net debts to equity ratio FEBE R X N/A REH N/A i@

(a) Debt is defined as trade payables, accruals and
other payables excluding receipt in advance and
financial guarantee as detailed in notes 31, 32 and
35 to the consolidated financial statements.

(b) Equity included all capital and reserves before non-
controlling interests of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R RMEE
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 BE—_Z—+H+-_A=1t—HItFE
37. SHARE CAPITAL (conta) 37 RAE#E)
The externally imposed capital requirements for the REE BT H B AR s
Group is to have a public float of at least 25% of the HINSBEMNz EAERBAERIFEED
Company'’s shares in order to maintain its listing on the 25% AR RNARMDBRBIFRE - RIE
Stock Exchange. Based on information that is publicly RRARFBARERRRESA
available to the Company and within the knowledge of NBFEARRREBITRABERD
the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued 25% ©
share capital was held by the public.
38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 38. ARFAZHMBMRRRFHEE
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE (3]
COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the (@) ALATRZHBRRE
Company
As at 31 December
R+=—BA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF =R F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
b= FHET FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and Y% BB Kk
equipment - 2
Investments in subsidiaries  RAHIBRA R ZI%E 405,036 375,291
Amounts due from & W2 Bt /&8 2 B 3R IR
subsidiaries 413,851 261,701
Earnest money paid for MEBEREENHES
potential investments 26 73,246 33,490
892,133 670,484
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and ~ FBfIFIBE & K
other receivables H A & W k18 834 834
Amounts due from FE W B B~ R FKIE
subsidiaries 203,448 195,448
Bank and cash balances RITRIRB AR 214,847 14,202
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE_ZT—tS+-_A=1T—HILFE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 38. ARFZHBRRRKHES

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE B(#)
COMPANY (Cont ')
(a) Statement of financial position of the (@) AELTZHBMRRKE)

Company (Cont'd)

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF T RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FAET
Current liabilities RBEE

Accruals and other payables JE12 & F & H b B[S 318 2,393 2,388
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEATHI B A & 78 76,434 36,679
78,827 39,067
Net current assets REBEEFE 340,302 171,417
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,232,435 841,901

Capital and reserves EAXRFEE
Share capital B& AR 37 69,790 60,993
Reserves f# % 38(b) 1,162,645 780,908
TOTAL EQUITY XA 1,232,435 841,901
Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March RZE-NF=ZAZ+EAK
2018 and are signed on its behalf by: EZgHE YR THEER

xEE:
Mr. Guan Guisen Mr. Cao Chunmeng
BMERTE BEBHEE
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE_Z—+Ft+-_A=+—HIFE
38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 38. ARRZHMBEMRRRKRRK #HiEE
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE g
COMPANY (contd)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) ERARZHEEE
Share Share
premium Contributed option Warrant Retained
account surplus reserve reserve loss Total
RAEEE  HARH BRERE wE REER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHET FTET AL AL AT
At 1 January 2016 RZZ—RE—A—H 1,151,475 70,121 61,606 1,000 (299,821) 984,381
Total comprehensive FRZENALE
income for the year - - - - (276,569) (276,569)
Issued for contingent BIRARERR
consideration shares 15,741 - - - - 15,741
Exercise of share options IR 13,081 - (4,141) - - 8,940
Share-based payments Bt 2 (4 308 - - 48,415 - - 48,415
Release upon lapse of FABE AR KU AR BR
share options - - (2,442) - 2,442 -
Changes in equity for the year ~ FRERE 28,822 - 41,832 - (274,127)  (203,473)
At 31 December 2016 RZT—RF
+ZA=+—H 1,180,297 70,121 103,438 1,000 (573,948) 780,908
At 1 January 2017 R-ZE—tF—H—H 1,180,297 70,121 103,438 1,000 (573,948) 780,908
Total comprehensive FRZERAEE
income for the year - - - - (59,010) (59,010)
Issued for placing shares R M 847 382,471 - - - - 382,471
Issued for contingent BIRRRERR
consideration shares 31,249 - - - - 31,249
Exercise of share options TEERE 7562 - (2,378) - - 5,184
Share-based payments RIAZF50R - - 21,843 - - 21,843
Release upon lapse of N e TR
share options - - (4,558) - 4,558 -
Changes in equity for the year ~ &R EE) 421,282 - 14,907 - (54,452) 381,737
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—tF
+-A=+-H 1,601,579 70,121 118,345 1,000 (628,400) 1,162,645
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39. RESERVES

212

(a)

(b)

Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and
movements therein are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(1)

(ii)

Share premium account

Share premium represents premium arising
from the issue of shares at a price in excess
of their par value per share and is not
distributable but may be utilised in paying
up unissued shares of the Company to be
issued to the shareholders of the Company
as fully paid bonus shares or in providing
for the premiums payable on repurchase of
shares.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group arose
as a result of the Group reorganisation
implemented in preparation for the
listing of the Company's shares in 2000
and represented the excess of the then
consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired, over the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange
therefore.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

39. RESERVES (conta)

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Cont’d)

(i11)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the
fair value of the actual or estimated number
of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Group recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for equity-settled share-based
payments in note 4(v) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the excess
of the fair value of the Group's share of net
assets over the purchase price. The amount
is retained in the consolidated statement
of financial position until the disposal of the
subsidiaries.

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve, which is non-
distributable, is appropriated from the
profit after taxation of the Group's PRC
subsidiaries under the applicable laws and
regulations in the PRC.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with accounting policies set
out in note 4(d) to the consolidated financial
statements.

HE-_T—tHF+-A=T—HIFE

39. @wEE)

(b)

REEEREN®)

(i) ARG

BREREERERS

B 75 R I R4 (v

A IR SN FRIE T

ldise

RMETHRR BRE
FREEF R T ASER
Bz R1TREBRESA

2 RFE-

iv) EXGEE

CENCHEEERN e
BEFEZ A FEBL

BEEZEZR 2

LEYIS

HEMBARERRE -
BEEMBRARALER

_u:o

v) —EEHE

AERBERTAIDIK
THEEH B ARG B A B
JBRRIRIEFBEERA

-

i) PES A

BIROE R B 2 R B &

EXFEEREEER
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

39. RESERVES (contd)

(b)

214

Nature and purpose of reserves (Contd)

(vii)

Warrant reserve

Warrant reserve represents the net
proceeds received from the issue of
warrants of the Company. The reserve will
be transferred to share capital and share
premium accounts upon the exercise of the
warrants.

On 6 February 2015, the Company issued
530,000,000 unlisted warrants at an issue
price of HK$0.002 per warrant pursuant to
a subscription agreement. Each warrant
entitles the holder to subscribe for one
ordinary share of HK$0.01 each at an initial
subscription price of HK$0.72 per share at
any time within 5 years commencing from
the date of issue of the warrants.

During the year ended 31 December 2016
and 2017 there was no changes in number
of underlying shares of warrants.

Terms of unexpired and unexercised
warrants at the end of the reporting periods:

HE_ZT—tS+-_A=1T—HILFE

39. @wEE)

(b)

REEEREN &)
i) RIRBEE

RBEEFEERTAR
AR R WEZ &
TRIRFRR o % R
TERREERERE
P 7R R B A 1B O

RZTE—HF-_ARX
B AR AIRIERE %
FHORBETEEMARAR
T F0.00278 T AT
530,000,000% 3F ™
R EE - B 1D R
B TEBEAER T
PRI AEE 21T B Hi#E
ARFR RIS RE
BEMR0.72BTAE—
M EE0.OE Tz &
J% o

BE-F-—AFR-F
—tF+ZA=+—H
I FEHE HERRK
EERNHEBELES
@Jo

RmERRAEZER K
BIH R ORTT R B A pe
ZFEHRIT

Number of underlying
shares of the warrants

wREZHBERDEE
Date of issue Exercisable period 2017 2016
BTHE 1T —E-+tF —T—REF
6 February 2015 6 February 2015 to
—T-HF-ARH 5 February 2020
“E-RAF-_AARAZE
“ZE-TF-HAA 530,000,000 530,000,000
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

40.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
3 May 2012, shareholders of the Company approved the
adoption of a New Share Option Scheme.

Concerning New Share Option Scheme, the Company
operates it for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Eligible participants
include the full-time and part-time employees, executives,
officers, directors, business consultants, agents,
legal and financial advisers of the Company and the
Company's subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective
on 3 May 2012 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 5 years from that date.

Pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme, the
Company may grant options to the participants to
subscribe for ordinary share of HK$0.01 each, subject to,
when aggregated under this scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30%
of the total number of shares in issue from time to time.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within
any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant
of shares options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

HE—

40.

E—+F+RA=+—HILFE

B KB
R-T——FHA=ABRFTZAAR
BEBEFAG L AR AREIER
AT R B

ARRRIRLH BB 2 B BA
HAKBEBRDERNELERZE
BER2RERHEDH N EE -AER
SEEBBARTLARAMER
AZEREFRBER TTRAR B
REBE BEF EHAAERE RE
AREMBER-AEER T
FRAA=ZBAER BRIFERTEUERE
7 BB AREFFERAE R -

RIBFBRETE ARR A2 H
FER L BRE  ARBEREE.01
BT BB M F AR R
RARET &) M AR RUE (R E A A A =T
ZARBEZEMBNRER TEEBE
IR 2 1T 4 BL30% - MEf + =
EABREAR RIEFERAERAER
SEER D BERAES M2 TEITRG
BEe# A AARRAMEMERED #
TN 2 1% B - E— TR LR
PREE < BRAEAN R KRS BRI
fE°
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40.

216

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (contd)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a connected person, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in
excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
is determinable by the directors, and commences after
a certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not
later than five years from the date of the offer of the
share options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors, but may not be less than the highest
of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's
shares on the date of the offer of the share options;
(i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company's shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value
of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

China Innovationpay Group Limited
Annual Report 2017
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

40.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (conta)

The fair value of share options granted is recognised
in profit or loss taking into account the probability that
the options will vest over the vesting period. Upon the
exercise of the options the resulting shares issued are
recorded as additional share capital at the nominal value
of the shares, and the excess of the exercise price per
share over the nominal value of the shares is recorded
in the share premium account. At the time when the
share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve is transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve is transferred to
retained profits. Lapsed options, prior to their exercise
date, are deleted from the outstanding options. All equity-
settled share-based compensation expense is settled in
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation
to repurchase or settle the options in cash.

The grantees may exercise the options in whole or in
part by giving exercise notice to the grantor at any time
during the option period provided that the grantees shall
exercise the options to acquire the option shares in
accordance with the following vesting schedule:

Vesting schedule

One year after the grant date 30%
Two years after the grant date 30%
Three years after the grant date 40%

HE—

40.

E—+F+RA=+—HILFE

IRAP A FRE ()

FT% B AR A > D A Bt I B R
EREBENEB Y A% 1218
HHE o AR A 1T 515 - B B
17 2 B AR A5 T (B 51 VE 58 S AR 7 -
TG AT (B PR 1) T 2 = AT
ABRAD 3% B BE o BB IR MM 1T 1 B -
PHRBREREAER, S HEeE
1B 2 AR 5 1 o 2 P AR R U s 1
BB 748 - BT AT R B A A
BENER S EEESRBREF -
FATT(E B HA A 5k 382 BE A4 1 1 K47
{2 B AR P 5% o FIT 75 HE 25 45 B LAY
BN BERESEE - RE@Y
RS s LA IR & A R AR 2 SR T B
HEEME-

AR A AT 0 e HIPR YL AATRF -
BEBAREAZELBA TE2ERX
BP0 BB - B IR R AR AZARIE LA
THEBREXRITERBEARERR
R -

BERRER

B HERE—F& 30%

Bi% 4 BT E & 30%

BREBHEF=F1% 40%
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 BE_ZT—+HF+-_A=+—HILFE
SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Contd) 40. RO ZAARIE (&)
The following table discloses details of the Company's TREBFERETSIETAREE
share options under New Share Option Scheme and the RiEZFHE RERBE_T—XRF
movements during the year ended 31 December 2016: TZA=T—HLEFEZEH:
Number of share options
BREYE
At1 Granted Expired/ Exercised At
Exercise January during  lapsed during during 31 December
Date of grant Exercise period price 2016 the year the year the year 2016
R-B-R%E
RZB-R% EnEE/ tZh
BHBH g T&E -A-H EREM 3 ERTE =t+-A
New Share Option Scheme
Directors and Chief Executives
BEEZRARITBAG
6 July 2012 6 July 2013 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,240,000 - - - 6,240,000
ZE-Z%tARH ZE-Z5tANAEZStEtARA 02537
6 July 2014 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,240,000 - - - 6,240,000
ZE-MELAAAEZE-tELARA 0.25%8 7
6 July 2016 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 8,320,000 - - - 8,320,000
ZE-REtRAAAEZZ-tELARA 0.25%8 7
11 June 2015 February 2016 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 21,000,000 - - - 21,000,000
“Z-hERAt-H “E-NE-R-HE-Z-ZTEXAtH 1265871
1 February 2017 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 21,000,000 - - - 21,000,000
—T-+5-F-RE-F-TE/ATH 125%7T
1 February 2018 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 28,000,000 - - - 28,000,000
ZZ-/\fZR-REZZ-TE/ATH 125%7T
90,800,000 - - - 90,800,000
Other employees
EfbfER
6 July 2012 6 July 2015 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 38,048,000 - - (37248,000) 800,000
“E--F+ARH “E-hELARHEZE—+ELATR 0.25%7C
11 June 2015 1 February 2016 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 38,791,800 - (1,442,400) - 37349,400
“Z-R§~AT—H ZE-RFZR-REZZ-TERATHE 125%7T
1 February 2017 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 38,791,800 - (1,442,400) - 37349,400
“E—+E-f-HE-Z-ZTEXAtH 1265871
1 February 2018 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 51,722,400 - (1,923,200) - 49,799,200
—T-\§-RF-BE-Z-TE£/ATH 12587
167354,000 - (48080001 (37248000  125298,000
Total share options
BiRERY 258,154,000 - (4,808,000} (37248,0000 216,098,000
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40.

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE —tF+-_A=+—B8IEE
SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Contd) 40. RO ZAARIE (&)
The following table discloses details of the Company's TREBFERETSIETAREE
share options under New Share Option Scheme and the RiEZFHE REREBE_T—+tF
movements during the year ended 31 December 2017: TZA=T—HLEFEZEH:
Number of share options
BREHA
At Granted Expired/ Exercised At
Exercise 1 January during  lapsed during during 31 December
Date of grant Exercise period price 2017 the year the year the year 2017
R-B-t%
gt o3 EREE/ tZh
BHBH &S T&E -A-H EREM %% ERiTR =t+-A
New Share Option Scheme
FRRETH
Directors and Chief Executives
BEEZRARITBAG
6 July 2012 6 July 2013 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,240,000 - - (6,240,000) -
ZE-Z%tARH ZE-Z5tANAEZStEtARA 0.2587T
6 July 2014 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,240,000 - - (6,240,000) -
ZE-MECARREZZ-LELAER 0.25%8 7
6 July 2016 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 8,320,000 - - (8,320,000 -
B RECARBEZZ-LELAER 0.25%8 7
11 June 2015 February 2016 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 21,000,000 - - - 21,000,000
“Z-hERAt-H “E-R"F-A-BE-T-FF,A+H 1265871
1 February 2017 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 21,000,000 - - - 21,000,000
ZZ—+F-R-AEZZ-FF/ ATAH 125%7T
1 February 2018 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 28,000,000 - - - 28,000,000
ZZ-/\fZR-REZZ-TE/ATH 125%7T
90,800,000 - - (208000000 70,000,000
New Share Option Scheme
FRRETH
Other employees
EfbfER
6 July 2012 6 Ju\y 2016 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 800,000 - - (800,000) -
—Z-—F+AKA “E-NELARHEZZ—+ELRTR 0.25%7C
11 June 2015 1 February 2016 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 37349,400 - (2,692,200) - 34,657200
“Z-R§~AT—H ZE-RFZR-REZZ-TERATHE 125%7T
1 February 2017 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 37349,400 - (2,692,200) - 34,657200
ZE—+F-R-AEZZ-FF/ ATAH 125%7T
1 February 2018 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 49,799,200 - (3,589,600) - 46,209,600
ZZ-/\fZR-REZZ-TE/ATH 12587
125,298,000 - (8,974,000) (800,000 115,524,000
Total share options
RREAH 216,098,000 - (89740000 (21,600,000 185,524,000

If the options remain unexercised after a period of 5 years
from the date of grant, the options will expire. Options
are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group.

fied B AL RE DA % 1 B B 5t S B4R
HARTTRE - BB 5 2 - i B B Bk
PSR - BB AR o8 W
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40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (contd) 40. BROZFIE (&)

Details of the share options outstanding during the year
are as follows:

FARMRITEBEEFBEOT

2017 2016
—E-tf ZE-RE
Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
share exercise share exercise
options price options price
¥ T
BREHAE B  BREHE TEE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Outstanding at the beginning of ~ F ¥ KT

the year 216,098,000 1150 258,154,000 1.022
Exercised during the year FATTE (21,600,000) 0.250  (37248,000) 0.250
Lapsed during the year FRKM (8,974,000) 1.150 (4,808,000) 1.250
Outstanding at the end of the year & & i# & 1T1E 185,524,000 1250 216,098,000 1.150

Exercisable at the end of the year & A F17{# 111,314,400 79,949,400

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
for share option exercised during the year ended 31
December 2017 was HK$0.511 (2016: HK$0.620).
21,600,000 (2016: 37,248,000) share options have been
exercised during the year ended 31 December 2017
The options outstanding at the end of the year have a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.47 years
(2016: 3.18 years) and average exercise price of HK$1.250
(2016: HK$1.150).
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41.

(a)

HE-_ZT—tHF+-A=1T—HIFE

HEREFEERE D8

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 4. FEREREBRRMT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Disposal of travellers related services (a)

segment

As mentioned in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group discontinued the
travellers related services segment including Kopu
Group and Kanghui during the year ended 31
December 2016.

Net liabilities at the date of disposal were as

10 45 A 8 5 9 R BT
B BEZF-AF+=A
=t+—BLLEE AEEEL
ERIRFANRY 2 (21
TSR EREE) -

NHEEBRHzBEFRIT:

follows:

HK$'000
FHETT
Property, plant and equipment RN 308
Intangible assets mEEE 94
Trade receivables & U AR 3R 1,843
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TE{fFIE - 24 & H 4th fE UL 5K 1,356
Bank and cash balances RITRIR & 2,164
Trade payables JERTER K (1,859)
Accruals and other payables TEIRE R K HEMER K (1,631)
Amount due to the Group JER AR BFKIE (32,050)
Due to a director B —RESHIE (465)
Net liabilities disposed of FrTHE 2 BEFE (30,240)
Release of foreign currency R B HNEE 0 & (G A
translation reserve (2,920)
Amount due to the Group written off 55 FE 1 AR S B IR 32,050
Gain on disposal of the subsidiaries (Note 15) H & B A & 2 Yz (H3515) 1,168
Total consideration REESE 58
Satisfied by: AR5 BT
Cash consideration ReERE 58
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEEZRESMTFE:
Cash consideration REeRE 58
Cash and cash equivalents disposed FIHEZRERREEFEYD (2,164)
(2,106)

FEAHXNEERRATF
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41. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

(b)

Disposal of subsidiaries

HE_ZT—tHF+_A=1T—HILFE

41. HGZEBEREHKRMT &)

(i)

On 1 January 2017 the Group entered
into a sale and purchase agreement
with a minority shareholder of Beijing
Yushunhengda Technology Co., Ltd. to
dispose of 51% equity interests of Beijing
Yushunhengda Technology Co., Ltd. at a cash
consideration of RMB600,000 (equivalent
to HK$678,000). Beijing Yushunhengda
Technology Co., Ltd. was not yet commence
business. The consideration was satisfied
by cash and the completion date was at 1
March 2017

b) HEKBAT
(i) N -ZF — t F —
H—E'$§%
®m— % 4 %lﬂxﬁ

Beijing Yushunhengda
Technology Co., Ltds]
TEERE A HER
Beijing Yushunhengda
Technology Co., LtdZ
B1%kE - ReERER
AR #600,0007T (48
& $678,000% 70 ) °
Beijing Yushunhengda
Technology Co., Ltdi#
AEBREX -ZRE
Wﬁﬂ 0 e B ES
RZIBE—tF=HA—
=1

Net assets at the date of disposal were as REERBEEFE
follows: W
HK$'000
FHETT
Bank and cash balances RITEIRE MR 608
Non-controlling interests AR = (264)
Net assets disposed of FrHEzEEFE 344
Release of foreign currency translation #4832 & (&
reserve 21
Gain on disposal of the subsidiary HEMBRAR 2 Wa
(Note 9) (MF7E9) 313
Total consideration REBHE 678
Satisfied by: LA 5 B -
Cash consideration ReERE 678
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEE RS MAFRE:
Cash consideration received BUWIRERE 678
Cash and cash equivalents disposed FTHEZIRE NS EEY (608)
70
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 BE_Z—+F+-_A=+—HLFE
41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 4. HZEBREREBHMERMET @)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (cont'a)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (Contd) (b) HEMBAF ()
(i) On 2 September 2016, the Group entered i) WZF-RFNLAZ
into a sale and purchase agreement with A AKREHE-—2BY
an independent third party to dispose of F=PRIMNER R
51% equity interests of Beijing Meichuang A ERIERE A5
Commercial Management Co., Limited BRERARAA ([F
("Meichuang Commercial”) at a cash RILBmR]) ) 251%
consideration of RMB1,545,000 (equivalent B RefERAR
to HK$1,797000). Meichuang Commercial %51,645,0007C (AHE
was principally engaged in provision of 1,797,000/ 7t) * X &l
software development. The consideration RBERT BICERMN
was satisfied by cash and the completion IR AR BT A
date was 30 September 2016. REEN A H R
—E-REAA=T
H e
Net liabilities at the date of disposal were as REHEBHRzABEFHE
follows: W
HK$'000
THATT
Property, plant and equipment M- WE KRR E 139
Intangible assets B EE 143
Prepayments, deposit and other FERNRIE Ze &
receivables HoAth & 3K 509
Bank and cash balances RITRIA R AR 1,028
Accruals and other payables TR E A R EMEN K (2,067)
Non-controlling interests AR = 121
Net liabilities disposed of FTbE 2 BEFHE (127)
Release of foreign currency FEBRINE MR B #1E
translation reserve (656)
Gain on disposal of the subsidiary HEMB AR Z W
(Note 9) (FI7E9) 2,580
Total consideration REBHE 1,797
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 BHE_Z—+F+-_A=+—HItFE
41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 4. HERERERRMTE 2
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (cont )
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (Contd) (b) HEMBAF (&)
(ii) (Cont'd) (ii) (#&)
HK$'000
FAET
Satisfied by: ATBI AR ER
Cash received 2R E 424
Cash receivables FEYIR & 1,373
Total cash consideration BEeRE 1,797
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: & &4 2 TR & 7 H#58 -
Cash consideration received EHHEERE 424
Cash and cash equivalents disposed ~ PTHEE 2R E MR EFEY (1,028)
(604)
(i) ~ On 16 December 2016, the Group entered i MNZ-ZEE—XRE+=A
into a sale and purchase agreement with TRE - AEEE—F
an independent third party to dispose of BAYE=FFILEERW
100% equity interests of Shengyang Tonghui FHOUANERBGBIE
Technology Development Co., Limited B ZERBRAR (&
("Shengyang Tonghui”) at nil consideration. BSimME]) 2100% R
Shengyang Tonghui was inactive during the B-REARZE-EGRA
year. The completion date was 31 December ERAFEEmEE-
2016. TXBEHA-T—NF
+=ZA=+—A"H-
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41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

HE-_T—tHF+-A=1T—HIFE

41. HGZEBEREHKRMT ()

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (Cont'd) (b) HEMBIE )
(i) (Cont'c) (i) (#)
HK$'000
FHETT
Property, plant and equipment M- ME KRR E 71
Inventories rE 7
Prepayments, deposit and other FENFIE ek
receivables H At & R 295
Trade receivables JE WLBR TR 12
Bank and cash balances RITEIR B MR 283
Accruals and other payables TEIR & A K H Ath TR (1,131)
Net liabilities disposed of FHEZ BEFHE (463)
Release of foreign currency FEBRINE B (#1R
translation reserve 578
Loss on disposal of the subsidiary PEWBARZEE
(Note 9) (FI7E9) (115)
Total consideration RERRE .
Satisfied by: T3 HER:
Cash Re _
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: & &4 2 B & 7 H#58 -
Cash consideration received BEWEERE -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed FTHEZH & LKIREFEY (283)
(283)
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226

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

(c)

Contingent Consideration shares of
Moderntimes and its subsidiaries

On 30 September 2015 (“Completion Date”),
the Group obtained 51% of equity interest of
Moderntimes Payment Limited (“Moderntimes”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
“Moderntimes Group”). Moderntimes Group is
principally engaged in (i) provision of consultancy
services in strategy and implementation in the
traditional finance industry and the internet finance
industry; (i) development, operation and promotion
of innovative products in the internet and finance
fields; and (iii) customer value management.

According to the subscription agreement,
assignment of shareholder’s loan and incentive
agreement dated 18 June 2015 entered into
between the Group and the shareholders of
Moderntimes, the consideration of the acquisition
of 51% equity interest of Moderntimes will be
settled by way of:

(i) injection of HK$49,510,000 to Moderntimes
by way of cash on Completion Date as
registered capital;

(ii) settlement of outstanding amount of
HK$13,090,000 due to a former shareholder
of Moderntimes Group;

China Innovationpay Group Limited
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RERTREBRKRME (2

(c)

Modemtimes & HFfi B2 7]
ZHARERS
RZE—RFNLA=1+H
([ BH])  AEER
BModerntimes Payment
Limited ([Moderntimes ] )
REKEBAR (KB A
[Moderntimes® & |) 251%
B #E - Moderntimests B = &
REONEGSBITEREE
B2 ITENRE R R E
ZEMBRE: (©IREBENEE
BERNBE LEREEAN
Em RilEFEEERE-

1B 15 7K 5 B B2 Moderntimesfi%
BAEIMASA-ZT—RHFX
A+ N\BEI 2 RE s R
ERRE RSB B
Moderntimes 251 % I 1 15 15
BUATHAEN:

(i) REK B BRS
M Moderntimes;T &
49,510,000/ JT £ /& 7
&

(ii) &1 FE It Moderntimes
EEFIRRZ HAEE
4 %613,090,000/8 7T
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-_ZT—tHF+-A=1T—HIFE

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 4. FERESREBRRHT ®)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (cont’a)
(c) Contingent Consideration shares of (c) Modemtimes} HffE AT
Moderntimes and its subsidiaries (Contd) ZHARARKERD (&)
(i) allotting and issuing up to 231,481,481 (i) HWIRZZE—RFLEA
ordinary shares of the Company to the —BEZZT—+tF+=

vendor, ModernTimes Information Co.,
Limited, depending on the number of
cumulative virtual prepaid card sold for the
period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December
2017 and the amount of cumulative virtual
prepaid card reloaded for the period from
1 January 2016 to 31 December 2017
(“Guaranteed Period”). The number of
ordinary shares to be issued (“Contingent
Shares”) is subject to the adjustments
below:

For the six months ended 31 December 2015

Scenario 1:

B

Scenario 2:

A=+—RHEEE
REtEHBEN R&AE
ERZT—REF—H—
HE-_Z—tF+=
A=+—B8H (R
FHM]) Rt EHRE
NREEEE BLEKL
175 %231,481,481
BRARAAIEBRKRT
&= 57 ModernTimes
Information Co.,
Limited ° # 8£47 E i AX
(TR 1) 8B & A
TIER T :

HE-F—net A=+
A7 1A

in the event that the number of cumulative virtual prepaid card sold for

the period is less than 3,500,000, the Contingent Shares to be issued

for the period shall be zero;
fHEIAE & R ERTENREE 253,500,000 - REARK & EITH

AR

in the event that the number of cumulative virtual prepaid card sold for

the period is 3,500,000 or more, the Contingent Shares to be issued
for the period shall be 46,296,296.

BR=:

fiel HA 1A 265 REHEHITE T <88 /33,500,0008% A - REAR #3817 2
s SR B 15 546,296,296 ©

FEAFENEEERAT 227

“T—FFR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
o=

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

41.

228

B RS Rk Myt

BE-T—+F+-A=+—ALLFE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 4. HERERERRMTE 2
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (cont )
(c) Contingent Consideration shares of (c) Modemtimes} HffE AT
Moderntimes and its subsidiaries (Contd) ZHRARERD (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE—F—NF+H="1—
H i FE
() Cumulative virtual prepaid card sold () EERFELENTF
Scenario 1: in the event that the number of cumulative virtual prepaid card

R —

Scenario 2:

BR=:

China Innovationpay Group Limited
Annual Report 2017

sold for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2016 is
less than 30,000,000, the Contingent Shares to be issued for
the year ended 31 December 2016 shall be zero;
WREBE—E—AFtA—HE-_TE—X"F+-A=+—H1t
HIMBE & Rt EH AN -REE 2 5230,000,000 - REBIZ =T —<
FTA=T—BHILEFEZITEEITHARD

in the event that the number of cumulative virtual prepaid card
sold for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2016 is
30,000,000 or more, the Contingent Shares to be issued for
the year ended 31 December 2016 shall be 115,740,740 less
the number of any Contingent Shares issued for the six months
ended 31 December 2016.
WREBE-E—AFtA—HE-_E—R"F+-A=+—H1t
HIfE & 25T E# A <28 /&30,000,0008 A £ REBE=Z
—RNFTZRA=1T—HIEFEKETT115,740, 7400 A A - 4
RBE_Z-—X"F+_A=+t—BLEXEADZETZEMHIA
BB -
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41.

HE-_T—tHF+-A=1T—HIFE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 4. FEREREBMKRME 2)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

(c)

Contingent Consideration shares of (c) Modemtimes} HffE AT

Moderntimes and its subsidiaries (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Cont’d)

(i)

ZHRANERD (&)

HE2—F—NFf+—A=1—
HiFFZ (%)

Cumulative virtual prepaid card reloaded (i)  REIEHEET~7E

Scenario 1:

R —

Scenario 2:

B =:

in the event that the amount of cumulative virtual prepaid card
reloaded for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2016
is less than RMB30,000,000,000, the Contingent Shares to be
issued for the year ended 31 December 2016 shall be zero;
WREE-_ET—AFtA—BHE-_T—XRF+_A=+—HI1t
Hif R E# AN RFE D AKR30,000,000,0007T  REE
CE-RETZA=T—BHIEFEZTEEITHARND

in the event that the amount of cumulative virtual prepaid
card reloaded for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December
2016 is RMB30,000,000,000 or more, the Contingent Shares
to be issued for the year ended 31 December 2016 shall be
23,148,148.

WREE2-_E—AFtA—BHE_T—XRFE+_A=+—H1
HAf Rt E R TR R E R A K #30,000,000,0007T 3k BA | - 72
HE-T—"FT-A=T—HI-FEKE1723,148,1480 LA

Bt o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 4. HERERERRME 2
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (cont )
(c) Contingent Consideration shares of (c) Modemtimes} HffE AT
Moderntimes and its subsidiaries (Contd) ZRARERD (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 B2z —F—+F+-H="1—
HiFF/E
() Cumulative virtual prepaid card sold () EERFELENTF
Scenario 1: in the event that the number of cumulative virtual prepaid card

R

Scenario 2:

B

China Innovationpay Group Limited
Annual Report 2017

sold for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2017 is
less than 43,750,000, the Contingent Shares to be issued for
the year ended 31 December 2017 shall be zero;
WREZE-_T—AFtA—HE_T—+F+_A=+—HIt
HIME & 25t ERTAN REA 4 1043,750,000 RBIZE T —+
F+_A=1T—HILFEFTGEITIRMKRND

in the event that the number of cumulative virtual prepaid card
sold for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2017 is
43,750,000 or more but less than 70,000,000, the Contingent
Shares to be issued for the year ended 31 December 2017
shall be 86,805,555 less the number of any Contingent Shares
issued for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2016
under the scenarios of cumulative virtual prepaid card sold
mentioned above;
WREE—_FT—AFtA—BEE—+tF+=-A=+—H
IFEAR B & 25 E B <88 /243,750,0008% A LD R
70,000,000  RBE-_T—+F+-_A=+—HIFEKET
86,805,555/ Sk AR D - DR EX Pt Rt 2 B ERTEN RIER
THE-Z—AFtA—HAZE-_ZT—R"F+-A=+—HILH
R ET 2 E AR EE
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(c)

HE-_ZT—tHF+-A=1T—HIFE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 4. HERERERRME 2
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (cont )
Contingent Consideration shares of (c) Modemtimes} HffE AT
Moderntimes and its subsidiaries (Contd) ZHRARERD (#)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Contd) B2z —F—+F+-H="1—
HiFFZ (&)
(i) Cumulative virtual prepaid card sold (Cont'd) () EERFELENTF
(&)

Scenario 3:

FR ="

Scenario 4:

EDLE

in the event that the number of cumulative virtual prepaid card
sold for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2017 is
70,000,000 or more but less than 87500,000, the Contingent
Shares to be issued for the year ended 31 December 2017
shall be 104,166,666 less the number of any Contingent Shares
issued for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2016
under the scenarios of cumulative virtual prepaid card sold
mentioned above;
WRBZ-FE—hAF+tA—RE=_ZT—+tF+=-_A=+—8
IFHAME & 25 E#R BN R B &70,000,0008 A D7
87500,000 RBE T —+F+-A=+—HILFERHET
104,166,666x sk AR n - 2N E XAl Rt 2 EERFARN KI5
ﬁTEQ —FE— fﬁ?ﬁﬂ HE-F— A&ﬂ" A= *‘ B 1k
BB # 1T 2 E RS AR EEA

in the event that the number of cumulative virtual prepaid card
sold for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2017 is
87500,000 or more, the Contingent Shares to be issued for
the year ended 31 December 2017 shall be 173,611,111 less
the number of any Contingent Shares issued for the period
from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2016 under the scenarios of
cumulative virtual prepaid card sold mentioned above.

WREE T —AFtA—BREZ—+tF+ZA=+—H1t
HIFI 2 & 25T E TR <88 &87500,0008k A £ REE T
—tF T ZA=1T—HIEFERETI73,61, 1M REIARD - D
EALYFfrt%’iEJrE’%FgT;FEH%I ATEHEZZT-—RFELA—
HEZZ—R"F+ZA=+T—HILHEEETZEMIARSD
A -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 4. HERERERRMTE 2
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (cont )
(c) Contingent Consideration shares of (c) Modemtimes} HffE AT
Moderntimes and its subsidiaries (Contd) ZHRARERD (#)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Cont'd) BE—F—+F+-H="1—
HiFFE (#&)
(i) Cumulative virtual prepaid card reloaded (i)  REIEHEET~7E
Scenario 1: in the event that the amount of cumulative virtual prepaid card

R —

Scenario 2:

B

China Innovationpay Group Limited
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reloaded for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2017
is less than RMB43,750,000,000, the Contingent Shares to be
issued for the year ended 31 December 2017 shall be zero;
WREE-_T—AFtA—HBHE_T—+F+_A=+—HIt
HAf Rt E R TEN R R ERE DR A R E43,750,000,0007T © A&
ZT+F+A=T—HIEFEZTIEEITHARD

in the event that the amount of cumulative virtual prepaid
card reloaded for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31
December 2017 is RMB43,750,000,000 or more but less than
RMB70,000,000,000, the Contingent Shares to be issued for
the year ended 31 December 2017 shall be 28,935,185 less the
number of any Contingent Shares issued for the year ended
31 December 2016 under the scenarios of cumulative virtual
prepaid card reloaded mentioned above;
WREZE2-_E—AFtA—BE2_T—+F+_A=+—H1t
HF Rt ER AN R ERE R A KK 43,750,000,0007T 3% A _EHE
LR AR#70,000,000,0007T REBE T+ F+-A=+—
H 1 E 1% 8£1728,935, 185X sk AR A7 - D1 = X Pt R 51 E #E
BNRAEBATEHREZE_ZE-—R"F+T_A=T—HBLFEDLE
T2 SRR B
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HE-_T—tHF+-A=1T—HIFE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 4. FEREREBMKRME 2)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

(c)

Contingent Consideration shares of (c) Modemtimes} HffE AT

Moderntimes and its subsidiaries (Cont'd)

ZHRANERD (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Cont'd) BE—F—+F+-H="1—

(i)

HIFFEZE (&)

Cumulative virtual prepaid card reloaded (i)  REIEHEET~7E

(Cont'd)

Scenario 3:

S ="

Scenario 4:

EDLE

(%)

in the event that the amount of cumulative virtual prepaid
card reloaded for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31
December 2017 is RMB70,000,000,000 or more but less than
RMB87500,000,000, the Contingent Shares to be issued for
the year ended 31 December 2017 shall be 34,722,222 less the
number of any Contingent Shares issued for the year ended
31 December 2016 under the scenarios of cumulative virtual
prepaid card reloaded mentioned above;
WREBE_E—AF+tA—HE-_F—+tF+_A=+—H1t
HIM ReHER AN RFRERE R/ ARE70,000,000,0007T 3 A _FHE

L AR #87500,000,000 REEZE T —+F+_A=+—
H L E K 31734,722, 222 8 A MR - DR & X Pt Rt E #E
BENRABEBATEE_E—R"F+_A=+—HBILFEEH
T2 SRR B

in the event that the amount of cumulative virtual prepaid
card reloaded for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December
2017 is RMB87500,000,000 or more, the Contingent Shares
to be issued for the year ended 31 December 2017 shall be
57870,370 less the number of any Contingent Shares issued
for the year ended 31 December 2016 under the scenarios of
cumulative virtual prepaid card reloaded mentioned above.
WREBE-E—AF+tA—HE-_FT—+tF+-_A=+—H1t
HiE 25t ER AN KRR ERE /A KRKS7500,000,00080 A - 7
S —%—t¢+ — A=+—H It FE#31757870,370/ A
Befn DR EXFrt Rt ERENRREBATEHE_Z—X
FTZA=ZT—BLEFEESBETZ2EMNIARNOEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

(c)

Contingent Consideration shares of
Moderntimes and its subsidiaries (Conta)
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the
number of cumulative virtual prepaid card sold
for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December
2016 is more than 30,000,000, therefore the
Contingent Shares shall be 69,444,444, The
amount of cumulative virtual prepaid card reloaded
for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December
2016 is less than RMB30,000,000, therefore the
Contingent Shares shall be zero.

As at 31 December 2016, 115,740,741 Contingent
Shares were yet issued and the issuance will
depend on the outcome of future fulfillment of
performance targets as set out.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the number
of cumulative virtual prepaid card sold for the
period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2017 is
43,750,000 or more but less than 70,000,000,
therefore the Contingent Shares shall be zero. The
amount of cumulative virtual prepaid card reloaded
for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December
2017 is less than RMB43,750,000,000, therefore
the Contingent Shares shall be zero.

As at 31 December 2017 there was no Contingent
Shares were yet issued.

China Innovationpay Group Limited
Annual Report 2017

HE_ZT—tHF+_A=1T—HILFE

41.

RERTREBRKRME (2

(c)

Modemtimes & EFf B A 7
ZHEARERD (&)
HEz_Z—X"F+=A
—+—HIEFE BERE
EBRENREEREET
—HF+A—BE-_ZT—X
F+-—A=+—HI-HHEE
i%30,000,000 - FE Itk - SRR
19 569,444,444 - 25Tt
BRNrREERE=-Z—H
FHrA—HEBE-_ZT—RF
+ZA=+—HIEBHEIR
AR #30,000,0007T ° Atk
PEBEITHARMD -

RZE—RF+_A=1+—
H - 115,740,741 0% =k 28 I 1
MAREIT R HEBEITHEERR
EXEARKRERKEBE
ZEER o

HEzE_ZT—tF+ = A
—+—BLEFE 2EZF
ERENFHEREEZ
—HEF+A—HBE_ZT—+
F+-—A=+—HIHBHEHE
i843,750,0008% LA |t DR
70,000,000 @ At - & ST
AR - BT EBIBA R
TEERE-_ZT—AFtAH
—BRRE-_ZT—+tF+=H
=+ —HILHELIRARKE
43,750,000,0007C * A It * T~
FEITHARG ©

RoB—tF+=A=+—
A - A E BB T AR
et o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE—_Z—+F+-_A=1t—HILFE
41. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED 4. HERERERRME 2
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (cont )
(d) Acquisition of interest in a subsidiary d WE—EHREBARZER
without change of control (YIRS )
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the RBEE_ZT—-—XF+A
Group acquired 5% equity interests in a 95% =t+—HBLEFE FEEUT
subsidiary at nil consideration. The effect of the ﬁEH&ZEﬁ—F‘aﬁ%ﬁ%%Hﬁﬁéz
acquisition on the equity attributable to the owners BB A B 2 5% M HE o AR
of the Company is as follows: T?ﬁﬁ)\ﬁﬁﬂﬁ(ﬁ%%ﬁéz%%ﬁﬂ
T~
HK$'000
FHTT
Carrying amount of non-controlling Friid 2 3EE iR s 2 BREE
interests acquired (544)
Consideration paid for non-controlling IR RTINS 2 B
interests -
Loss on acquisition recognised BEENERAER 2 WEESE
directly in equity (544)
(e) Reconciliation of assets/(liabilities) () BETHELEZEE
arising from financing activities (BE) SR
The table below details changes in the Group's TRFJREEREZTHESE
assets/(liabilities) arising from financing activities, ZEE/ (B2 BER
including both cash and non-cash changes. Assets/ MR BT -REETHE
(liabilities) arising from financing activities are E2EE/ (BAB)EER
those for which cash flows were, or future cash EMEXRKBEMENAE
flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated BiRcRengarxkPoELAR
statement of cash flows as cash flows from BEHHSRECEE, (A
financing activities. &) -
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 BE—_ZT—+HF+-_A=1+—HILFE
41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 4. HERERERRMTE 2
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (cont )
(e) Reconciliation of assets/(liabilities) () RMETBHELEZEE
arising from financing activities (Cont'a) (BB YR (&)
Amounts
due from non-
Amount controlling Contingent
due from  shareholders ~ Amount due consideration
an associate of subsidiaries  to a director payables
EYHEAR
EW ﬁ ZFER Ef—2 Eft
BENT RRKE EERE HARE
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
At 1 January 2017 RZE—t$—HA—H 3,349 855 (3) (73,860)
Impairment for the year KEERE (3,469) (752) - -
Share issued under contingent BRIARELA
consideration REZT - - - 31,944
Gain on fair value change REZENER L
recognised in profit or loss ATFEEHNE - - - 44,558
Exchange difference EHER 120 187 - (2,642)
At 31 December 2017 N JC¢
TZA= - 290 (3) -
42. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 42 JREE
As at 31 December 2017 the Group did not have any RZZE—tEF+A=+—H K%

significant contingent liabilities (2016: nil).
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

43.

44.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

On 12 December 2016, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement to obtain 20% equity interests
of an investee company by way of capital injection of
RMB5,000,000. As at 31 December 2016, the Group paid
RMB2,000,000. The remaining balance of RMB3,000,000
was a capital commitment.

On 31 December 2017 a subsidiary of the Company
entered into a capital agreement with a potential investor
and other shareholders of the associate, BJ Wallet,
conditionally agreed to invest further RMB2,500,000 for
maintenance 20% equity interests of the associate. The
investment is subject to fulfillment of other conditions
precedent.

LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2017 the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

HE—

43.

E—+F+RA=+—HILFE

BREIE
R-ZE—XRNE+-_A+-H K&
B VEEMRERATEARY
5,000,000 ME R —MEEIRER
Al Z220% R E-R_FT—RF+=
A=z+—H Zx&EBIZHARE
2,000,0007T * # %8 A R #3,000,000
TR B AR

RNZZE—+E+-_A=+—H K&
EHE-—FHBEARERAEEZ —
LBRTEREEREMBRRETLER
E BBRGEREE—PREAR
#£2,500,0007T LA 4 35 A B & A Al 2
20% A% 4 - X IEIR A A H AL SR
HREREFAIEE -

HERE
RZZE—tF+A=+—H 1RE
TR 2 HE BN 2 R RIEHE
ERREBEMT

2017 2016

—E—tF —Z=T—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHETT

Within one year —F A 15,495 11,970
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEERF

(BREEMTF) 20,550 18,205

36,045 30,175

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by
the Group for certain of its offices. Leases are negotiated
for terms of one to three years (2016: one to four years)
and rentals are fixed over the lease terms and do not
include contingent rentals.

REHEFREAEEREETHA
ERNzES -HER—E=F (=
T—RF:—ENF)HEH - HeR
MEAREE BTt ASAE S -
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45.

46.

47.

48.

238

OTHER OPERATING COMMITMENT

The Company's subsidiary, Beijing Shangyin Investment
Consultancy Co. Ltd., entered into a purchase agreement
on 6 November 2017 The subsidiary agreed to purchase
goods from a supplier for at least RMB50,000,000
(equivalent to HK$60,037500) during the year ending 31
December 2018.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The key management personnel are the directors. The
details of the remuneration paid to them are set out in
note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been restated or
reclassified as a result of presentation of earnest money
paid for potential investments in the current year.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

The conditional acquisition as mentioned in note 26 was
approved by Special General Meeting of the Company
on 26 January 2018. The completion of the conditional
acquisition is subject to fulfilment of certain condition
precedents. Details can be found in the Company's
circular dated 26 January 2018.

China Innovationpay Group Limited
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HE—

45,

47

Z—+F+A=+—HILFE

H i (& R IE
AARIZHBARERERB (dbR) &
BHHABRATNNR -_ZE—+E+—A
NBEEBERE - ZMBARIRE
REZE=Z—)\F+=ZA=+—H1
FEMZE D AREB0,000,0007T (47
& 760,037,500/ 70 ) [A] — & B
BEEM-

BEALTRS
FTEEBEAEAEE -BNETEERE
ABZHFMNFBENGRA T HmEM
14 °

HEEF
2T BB i 25 A FE R
AR AESTESIREH M-

WmERBRSH

P EE26RT i A (AR IR E A =
—N\E—AZHRABRTZARRR
RASBIAE AL - B IR
18 2 SERR RS T SRR A
FAER - HEHESHARFEHA
—E-\F-AZtRBZAEK-



FIVEYEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

FFEEE

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t-HLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
“Z-tF 2 F —T-hf —E-WmF —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TET FET FET
(Represented)
(BEF)
RESULT £
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BERERH
Revenue EEE 207,856 80,182 97068 81,222 142,896
Cost of sales HEKA (181,754) (56,227) (71,468) (46,173) (93,173
Gross profit e 26,102 23,955 25,600 35,049 49,723
Other income RN 27331 24,946 15,021 4,461 3,943
Selling expenses HEER (23,812) (16,917) (27378) (31,181) (19,911)
Administrative expenses THRY (160,623) (125,040) (100,621) (60,675) (52,025)
Share loss of associates iy =Nl i = (1,754) - - - -
Impairment of amount due from an [ — R E R R A RE
associate (3,469) - - - (4,733)
Impairment of investment in an associate 7 — R 2 N B HRE A (21,286) - - - -
Impairment of goodwill HERE - (12,301) (4,641) (53,323)  (228,787)
Impairment of intangible assets EWEERE - - - - (933)
Impairment of amount due from B — B IR R FIERE
a non-controlling shareholder (752) - - - -
Equity-settled share-based payment RS RN T HE (21,843) (48,415) (57548) (4,463) (9,173)
Gain on fair value change of R—EBEAAREATE
investment in an associate e - - - - 1,273
Gain/(loss) on fair value change of ERN%ARERTLE
contingent consideration payables gz, (FE) 44,558 (70,984) 13,155 - -
FERAFEXNEEERAT 239
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FFBEHE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-HA=t—-HLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
“E—tf TR ZE-hfF —T-mF —ZT-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FEL T THET T
(Represented)
(BE5)
Finance costs BERA - - (15) (9,714) (13,187)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRBATEE (135,548)  (224,756)  (136,427) (119,846) (273,810)
Income tax credit/(expenses) FEHEe,/ (BX) 454 242 (2,556) (3,740) (4,927)
LOSS FORTHE YEAR FROM REFELEER 2 EAER
CONTINUING OPERATIONS (135,094)  (224514) (138,983  (123,586)  (278,737)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS DRIEEEER
Loss for the year from BRIEEEB
a discontinued operation FNER - (4,383) (21,588) - -
LOSS FOR THE YEAR ERER (135,094)  (228897)  (160,571)  (123,586)  (278,737)
Attributable to: ATALEESS :
Owners of the Company ARAEAA (112,192)  (214,422) (153,818)  (122,724)  (279,352)
Non-controlling interests R (22,902) (14,475) (6,753) (862) 615
(135,094)  (228897)  (160,571)  (123,586)  (278,737)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EE BBERFERER
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 1,392,495 1,081,293 1,181,047 1,105,536 987578
TOTAL LIABILITIES ER=N (159,956)  (222,964)  (108,730) (77212)  (163,593)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERER 7641 (15,525) (27697) (6,502) (707)
1,240,180 842,804 1,044,620 1,021,822 823,278
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